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          2                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Okay, if we could

          3  have everybody please take their seats. Hi. Good

          4  morning. My name is Peter Vallone, I am the Speaker

          5  of the New York City Council. You are about to begin

          6  a program, and you will be hearing from our

          7  Chairperson Ronnie Eldridge, who will be introducing

          8  the other colleagues in the Council in a moment.

          9                 I can't tell you how pleased we are

         10  to have you working with us, the City Council of the

         11  City of New York. The Citizens Committee for

         12  Children is a group that we have learned to admire

         13  and respect and work with over the years.

         14                 We also know, in the difficulty of

         15  balancing budgets, we have found that there is no

         16  better investment that we can make than in our

         17  children, and we have also found that there is

         18  nothing better for society than to keep families

         19  together. And one of the best ways of doing that

         20  that we have learned in our experience is to provide

         21  quality and affordable day care. It is probably one

         22  of the best investments that we can make.

         23                 However, the day that government

         24  stops listening is the day that government stops

         25  learning. So, what I want to do now is, I am going
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          2  to turn the program over to our Chairperson, and she

          3  will introduce the rest of the people, and it will

          4  be our job to listen to you today to see how we can

          5  make life better for New Yorkers, as we turn into

          6  the next century, and see how we can at least give

          7  our own children the same opportunities that we had

          8  a generation ago, and God-willing, maybe even make

          9  it better. And with your help, I think we can do

         10  that.

         11                 Thank you very, very much, and I want

         12  to turn it over to our Chairperson Ronnie Eldridge.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you very

         15  much. It is wonderful to see so many people here and

         16  so many people here to urge us to spend the money

         17  that we hope to get in a very wise way.

         18                 Child care. I have been around for a

         19  long time, and child care was an issue that we

         20  talked about 40 and 50 years ago. I don't think I

         21  did that 50 years ago, but maybe 40. It is one of

         22  the most important parts of a person's development,

         23  quality early childhood education enhancement, we

         24  know it is what sets a child on the path to success,

         25  and yet, it has always been a fragmented response on
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          2  the part of the government, some money here, some

          3  money there, crafting together whatever programs we

          4  can, and I think the size of the audience today

          5  shows the determination to us as elected officials

          6  that it can no longer be this auxiliary service, but

          7  that it is a main ingredient in a person's life and

          8  I hope that we will be able to carry that message

          9  where it will be heard and responded to.

         10                 We have an unusual forum today. First

         11  we are going to have a forum with a very

         12  distinguished panel and moderated by a very

         13  distinguished and effective advocate, Gail Nayowith,

         14  and then we are going to convene a hearing by the

         15  Women's Issues Committee where we will take

         16  testimony from people and that will be part of the

         17  record and be used, the whole presentation will be

         18  used at the time of the budget and hopefully at the

         19  time, and that time should be soon that we will pass

         20  some legislation that will have an impact on

         21  children's early childhood education.

         22                 So, I would like to now introduce

         23  Gail Nayowith, although I do want to introduce the

         24  colleagues who are here for the forum, Council

         25  Member Una Clarke, who herself has been involved in
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          2  child care for many years, not as long as I say that

          3  I have heard the issue.

          4                 Council Member Gifford Miller, who

          5  has a group of children I think from his district

          6  here.

          7                 Council Member Guillermo Linares, who

          8  represents a district that desperately needs more

          9  child care. And we will be joined by other members.

         10                 Ms. Gail Nayowith. Thank you.

         11                 MS. NAYOWITH: Many thanks to City

         12  Council Speaker Peter Vallone and Council Member

         13  Ronnie Eldridge, who is the Chair of the Women's

         14  Issues Committee, for opening up City Hall today to

         15  New Yorkers who care about child care. The Speaker,

         16  Council Member Eldridge, members of the Women's

         17  Issues Committee and other Council members who care

         18  deeply about expanding child care opportunities to

         19  low- and moderate-income working and welfare to work

         20  families, you have shown your leadership in so many

         21  ways. We know also that the Mayor's Office and the

         22  City agencies are also dedicated to making child

         23  care available, and it is our hope that this growing

         24  political leadership, coupled with the strong public

         25  will, demonstrated by so many people here today,
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          2  will pave the way for a major child care expansion

          3  initiative to increase quality child care

          4  opportunities for working and welfare to work

          5  families.

          6                 Many thanks, too, to the WK Kellogg

          7  Foundation, the Early Childhood Budget Group and the

          8  Board Advocacy Council and staff of Citizens

          9  Committee for Children, for providing support that

         10  got so many children, parents, business leaders and

         11  other new voices to City Hall today.

         12                 Today, for the first time ever, child

         13  care takes center stage at City Hall. New Yorkers of

         14  all ages and from all neighborhoods have taken time

         15  from work, school and other obligations to come to

         16  City Hall to talk about the importance of available,

         17  affordable child care.

         18                 Participants on the briefing panel,

         19  those delivering public testimony and adults and

         20  children in the audience, are all here to make one

         21  point; and that is, that the time is right to make

         22  investments in quality child care.

         23                 I would like to introduce my

         24  colleague Donna Lawrence, the Executive Director of

         25  the Children's Defense Fund New York, one of the
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          2  co-sponsors of today's event.

          3                 MR. LAWRENCE: Good morning. Thank

          4  you. My name is Donna Lawrence, I am the Executive

          5  Director of the Children's Defense Fund New York.

          6                 Children's Defense Fund exists to

          7  provide a strong and effective voice for all the

          8  children of America and of New York, who cannot

          9  vote, lobby or speak for themselves. The mission of

         10  CDF is a simple one, to protect children and

         11  strengthen families. We pay particular attention to

         12  the needs of our most vulnerable children and

         13  families to ensure that all children have the

         14  opportunity to realize their full potential.

         15                 Our goal is to educate New Yorkers

         16  about the needs of children and encourage preventive

         17  investment in children before they get sick, drop

         18  out of school, suffer family breakdown or get into

         19  trouble.

         20                 I thank Citizens Committee for

         21  Children for pulling together today's hearing and we

         22  all appreciate the leadership and support of Speaker

         23  Vallone, Council Member Eldridge and the other

         24  members who are here this morning.

         25                 Last January the Children's Defense
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          2  Fund, Citizens Committee for Children, and the Child

          3  Care That Works Campaign hosted a gathering very

          4  similar to this one. We brought together parents,

          5  advocates, employers and experts from all over the

          6  State to the Capital Building in Albany, for what we

          7  call a reality check on Child Care, which was a Town

          8  Hall meeting on the need for adequate funding and

          9  policies to support our State's Child Care and Early

         10  Education System.

         11                 We showed that the need for

         12  affordable, high quality child care cuts across

         13  geographic, ethnic and income categories. Families

         14  with young children testified about their need for

         15  reliable and affordable care, whether parents are

         16  working, in training or school, participating in

         17  welfare work programs or making the transition from

         18  welfare to work.

         19                 We showed that all children benefit

         20  from good quality child care. Research has shown

         21  that quality early learning experiences lead to more

         22  success in school, less reliance on welfare, and

         23  higher rates of employment and college enrollment.

         24                 We know that quality stimulating

         25  child care environments, like the one inside, where
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          2  my daughter is, by the way, with dedicated teachers

          3  and staff, can kickstart a child's development and

          4  put the child on a clear path to success in school

          5  and in life.

          6                 We also show that there is strong

          7  public support for increased government investment

          8  in child care and early learning. A New York poll

          9  carried out by the WK Kellogg Foundation found that

         10  nine out of ten New Yorkers support increased

         11  investments in child care, and that 85 percent think

         12  that government should make such affordable child

         13  care, make sure affordable child care is available

         14  to working families who cannot afford it.

         15                 The survey found that New Yorkers

         16  feel that access to quality child care is one of the

         17  two most important issues in the process of welfare

         18  reform, the other just for everybody's information

         19  is health insurance, and as most of you probably

         20  know, the state has invested and expanded the

         21  children's health insurance program, so we really

         22  have to make sure this is the next step.

         23                 Our January reality check town

         24  meeting really paid off. This year's state budget

         25  included the largest increase in child care funding
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          2  in our state's history. State spending on child care

          3  subsidies and programs increased more than 80

          4  percent in a single year, and New York City families

          5  stand to benefit from the bulk of that gain, through

          6  increased access to subsidies, facilities,

          7  construction funds and quality improvement

          8  initiatives. But there is still much more to be

          9  done.

         10                 We hope that today's hearing

         11  organized by the Citizens Committee with the support

         12  of CDF and the YK Kellogg Foundation will serve to

         13  provide New York City's elected officials with a

         14  spark to serious action, the way our January reality

         15  check did for Governor Pataki and the State

         16  Legislature.

         17                 Once you hear about the real needs,

         18  the real benefits and the real opportunities we have

         19  to help children and families, through accessible,

         20  affordable, high quality child care, we are sure

         21  that you will want to move forward with effective

         22  policies and oversight in this critical area.

         23                 CDF New York joins in the

         24  recommendations before you today; first, to expand

         25  the supply and cover the full cost of quality child
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          2  care for 10,000 more young New Yorkers.

          3                 Secondly, to make quality child care

          4  available and affordable to more low and moderate

          5  income New Yorkers by expanding the eligibility

          6  criteria.

          7                 Third, to invest a portion of new

          8  child care funds into quality initiatives, and

          9  fourth, to take advantage of opportunities to expand

         10  the distribution of vouchers, expand contracts with

         11  child care providers, and expand facilities through

         12  capital investment.

         13                 We must make sure that New York City

         14  gets all the state dollars for which we are

         15  eligible, that every new state dollar is spent

         16  effectively, that City resources are adequate to the

         17  task in front of us, and that government officials,

         18  advocates and parents all work together to make sure

         19  our child care and early education efforts work for

         20  our children and families.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 MR. NAYOWITH: Thank you, Donna.

         23                 Our emphasis on quality affordable

         24  available child care reflects the concerns and

         25  knowledge built from years of research, dialogue
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          2  between academics, parents, providers and lawyers

          3  and policy-makers, and loads of experience gained on

          4  the ground in financing, program operations,

          5  technical assistance, licensing and accreditation,

          6  professional development, and parent outreach and

          7  education.

          8                 The efficacy of quality child care

          9  and healthy child development and school performance

         10  is by now common knowledge. The importance of safe

         11  quality care to parents while they work or go to

         12  school is by now a truism, reported in the popular

         13  and academic press, in television, in Women's and

         14  Parents Magazine and on the radio. The importance of

         15  child care as the family life issue can be seen even

         16  on the Internet, where no fewer than 20 sites

         17  provide parents with advice and direction. And I

         18  assure you, if I spent more time I would have found

         19  even more.

         20                 Even advertisers who only put

         21  marketing dollars where they count know that child

         22  care sells. Employers, too, have stepped up efforts

         23  to address employee worries about child care,

         24  combining their own business concerns over

         25  productivity and the bottom line, with work family
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          2  programs, including back-up child care.

          3                 Many businesses have taken the lead

          4  with these kind of good neighbor policies that

          5  prepare the future workforce and give children a leg

          6  up in this competitive economy.

          7                 And in communities across the City,

          8  licensed and regulated family day care providers and

          9  child care centers are gearing up for expansion. So,

         10  from every directly we see leadership and expertise

         11  emerging. What we haven't seen is the sustained

         12  public investment in quality child care

         13  opportunities that everybody agrees is necessary.

         14                 The new state funding $64 million

         15  guaranteed for child care subsidies, with more

         16  funding promised for quality enhancements, facility

         17  development and a reserve fund to help communities

         18  where the demand for child care outstrips supply

         19  provides us with an incredible and unprecedented

         20  opportunity.

         21                 For the first time in 25 years, New

         22  York City has an opportunity to help more families

         23  work, help businesses stay competitive and create

         24  jobs and help children grow and succeed.

         25                 Our challenge today is to tell the
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          2  stories, channel the expertise and build consensus

          3  about how the new child care dollars can be used. I

          4  would like to introduce our panel and begin the

          5  first part of the program.

          6                 Lilliam Barrios-Paoli, is the Senior

          7  Vice President and Chief Executive for Agency

          8  Services at the United Way of New York City.

          9                 Mae Ying Chen is Associate Manager,

         10  Local 2325 Unite.

         11                 Audrey Jacobs is from the Scholar

         12  Practitioner Program, WK Kellogg Foundation

         13  Devolution Initiative.

         14                 Claudette Kelly is a parent.

         15                 Lawrence Mincer is the Vice President

         16  for Human Resources Division at Goldman Sachs.

         17                 Denise Montana is the Director of

         18  Work Life Programs at City Group.

         19                 Richard Stoli is Senior Editorial

         20  Advisor, Time, Inc., and Chairman Child Care Action

         21  Campaign.

         22                 And Meredith Wagner is Senior Vice

         23  President, Public Affairs Lifetime Television.

         24                 I am just going to jump right into

         25  the questions.
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          2                 Mr. Stoli, you make child care a

          3  business priority at Time Warner and a personal

          4  priority as chairman of the Child Care Action

          5  Campaign. Can you tell us a little bit about what

          6  moved you to action in the first place and why child

          7  care is so important to you, to business and to our

          8  City?

          9                 MR. STOLI: I have been involved in

         10  child care most of my adult life, as it turns out,

         11  first as a consumer. I have four daughters all grown

         12  and now have a four-year-old stepson, I am still in

         13  the market.

         14                 Second, as a skeptical observer, one

         15  of my daughters worked in the Chicago Child Care

         16  Center and she told me the Center deceived City

         17  inspectors about the teacher/children ratio by

         18  putting some kids in a van and driving them around

         19  the neighborhood during official visits. Since then

         20  I have learned it is an old trick.

         21                 Third, as chairman of the Child Care

         22  Action Campaign, a leading national non-profit

         23  advocacy organization headquartered on Seventh

         24  Avenue.

         25                 And fourth, as a corporate editorial
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          2  executive who helped bring a state-of-the-art child

          3  care center to the Time and Life Building in

          4  Rockefeller Center for all Time Warner families.

          5                 In my work with the Child Care Action

          6  Campaign, I have traveled from coast to coast

          7  persuading business that their employees and their

          8  family need and deserve help with child care. And by

          9  child care I do not mean parking the kids in front

         10  of TV or turning them over to uninterested

         11  babysitters or reluctant relatives. I mean quality

         12  child care that nurtures and educates their little

         13  bodies and minds.

         14                 There are six definite dollars and

         15  cents bottom line rewards for those companies who

         16  decide to open on-site and off-site child care

         17  centers back up or full-time or who helped their

         18  employees in other ways.

         19                 Recruiting. Our managers take

         20  prospective and sought after workers and executives

         21  down to visit the center in our lobby, and in more

         22  than one case it has clinched the deal.

         23                 Retention. Employees depend on our

         24  center and don't want to lose it. They don't leave.

         25                 Decreased absenteeism. An employee
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          2  doesn't have to miss work because the babysitter

          3  doesn't show up. In such a case, before our center

          4  was there "what did you do?", we asked our employees

          5  recently. Ninety-nine percent of them said "call in

          6  sick".

          7                 Reduction in the cost of acquiring

          8  and training new employees who are forced to leave

          9  because of problems with child care.

         10                 Higher morale. It reduces stress on

         11  families, and makes for happier workers, and

         12  finally, greater productivity.

         13                 Studies have shown that workers with

         14  fewer worries about their children simply work

         15  better and more efficiently.

         16                 Today, as you have heard, New York

         17  City has an opportunity to help families with child

         18  care help businesses stay competitive, help build a

         19  competent work force and help children grow up

         20  healthy and smart, do well in school and succeed in

         21  life. This opportunity comes at a critical time,

         22  when more and more parents are moving from welfare

         23  to work, when they deserve to know that their

         24  children are being cared for when the pride they

         25  feel in taking jobs must not be ruined by ache and
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          2  worry about their children.

          3                 This is a highly complex city and

          4  solving the child care problem is no less complex.

          5  But our goal should be straightforward and simple,

          6  affordable, available, quality child care.

          7                 Much of the child care in America I

          8  have seen is unfortunately mediocre and even poor.

          9  That is not good enough for the greatest city in the

         10  world. We pride ourselves on all things excellent in

         11  New York - our buildings, our stores, our broadcast

         12  and cable networks, our newspapers, our magazines,

         13  our restaurants, our hospitals, our universities.

         14                 When it comes to children, our

         15  future, we must insist on nothing but the best.

         16                 The new funds now available for child

         17  care should not be allowed to contribute to more

         18  mediocrity, they must be used to build quality in

         19  this City. Business has learned that quality child

         20  care is a surpassingly wise and prudent investment.

         21  New York City now has a chance to learn the same

         22  thing. Let's do it.

         23                 MS. NAYOWITH: Thank you. Thank you

         24  very much.

         25                 Ms. Wagner, Lifetime Television has
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          2  made a significant commitment to put families' needs

          3  for quality affordable child care at the top of the

          4  domestic agenda, and you created the

          5  Adopt-A-Politician Campaign to get viewers to

          6  educate their local leaders about the need for and

          7  difficulty in finding affordable child care. Why

          8  would a television station take on this kind of

          9  challenge? And what lessons has Lifetime learned

         10  from this effort that our local elected officials

         11  and the City Council should know about?

         12                 MS. WAGNER: Lifetime Television,

         13  which is based here in New York, for those of you

         14  who don't know, is the Network for Women. And as the

         15  Network, we are available in 75 million homes now,

         16  and as the Network for women we are held to a little

         17  bit of a higher standard and we take that higher

         18  standard as quite a privilege. And we feel that we

         19  have a responsibility to serve as a voice for our

         20  viewers. So, we spend a lot of time talking to our

         21  viewers and listening to our viewers about what is

         22  most important to them, putting those issues on

         23  television, and helping our viewers get heard on

         24  those issues.

         25                 And two and a half years ago, almost
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          2  a year and a half ago when we started this project

          3  and we are reaching out to our viewers once again,

          4  we found that one of the most critical issues to

          5  women and families is the issue of child care. This

          6  is no surprise to all of you in the room. But we

          7  noticed a frustration about this from our viewers,

          8  they felt their voices weren't getting heard on this

          9  issue, and they told us that they wanted us to

         10  collect their voices and help amplify them. So we

         11  did something very simple, which was to join forces

         12  with about 130 non-profit women's and children's

         13  advocacy organizations, among them the Children's

         14  Defense Fund, many of you are here today, and we

         15  told our viewers to go to our web site and go to an

         16  800 number and share their child care stories and

         17  concerns with us.

         18                 Since that time we have gathered

         19  thousands of stories from every state in the

         20  country, from every demographic possible. We have

         21  been using those stories on our air to help inform

         22  our programming, and we have been giving those

         23  stories to our elected officials.

         24                 The President has used them several

         25  times, in advance we have given them to every member
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          2  of Congress, we have given them to Governors.

          3                 A couple of things have been

          4  resoundingly clear to us in this process; and that

          5  is, there is a huge need for these stories. We are

          6  finding that the media, that elected officials are

          7  becoming numb to statistics. We work with Ellen

          8  Glinsky a lot from the Families and Work Institute,

          9  and I didn't realize what a treasure trophy it would

         10  be to have real people and real stories speaking

         11  about what it is like for kids today not being a

         12  priority in this country, and the consequences that

         13  is going to have on these kids.

         14                 The other thing that has been

         15  interesting is the response we have gotten cuts

         16  across every demographic and people really, really

         17  want to participate in this process.

         18                 I was also amazed at the number of

         19  grandmothers that said I want to know how I can

         20  help, I know what it was like raising a child and I

         21  don't want my daughter who is working outside of the

         22  home, I didn't do that, I want to know how I can

         23  help her.

         24                 And also, the people who are most

         25  involved in this process are people who are living
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          2  this crisis on a daily basis, are the people who are

          3  least able to get their voices heard.

          4                 You get up in the morning and you

          5  walk the dog and you get your kids up for school,

          6  which is a chore, and you go to work, and you have

          7  five different connections to get your kids from

          8  child care to after school care, and someone picks

          9  them up after dinner, and God forbid there is a flat

         10  tire, and at the end of the day we find our viewers

         11  are saying, hey, I had a big success, when in fact

         12  this isn't a success for anybody. Parents are

         13  suffering, the kids are suffering, employers are

         14  suffering. So we are glad to bring the voices of our

         15  views to this organization.

         16                 MR. NAYOWITH: Thank you very much.

         17                 Mr. Mincer, can you talk about the

         18  Goldman Sachs' experience of creating a back-up

         19  child care facility for employees? Why does an

         20  investment bank need a child care center anyway?

         21                 MR. MINCER: Sure. Gail, thank you

         22  very much for having me here today on this panel. I

         23  appreciate the opportunity.

         24                 I am just going to keep my remarks

         25  pretty brief and echo a lot of what Dick said so
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          2  eloquently.

          3                 Our experience with back-up child

          4  care has been very wonderful in our firm.

          5                 MS. NAYOWITH: Larry, you are going to

          6  have to speak up, the children are having too much

          7  fun in the other room.

          8                 MR. MINCER: I said our experience has

          9  been wonderful in our back-up child care center at

         10  the firm. We have had our center open for about five

         11  years, and utilization rate has been very high

         12  throughout the time that the center has been open.

         13                 In our business, our people are our

         14  most critical resource, and it is really essential

         15  that we hire the best people. To be the best firm we

         16  have to hire and retain the best people, just as

         17  Dick had said. One of the ways we can meet that goal

         18  is to provide a work environment for our employees

         19  that supports their needs.

         20                 Now, our Children's Center offers our

         21  employees a tremendous piece of mind in knowing that

         22  they have a place to bring their children when their

         23  usual child care plans fall through. They know they

         24  have a safe and convenient alternative that they can

         25  bring their children to be happy and well cared for.
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          2  Our center is absolutely terrific and I have used it

          3  myself and it is a great thing to have. It is an

          4  integral part of our work environment and I really

          5  can't imagine our firm operating without it at this

          6  point.

          7                 MS. NAYOWITH: Thank you so much.

          8                 MR. MINCER: Thank you.

          9                 MS. NAYOWITH: Ms. Montana, what

         10  promoted City Group to make child care a priority?

         11  And how can New York City leverage the intelligence

         12  gained from your experience to design child care

         13  services that work for parents, employers and

         14  children?

         15                 MS. MONATANA: First let me start by

         16  saying the topic you are working on today is a

         17  critical issue for the business community, and I

         18  also appreciate the opportunity to address this

         19  forum.

         20                 City Group is a diversified financial

         21  services company. We have 180,000 employees

         22  worldwide, with 110,000 in the US. Over 25,000 of

         23  these employees live and work in the New York

         24  Metropolitan area.

         25                 Forty percent of our employees have
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          2  children under 13 and another 15 percent have

          3  teenagers. We estimate that 70 percent of our

          4  employees live in a household where both parents

          5  work.

          6                 Our first foray into child care was

          7  in 1986. The local child care center near one of our

          8  large operating sites closed unexpectedly, and we

          9  had a dilemma. We would either lose 150 employees,

         10  or we would take on the operation of that center. We

         11  chose to take on the operation of the center.

         12                 It became clear to us that in order

         13  to attract and retain a talented work force, we

         14  would have to provide different types of benefits

         15  and supports than we had provided in the past.

         16                 We now have six on-site centers which

         17  serve 1,700 children. One of these centers is in New

         18  York City, a back-up child care center located at

         19  Solomon Smith Barneys headquarters downtown. Most of

         20  our centers provide full programming, full-time

         21  child care, back-up programs, before and after

         22  school programs, and summer camp programs.

         23                 City Group subsidizes the tuition at

         24  these centers among other costs. Almost all of these

         25  programs have waiting lists. We recognize the
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          2  importance that our employees place on this benefit.

          3                 In New York City our working parents

          4  are faced with many difficulties when they try to

          5  balance the needs of their children and the

          6  responsibilities of their jobs.

          7                 Long commutes, the widespread use of

          8  public transportation, and the cost of care in New

          9  York makes child care a challenge for the community,

         10  parents and our employees.

         11                 In addition to the back-up center in

         12  New York, our strategy has been to support dependent

         13  care in the community.

         14                 City Group is a champion company of

         15  the American business collaboration for quality

         16  dependent care. The collaboration or ADC is a group

         17  of companies committed to improving supply and

         18  quality of dependent care in the communities where

         19  employees live and work.

         20                 We collaborate, because we realize

         21  that the dependent care needs are so widespread that

         22  no one company can meet all of these needs alone.

         23                 We are also involved in a local New

         24  York City collaboration, called the Corporate

         25  Council On Out Of School Time.  Both collaborations
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          2  have the same goals, to improve the quality and

          3  availability of care for our children.

          4                 This strategy is right for us in New

          5  York, because our employees live and work across a

          6  very large geography. Our branch banking system is

          7  spread throughout the five boroughs, the surrounding

          8  areas of Long Island, Westchester, Connecticut and

          9  New Jersey.

         10                 We believe that by collaborating with

         11  other companies and child care organizations, we can

         12  support our employees and our communities in the

         13  broadest way.

         14                 We also ensure that our projects

         15  supports the unique needs of working families, and

         16  the needs of working families are great.

         17                 One of the biggest issues that our

         18  employees face is finding affordable childcare. The

         19  second biggest issue is concern over the quality of

         20  the care the children are receiving.

         21                 Many parents have difficulties

         22  finding care that is flexible and available in

         23  non-traditional hours. After 6:00 p.m. and on

         24  weekends, not very likely.

         25                 When we conducted focus groups on

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            33

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  this topic, one of the most heart-wrenching stories

          3  was told by a parent who feared that unless they

          4  were able to pick up their child by 6:00 p.m. from

          5  an after school program, their child would be

          6  brought to the police station.

          7                 Many parents opt for informal care

          8  using a friend or a relative because of the

          9  flexibility it affords. However, parents realize

         10  that informal care does not always provide

         11  developmental experiences for their children. The

         12  choice is very difficult.

         13                 Through the ABC we have tried to

         14  impact some of these needs. One ABC project focused

         15  on training center directors to improve their

         16  management skills. Our goal was to help centers be

         17  more financially sound and also more responsive to

         18  their clients, working families.

         19                 Another training project, Adventures

         20  In Peace-making, provided free training and

         21  resources to school-aged programs on conflict

         22  resolution and violence avoidance.

         23                 Another project subsidized back-up

         24  care to our employees and developed a network of

         25  providers who are available for emergency and
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          2  drop-in care. Over 2,000 days of care were used in

          3  the first year of the program.

          4                 When we tried this program without a

          5  subsidy, not one day of care was used.

          6                 Our lessons from these initiatives

          7  were clear, parents needed help paying for child

          8  care and they needed help finding the right kinds of

          9  quality care to meet their needs and their child's

         10  needs.

         11                 We have learned that you must focus

         12  on the needs of the child and the parent, only then

         13  do you help the family.

         14                 While we are happy with the success

         15  of some of these projects, we realize that there is

         16  still so much to do.

         17                 We are still learning lessons as we

         18  try different options to support our employees. One

         19  thing is very clear to us, this issue will require

         20  the resources and support of many constituencies. We

         21  are committed to this issue because we believe it

         22  will have a bottom line impact on our business and

         23  we do not think this will change.

         24                 Once again, thank you for the

         25  opportunity to share some of our experiences.
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          2                 MS. NAYOWITH: Thank you so much.

          3                 Ms. Chen, we have heard from

          4  employers of some of the City's largest and most

          5  powerful businesses about the importance of quality,

          6  stable, affordable child care. Could you talk from a

          7  family perspective about the effects of unstable and

          8  poor quality child care on working parents,

          9  especially low-income working parents.

         10                 But before you do, I have to just

         11  tell you, we have over 100 children at City Hall

         12  today that are being entertained now by a magician

         13  clown, so we are having a child care thing.

         14                 MS. CHEN: That's great. I wish I

         15  could be in there with them.

         16                 I am wearing many hats today, I am

         17  representing my union, which is the Garment Workers

         18  Union, and which represents a lot of immigrant

         19  workers of all different nationalities and

         20  especially the growing Asian-Pacific group. We are

         21  low-wage workers.

         22                 I work with a child care coalition

         23  with the labor unions and I wanted to recognize my

         24  coordinator of that program, Debbie King, who is

         25  here today. And we deal with the union members, not
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          2  only as parents and users of day care, but also as

          3  care-takers, teachers and so on who work in the day

          4  care center.

          5                 And then lastly, and I think most

          6  importantly, and I appreciate this from my other

          7  panelists, I also am a parent and my children are

          8  grown up now, but when they were little they were in

          9  the Henry Street Settlement House, which is a

         10  wonderful ACD-sponsored day care center, went

         11  through the public schools, and as a parent I really

         12  feel the whole need for day care and a group setting

         13  and that start in education is very important, and

         14  the questions of quality were raised earlier and New

         15  York being such an important educational center and

         16  giving our kids that chance is really, really

         17  important.

         18                 The work and family issues and that

         19  juggle that we all experience really hits our

         20  low-income families especially hard, because these

         21  parents don't have a choice, they have to go to

         22  work, and the long waiting list for subsidized child

         23  care through ACD result in situations where often

         24  times the parents never get their kids in until kids

         25  go to public school and they are on waiting lists
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          2  forever.

          3                 In my union, in the early eighties,

          4  our union members actually mobilized and sent a

          5  petition to the union to form what is now called the

          6  Garment Industry Day Care Center, and it has become

          7  a model day care center because it is a strong

          8  collaboration between the union with our members and

          9  workers, the garment industry, which provides some

         10  fund-raising and back-up support to us, a

         11  community-based organization that provides the

         12  services, the Chinese-American Planning Council, and

         13  the Government, and these four parties working

         14  together built a day care center to service as

         15  garment workers.

         16                 It only have 75 slots, and we have

         17  waiting lists every year of hundreds. You know, we

         18  have membership in the thousands. So, what happens

         19  to those who do not have the access to this kind of

         20  day care, we find the following:

         21                 First of all, there is very

         22  substandard day care. And by substandard I mean

         23  spaces that are not really appropriate for children

         24  and for day care, caretakers who don't have the

         25  back-up training, support and so on. So, therefore,
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          2  put your kid someplace, find a babysitter, anybody,

          3  to watch the kid, it is not really the ideal

          4  situation for immigrant parents who want the day

          5  care center to teach their children basic skills so

          6  they can go into school. That is another problem.

          7                 We also, obviously, in the garment

          8  industry people have read the horror stories, women

          9  are doing garment work at home, they have

         10  home-workers trying to work on their sewing machine

         11  at the same time as having kids at home, that is not

         12  a good answer either.

         13                 We have a third situation where women

         14  have to bring the children to the factory, and so

         15  there is a perception perhaps of child labor, but

         16  often times it is a child care problem of women who

         17  have to bring their kids with them where they go.

         18  And we have actually, the union had a program called

         19  Don't Take Your Daughters To Work, because they are

         20  trying to discourage people from taking their

         21  children into a factory work place which is not safe

         22  for children.

         23                 Finally, we even have stories of

         24  women who have to send their children back to their

         25  home countries, and as far away as China or perhaps

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  in Central America and South America, because they

          3  just really don't have somebody reliable either that

          4  can really take care of their kids, and it is very

          5  wrenching because immigrants came here because they

          6  want a better life for their kids, and many times my

          7  members will tell me I am slaving away in the

          8  garment factory, I don't want my kids to work in

          9  this kind of working condition, but I came here

         10  because I want the opportunity for them.

         11                 And then you have kids who are

         12  latch-key kids, whose parents don't spend time with

         13  them. We have had members who come to us because

         14  they have been accused of child abuse because they

         15  are leaving young kids at a certain age at home by

         16  themselves. And these are the problems that

         17  low-income families face when there is not enough

         18  child care.

         19                 I just want to close by saying that I

         20  am really happy that after many years of our efforts

         21  and everybody else's efforts to advocate that the

         22  City and state are going to increase some funding.

         23                 I would like to just say that I read

         24  in the newspaper the stories about vouchers and

         25  parents having vouchers that couldn't be used. We
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          2  have seen many examples of that, parents who get a

          3  voucher and there is no place that they can use the

          4  voucher to put their kids, there aren't enough day

          5  care centers in the community.

          6                 As we increase the number of slots,

          7  we need to increase and build new day care centers,

          8  and then I think we really do need to look at that

          9  collaboration, you know, between unions, business,

         10  government, education, community-based groups. I

         11  will stop here. Thank you.

         12                 MS. NAYOWITH: Thank you so much.

         13                 Ms. Kelly, you were a young parent,

         14  inexperienced in school and on welfare when you had

         15  your first child, how did you find the child care

         16  you needed to stay in high school? And what kind of

         17  experience was it for you and your child?

         18                 MS. KELLY: Good morning. My name is

         19  Claudette Kelly, and I had my first son the day

         20  after my sweet 16 birthday. I dropped out of high

         21  school to care for him and when he was six months I

         22  decided to go back to high school to finish. I found

         23  a babysitter down the block and I was very unhappy

         24  with the service she gave me.

         25                 Just thinking about it, all the times
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          2  that he cried when I dropped him off, all the times

          3  he had bruises on him and she would say it was other

          4  kids, and I raised three kids and, you know, you

          5  haven't raised any. I felt so boxed in and I felt

          6  like I didn't have any options, but I needed her, I

          7  needed to finish high school. My grades were still

          8  suffering because I would be in class worrying about

          9  my child, he would be crying from the moment I

         10  dropped him off until I picked him up. So, I had to

         11  go to night school and to summer school to bring my

         12  grades up to finally get out of high school, so it

         13  was a very painful and terrible experience for me,

         14  in terms of that informal care.

         15                 MS. NAYOWITH: And after your early

         16  experience with informal care, you sought out a

         17  higher quality option for your child. Can you talk a

         18  little bit about your experience entering college

         19  and securing child care for your son and a job for

         20  yourself? And tell us how you found quality child

         21  care and a job.

         22                 MS. KELLY: Okay. After graduating

         23  from high school I went straight to college, to the

         24  Borough of Manhattan Community College, and I found

         25  out that they have a day care center, I was knocking
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          2  their door down, please take my child, I need child

          3  care. The Director Todd Borsoff said, of course we

          4  will find a slot for you, and when I brought my son

          5  there, there was a tremendous change in him. He

          6  wasn't crying when I dropped him off, he was crying

          7  when I picked him up, no, mommy, I don't want to go,

          8  I am having such a great time. He was eating better,

          9  he was happy, he was a different child. And that

         10  freed me to be able to go to classes and really do

         11  well, and I was on the Dean's list and I was able to

         12  graduate from College and I did work study at the

         13  day care center that helped me. I helped them back

         14  by giving my services and then I was hired as an

         15  office assistant.

         16                 MS. NAYOWITH: Thank you very much.

         17                 Ms. Barrios-Paoli, the United Way of

         18  New York City bridges the gap between businesses and

         19  the community, and has begun a major effort to

         20  increase the quality and availability of child care

         21  through the use of philanthropic funds.

         22                 Can you speak about why private

         23  sector funding for child care is necessary, and the

         24  ways that private sector investment can be used to

         25  stimulate planning, capacity expansion and the
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          2  public debate about child care.

          3                 MS. BARRIOS-PAOLI: Thank you, Gail.

          4                 My colleagues here have mentioned

          5  before me child care is not an issue that

          6  exclusively affects the lives of poor women. As

          7  options have opened to all women, and more and more

          8  they have joined the labor force, child care becomes

          9  a problem for all women and indeed all families.

         10                 For the private sector, child care is

         11  not only an issue that affects productivity and

         12  performance in the work place, but in times of labor

         13  shortage, which it is today, it represents a key

         14  factor in its ability to attract and retain good

         15  workers.

         16                 For the more enlightened members of

         17  the private sector, it is an issue of investment in

         18  the future. In order to guarantee a better, more

         19  prepared, better qualified labor force.

         20                 Given the most recent findings of the

         21  impact of early stimulation on the human brain and

         22  indeed early childhood education's ability to

         23  determine subsequent performance in school,

         24  intervening early and effectively in the lives of

         25  children is no longer just desirable, it should be a

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  requirement.

          3                 At some point in time in the past 100

          4  years or so, society by and large decided that all

          5  children were entitled to an education in order to

          6  be given the necessary tools to integrate themselves

          7  and be successful in our society.

          8                 Education was mandated to take place

          9  between the ages of five and 18, which if you think

         10  about it were numbers chosen based on the knowledge

         11  that we had at the timed, which did not believe that

         12  children before the ages of four or five had the

         13  ability to truly learn. We know better now, so maybe

         14  it is time to reconsider and redefine not only the

         15  ages between which we mandate and fund education,

         16  but the very nature of education itself going into

         17  the next century.

         18                 As you know, the private sector as

         19  always is willing to put money into research,

         20  planning and sometimes conduct demonstration

         21  programs. But as you also know, the large sums of

         22  money needed to support a system that truly ensures

         23  good, safe educational child care for all children

         24  are not going to come from the private sector. Or at

         25  least not from the private sector alone.
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          2                 That being said, there is much that

          3  the private sector can and will do by using funds

          4  strategically, by leveraging different funding

          5  streams, and by stimulating the dialogue.

          6                 That dialogue will eventually bring a

          7  change, and will change the perception of society

          8  towards child care.

          9                 Let me tell you a little bit about

         10  what we are doing at the United Way of New York

         11  City.

         12                 As you may know, about two years ago

         13  the United Way of New York City decided to

         14  restructure the way it distributed its funds. Among

         15  the things that they decided to do was to assign a

         16  pot of money, about $500,000 a year, to deal with

         17  what they termed as targeted needs, which meant

         18  basically areas that they identified as key concerns

         19  for New York City.

         20                 Most of these initiatives were

         21  grouped under the rubric of self sufficiency and as

         22  you know, day care is crucial for that.

         23                 They also wanted to have an impact on

         24  problems, and child care seemed to be a ripe area.

         25                 What they did which was creative was
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          2  that they conducted a series of focus groups and

          3  talked to over 60 people in the field, mostly

          4  experts and well-recognized advocates and providers,

          5  to find out what were the key themes and key

          6  problems in child care. We named this process Voices

          7  from the Field.

          8                 The key themes were things that have

          9  been mentioned here before. There were concerns

         10  about future staffing and upgrading of the work

         11  force; there were concerns about standards and

         12  accreditation of programs; there were concerns about

         13  family day care; they talked about the creation of

         14  networks. There were problems in terms of needs and

         15  availability of day care, and the need for

         16  information and dissemination.

         17                 United Way decided to fund programs

         18  in each one of the areas. We did so around June. We

         19  are looking at refunding most of those programs, and

         20  we have an ongoing commitment for the next three

         21  years.

         22                 As you can see, we have an ongoing

         23  commitment to child care and to the needs of

         24  children. We stand ready to work with you and to

         25  make sure that every child in the City of New York
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          2  has access to safe, educational and good quality

          3  child care.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 MS. NAYOWITH: Thank you.

          6                 Ms. Jacobs, you are working on the WK

          7  Kellogg Foundation's practitioner scholar project to

          8  help New York maximize opportunities presented by

          9  devolution. Could you tell us what your research has

         10  uncovered so far about the benefits and effects of

         11  quality child care and what other states and

         12  localities are doing about it.

         13                 MS. JACOBS: Thanks, Gail. Let me say

         14  first and foremost that as a mother of a

         15  one-year-old and a three-year-old, without

         16  affordable and quality child care I would not have

         17  been able to do the research at all.

         18                 We found through our research that

         19  there was definitely increasing recognition that the

         20  child care system must respond to increased demands

         21  as more parents enter the work force. Particular

         22  areas of concern included infant care, before and

         23  after school care, second and third shift care, care

         24  for sick children, funding for facilities

         25  construction, and care for children of teenagers who
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          2  must attend school.

          3                 We also found that there was

          4  increased need for special needs children, training

          5  for child care providers and quality improvement.

          6                 We found that states were in fact

          7  enhancing the quality of early childhood care and

          8  education. We found that there were several studies

          9  that focused on the importance of early childhood

         10  development, and the issues of quality standards and

         11  provider training, and most recently and most in the

         12  news has been the ABC Darian Project, in North

         13  Carolina, which underscored the importance of early

         14  childhood education. That study tracked 111 infants,

         15  starting in 1972, and found that those receiving

         16  early intervention were either still attending or

         17  had graduated from a four-year college, and that 65

         18  percent of this treatment group held jobs as opposed

         19  to just 50 percent of the control.

         20                 We also found in a 1998 study by the

         21  Rand Corporation, the conclusion that targeted early

         22  intervention programs do have substantial favorable

         23  effects on child health and development, educational

         24  achievement and economic well-being.

         25                 We also found that an increasing
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          2  number of states are in fact focusing their efforts

          3  on improving quality through licensing and

          4  accreditation. At least ten states are encouraging

          5  child care centers to become accredited by paying

          6  higher subsidy rates for accredited care.

          7                 For example, Wisconsin allows a ten

          8  percent higher reimbursement rate for accredited

          9  facilities. And we know that Connecticut is now,

         10  after several years, however, working with

         11  nonprofits on accreditation facilitation projects

         12  embarking on a statewide accreditation initiative.

         13                 We found that some states were

         14  improving access to care, we found a collaborative

         15  effort in Oregon addressed a shortage of infant and

         16  toddler care, and is expected to create an

         17  additional 700 slots for infants and toddlers.

         18                 We found that states were in fact

         19  devolving responsibilities and mobilizing

         20  communities. Almost half of the state programs

         21  devolve programmatic or financial responsibility to

         22  county governments or local councils, at least 15

         23  states are devolving programmatic responsibilities

         24  to the local level. And in some instances states are

         25  using existing infrastructure or are creating new
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          2  partnerships or councils. For example, a

          3  county-based non-profit incorporated partnerships

          4  run North Carolina's Smart Start Program, which has

          5  received national recognition.

          6                 We found that some states were

          7  investing greater resources than others were. For

          8  example, the Teach Early Childhood Project started

          9  in North Carolina and is now being implemented in

         10  Georgia, Florida and Illinois, is leveraging funds

         11  from a variety of sectors to support educational

         12  scholarships and wage increases for child care

         13  practitioners.

         14                 We found that some states were

         15  definitely more creative than others were. Most

         16  notable is North Carolina again with its Smart Start

         17  Program. That project emphasizes collaboration and

         18  planning at the local level with involvement from

         19  the non-profit business sector and local elected

         20  officials, as well as the faith-based communities.

         21                 And as we have heard this morning,

         22  increasingly foundations and corporations are

         23  recognizing the importance of child care.

         24                 In 1997, more than 38 foundations and

         25  corporations invested significant resources in
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          2  initiatives to improve the quality of child care.

          3                 An example is that of Conagra

          4  (phonetic), which actually pays a portion of the

          5  weekly cost of child care for its employees, and we

          6  have heard this morning the stories and the support

          7  of CitiBank, Goldman Sachs, and we know of Chase

          8  centers also.

          9                 We found that welfare reform across

         10  the country has definitely increased the need for

         11  child care throughout the country. A recent study by

         12  the Center for Law and Social Policy entitled child

         13  care after leaving welfare, early evidence from

         14  state studies reviewed several Leaver studies and

         15  the findings were significant. They found that most

         16  responding employed leavers, they are not receiving

         17  child care subsidies, a substantial share of

         18  responding leavers are unaware of the availability

         19  of subsidies. Overall, the most common care

         20  arrangements for employed respondents who have left

         21  welfare are family, friends, and informal

         22  arrangements. And we found there were striking

         23  differences between the child care arrangements of

         24  responding leavers who receive child care subsidies

         25  and the arrangements of those who do not receive
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          2  subsidies.

          3                 Use of formal care arrangements, i.e.

          4  centers, is substantially higher than those who do

          5  receive subsidies. The study also reported that

          6  child care problems make it more difficult to obtain

          7  employment, retain employment and move into better

          8  jobs.

          9                 We are grateful on behalf of the

         10  Scholar Practitioner Program to have had the

         11  opportunity to conduct this research and hope that

         12  it will help New York in its decision-making

         13  process.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MS. NAYOWITH: Thank you so much.

         16  Won't you all join me in thanking our panelists.

         17  Thank you so much.

         18                 $64 million is a lot of money. It is

         19  enough money to buy child care for about 10,000

         20  additional children, and it is a step in the right

         21  direction. But it is not the only step that needs to

         22  be taken.

         23                 In the public testimony you will hear

         24  about the overwhelming demand for care, about 30,000

         25  kids on the ACD waiting list, another 65,000
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          2  unserved children of HRA workfare engaged families,

          3  not to mention the unknown number of children

          4  eligible for transitional care because their parents

          5  have less welfare, and the 5,000 or more homeless

          6  kids whose parents will be called into work by HRA.

          7                 You will also hear about the

          8  thousands of income-eligible children whose parents

          9  decline to pay for a partially subsidized, who

         10  decline to apply for partially subsidized child care

         11  because the waiting lists were too long and there is

         12  no relief in site.

         13                 Will the new money take care of all

         14  of these children's needs? The answer is no. But

         15  let's not get caught up in a circular debate, and

         16  let's try something different.

         17                 Let's try to figure out how the City

         18  should proceed with the $64 million it knows it has

         19  to spend and use this opportunity to chart a

         20  direction for future allocations and expenditures.

         21                 Let's agree to use the new dollars to

         22  create a legacy for our children and spend tax

         23  dollars wisely. And let's do what works. Let's spend

         24  money on quality care in licensed and registered day

         25  care centers and family day care homes.
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          2                 Let's stop using public money for

          3  babysitting, and instead help unlicensed and

          4  unregistered in-home child care providers offer a

          5  safe and enriching experience for children in their

          6  care.

          7                 Let's agree that a mix of financing

          8  strategies are needed to make this happen, contracts

          9  to create stable child care supply where there isn't

         10  enough, vouchers so parents have affordable child

         11  care subsidies to meet their needs for off-hour

         12  services, and later on, even create a tax credit to

         13  make child care affordable for more working

         14  families.

         15                 Let's help the City figure out how to

         16  get the quality facility development and child care

         17  reserve money out of Albany and into the communities

         18  where children and families live.

         19                 And finally, if we are going to have

         20  a city where everybody works, let's acknowledge and

         21  accept responsibility for creating family life

         22  support that low and moderate income working and

         23  welfare to work families need to find and keep jobs.

         24  Let's plan a full employment economy that includes

         25  child care as a necessary complement to a paying
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          2  job.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 I am going to turn the floor over to

          5  Councilwoman Eldridge.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I would like to

          7  thank Gail and the Citizens Committee for Children

          8  of New York; the Children's Defense Fund, Donna

          9  Lawrence; and the Early Childhood Budget Group, and

         10  to thank all of the speakers on the panel. Your

         11  contributions were very helpful and I think your

         12  participation has been most admirable and desirable,

         13  and I wish we could see hundreds of panels with

         14  counterparts all over the place.

         15                 Thank you very much. Let's have a big

         16  hand.

         17                 We are now going to convene a formal

         18  hearing of the Women's Issues Committee and I would

         19  like to introduce Mike Abel, Council member from

         20  Queens, next to Una Clarke, and I have the great

         21  pleasure to introduce Eva Moscowitz, and I believe

         22  this is the first hearing that she has attended as a

         23  member. Thank you, and welcome. And Council Member

         24  Steve DiBrienza, who is chair of General Welfare was

         25  here and he will be back.
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          2                 If you want to testify today, please

          3  fill out a form that the gentlemen with the blazers,

          4  raise your hands, the Sergeant-At-Arms have, or you

          5  can come up to this desk, over here. Just put your

          6  name and address down.

          7                 Excuse me for one minute, I forgot

          8  one thing. The members of the panel who have written

          9  statements, we would appreciate it if you would

         10  leave us copies of those written statements, they

         11  would be very helpful in the transcript.

         12                 But if you want to testify, it is a

         13  very easy, simple process. Nobody is going to

         14  correct you, nobody is going to yell, nobody is

         15  going to criticize. We simply want to hear what you

         16  have to say.

         17                 But just for the record, because we

         18  are transcribing the hearing, we need to have your

         19  name and your address. So you need to fill out one

         20  of these form. And then what I think I will do is

         21  call about eight people at a time, and as I call

         22  those names, you will come up and sit here, we will

         23  remove these names, and then we will call on each

         24  person and then you will have your three minutes or

         25  however much you need, to testify.
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          2                 So, I need some of these slips. I

          3  have nobody to call upon.

          4                 Why don't we just have five people

          5  stand up now and go, all right? Thank you. All

          6  right, now I have a whole pile and look how big it

          7  is.

          8                 Have all of you filled out these

          9  forms?

         10                 MS. MENDEZ: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Okay. So why

         12  don't we just start at this side and you be the

         13  person, give us your name and start to talk, all

         14  right? Thank you.

         15                 MS. MENDEZ: Good morning, everyone.

         16  Citizens Committee for Children and members of the

         17  Council, thank you for the opportunity to testify

         18  before you today.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Will you please

         20  tell us your name first.

         21                 MS. MENDEZ: My name is Eileen Mendez,

         22  from the Committee for Hispanic Children and

         23  Families.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         25                 MS. MENDEZ: We are one of the five
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          2  child care resource and referral agencies in the

          3  City of New York. However, I am here today to speak

          4  to all of you, not as an employer of CHCF, but as a

          5  working mother.

          6                 At the early age of 18, I found

          7  myself face-to-face with the challenges of

          8  parenthood. Mine was no simple case of teen

          9  pregnancy, I was not going to give birth to just

         10  one, but two, twins at the age of 18.

         11                 Well, I remember looking straight up

         12  into nowhere and asking myself several questions.

         13  The first, of course, was how am I going to tell my

         14  father. And the second thing I asked myself was,

         15  will I be able to go to college? Will I be able to

         16  work? And who is going to care for my children?

         17                 Well, thanks to a family day care

         18  program in my community I was able to do all of that

         19  and the director of that program is sitting right

         20  here smiling, because she knows how desperate I was.

         21                 I realize today that out of all of

         22  the thoughts in my head when I sat in the doctor's

         23  office telling my father would be the easy part. So,

         24  I was introduced to a family day care provider, who

         25  today I call my angel, because she provided my
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          2  children with a healthy, safe, educational and

          3  nutritional environment, so that I could go to

          4  college and so that I could work.

          5                 And so here I am today, and some of

          6  you may be thinking, oh, how nice, and what a nice

          7  little great success story that is, and she was able

          8  to go to college, et cetera. Well, you know what?

          9  Last January I got a promotion, and this January I

         10  have to go for ACD recertification. And guess what?

         11  I am a hair away from not qualifying for subsidy,

         12  and again I am stuck, and again I am scared.

         13                 So, can I afford $500 a month per

         14  child for an after school program? No way. I almost

         15  want to tell my boss don't promote me anymore. I

         16  will stay exactly where I am, thank you very much.

         17  It is very scary.

         18                 So, in conclusion, I would like to

         19  say that we must all pull together to improve and

         20  expand the services that exist today, and work

         21  towards a day that child care will be available and

         22  affordable for all children and families.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 MS. KING: Good morning Citizens

          3  Committee for Children and members of the City

          4  Council, and Ronnie Eldridge, particularly you,

          5  because I haven't heard people talk about this issue

          6  as being a woman's issue, and it is definitely a

          7  woman's issue.

          8                 I am Debbie King, the Chair of the

          9  New York Union Child Care Coalition, which is

         10  affiliated with the AFL-CIO, we represent 19 active

         11  unions with over 700,000 workers here in New York

         12  who are parents of a quarter of a million children.

         13  So, we are very concerned with these issues.

         14                 I just returned last week from

         15  London, a Think Tank Meeting about women and

         16  employment. And one of the researchers spoke about

         17  the fact that child care is a key issue in equality

         18  for women. If we just heard the last speaker talking

         19  about our policies here in New York do not encourage

         20  women to work and work long term in better jobs.

         21  Because as soon as we start getting a promotion and

         22  earning a little bit more, the needed and crucial

         23  child care subsidies evaporate.

         24                 If we are serious about women being

         25  equal citizens, we need to have public policy that
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          2  supports us.

          3                 There are a number of other ways that

          4  this is a woman's issue.

          5                 One is, we hear about the older women

          6  who are caring for their grandchildren, concerned

          7  about the quality of care. Well, we, older women in

          8  our fifties, can also be making a very vital

          9  contribution to the work force, but if we need to

         10  choose between our own worklife and our

         11  grandchildren's many times we are choosing to stay

         12  home.

         13                 And thirdly, child care workers are

         14  predominantly women and the discrimination against

         15  women is evident when you look at the wages of child

         16  care workers, and part of quality is recognizing the

         17  importance of child care work and paying it.

         18                 So, I am very happy that the women's

         19  issues committee is addressing this issue.

         20                 The ultimate aim of our program

         21  really needs to be addressing the issues of quality

         22  and subsidy and access. And I know that it is very

         23  difficult because when we look at these issues it is

         24  extremely costly.

         25                 Why do we have so many problems? I
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          2  think from everybody in the panel, it is common

          3  sense that we should have subsidized child care. Why

          4  don't we? It costs a lot of money. But it is worth

          5  it, and I urge the City Council to work with the

          6  Advocacy groups and with the parents. Do not allow

          7  us to develop a program that doesn't work, because

          8  we are trying to develop a cheap program.

          9                 We need to have a vision and we need

         10  to work together to achieve that vision.

         11                 Our coalition is certainly not

         12  opposed to TANF recipients receiving child care. The

         13  opposite. We are completely for it.

         14                 But we believe that the way the City

         15  of New York is implementing the program is cynical,

         16  it is opportunistic.

         17                 You cannot give child care subsidies

         18  to someone going from welfare to work, and then when

         19  they start working, withdraw those subsidies.

         20                 Just like it doesn't make sense when

         21  people start earning a little bit more, to withdraw

         22  their subsidies.

         23                 We need a policy that makes sense. We

         24  need to create an eligibility scale and we need to

         25  say that a percent of the money that we get from New
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          2  York State and the federal government and a percent

          3  of the money that New York sets aside goes to

          4  working families and we recommend that 50 percent of

          5  the money should go to working families.

          6                 We also recommend that New York City

          7  at the very least raised the ACD fee scale to 1999

          8  levels of poverty, it is now at 1990 levels. And

          9  this in itself, for example, for a family of two

         10  would raise it from 27,000 to 31,000 for eligibility

         11  and a family of four raise it from 31 to 37.

         12                 Similarly, we would like to see in

         13  the long-term 85 percent of median income, which is

         14  allowable by federal standards, be the income

         15  eligibility, which would be 44,000 for a family of

         16  four.

         17                 The other things that I just want to

         18  say is that, when I was at this conference in

         19  England, which made quite an impression on me, the

         20  Vice President of Marriot was speaking. And she

         21  emphasized that business cannot do this on its own,

         22  that we definitely need government subsidies.

         23                 I think we really need a tripartite

         24  program, workers, their unions, employers and

         25  government, in order to come up with the kinds of
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          2  program that makes sense.

          3                 The other theme of this conference

          4  was that child care is necessary for a well

          5  functioning economy, and I think that we are all

          6  concerned with employment here in New York, we are

          7  concerned with employment of our current workforce

          8  and we are concerned with employment for our future

          9  workers, and both of those take an investment.

         10                 Lastly, I just want to conclude and

         11  say that New York City is also an employer, a very

         12  large employer of hundreds of thousands of people.

         13  And New York City can use your role, our role as an

         14  employer, to create model practices.

         15                 We do not have child care for the

         16  employees of the City of New York. Right now I know

         17  that tomorrow the Transport Workers Union, member of

         18  our coalition, is going into bargaining with the

         19  Transit Authority and is looking for child care

         20  subsidies as part of their negotiation, and I would

         21  urge everyone in this City Council to use your

         22  influence to support the Transit Authority agreeing

         23  to that proposal and in the upcoming municipal

         24  negotiations, that the City should be a model

         25  employer and should be providing child care centers
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          2  and subsidies for City workers.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: May we just

          5  interrupt you for one minute, because we have a

          6  class that wants to testify I believe, and they have

          7  to get back to school.

          8                 How are we going to do this? Go

          9  ahead. Why don't the children come over here so we

         10  can all see them.

         11                 Now, just everybody turn around and

         12  face the audience, not me. You should face us but I

         13  want everybody to see your beautiful faces.

         14                 MS. ROGOVIN: Hi. I am Paula Rogovin,

         15  and I am a teacher in New York City schools for the

         16  last 27 years, and I still love it and these are my

         17  wonderful children, it is the first grade class.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Tell us the

         19  school.

         20                 MS. ROGOVIN: We are at Manhattan New

         21  School PS 290, and one of our children, Emily --

         22  where are you, Emily? Her mom is with Citizens

         23  Committee for Children. And we interviewed her about

         24  her job and she told us what it was like being an

         25  advocate and she said she doesn't go to places
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          2  alone, she always helps people organize for their

          3  rights. So, she told us about the hearing and we

          4  said, well, we have to go with her and fight for

          5  child care.

          6                 Almost all the children in this class

          7  have been to nursery or child care and you can see

          8  that they have had such a wonderful experience

          9  before they entered public school, it is really,

         10  really essential.

         11                 I brought with me, this is book 1.

         12  This is from the early seventies and I see some

         13  people from the early seventies from the old battle

         14  we had. How many people are from that? (applause)

         15  yes. We got together, we set up our own day care

         16  centers, we had hundreds of volunteers, which is

         17  actually not the way to run a day care center, with

         18  hundreds of volunteers, and we found out that there

         19  were $2 million that was supposed to have been spent

         20  on child care and it wasn't. So, we marched and we

         21  ticketed and we sat in and we got arrested and all

         22  of those things, that this document, that struggle

         23  from the early seventies, and the struggle of our

         24  particular child care center that we set up in

         25  Washington Heights, the Washington Heights Child
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          2  Care Center, which still exits.

          3                 I brought this picture, Raglon Wolf,

          4  recognize my baby, and this is from one of those

          5  early marches and it was in 1976 when they raised

          6  the fees too high. When they made people ineligible

          7  to use the day care centers that we fought so hard

          8  for. When they cut the funding. And this is me with

          9  my baby who is now 24, and it says, child care

         10  centers not bombers. And I keep this close to my

         11  side because I might need it again. As you see, we

         12  need it again and again and again.

         13                 My three sons attend a child care

         14  center in New York City, two in New York City, and I

         15  think they are the most important, the best options,

         16  the best quality option for the children and for New

         17  York.

         18                 I taught in Washington Heights for 20

         19  years before I went to Manhattan New School, and I

         20  met many, many children, I work with many families

         21  where the children did not go to child care centers,

         22  the centers were full, and so many children did not

         23  go, and I saw the difference, when children have had

         24  an opportunity to make friends, to play, to hear

         25  stories, to hear songs, to hear other languages, and
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          2  so on, that is what they need before they attend

          3  kindergarten and first grade, then they will be

          4  really, really ready for the heavy duty work that we

          5  give them in the schools.

          6                 I have a friend I travel with to work

          7  every day and her son Diago had a speech problem and

          8  he had a lot of trouble with his language

          9  development, and I kept saying send him to day care,

         10  send him to a child care center. She did, and let me

         11  tell you, within a week the child was talking.

         12  Because you hear other children, you are influenced

         13  by so many people, so many adults and it is so

         14  important for the children's development.

         15                 I urge the City to use the money to

         16  set up more day care centers, quality day care

         17  centers, it is absolutely critical.

         18                 We have a child in our class, the

         19  grandson of Anthony Alvarado, and I know many of you

         20  have -- where is Jason. Right here. Jason say hello.

         21  I remember, and I know many of you would remember

         22  when he set up all day kindergarten. How many of you

         23  remember that? What a difference it made. I have

         24  taught first grade for many years. You can tell the

         25  difference between a two-hour program and a full-day
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          2  kindergarten. There are people who would agree with

          3  me on that, that all day kindergarten was essential,

          4  and it made our work in first grade and the other

          5  grads so much easier. So, I urge you to press for

          6  more child care centers and programs, formal

          7  programs for children, and it is a really nice thing

          8  for people who were in that struggle so long ago.

          9                 We have a parent here from our after

         10  school program, Leslie Profetti. I don't know if

         11  there is time for her to say anything, but our

         12  school has an after school program.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: We would love

         14  to hear from her but we have 70 witnesses that have

         15  signed.

         16                 MS. PROFETTA: I signed up so.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Well, if you

         18  are there say a few words.

         19                 MS. PROFETTA: Okay, I am the

         20  Executive Director of the After School Program at

         21  Manhattan New School this year. We fought very hard

         22  among a lot of competition to get a grant from the

         23  Task Corporation to start this after school, and I

         24  guess I just want to say that there was such

         25  competition to get the grant, there is so much need
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          2  for quality after school for the people who work and

          3  need their children in good care until six o'clock.

          4  And the grant is great but it barely covers the cost

          5  in any case. So, money is clearly needed for after

          6  school as well.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: May I say

          8  something?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you.

         11                 As the Council Member who not only

         12  represents PS 290, Manhattan New School, which is an

         13  outstanding school, but also as somebody who lives

         14  within, I live right around the corner, and my

         15  mother wants to know how long it is going to be, I

         16  just got married in July and my mother wants to how

         17  long it is going to be until we send kids to 290.

         18                 I want to thank you all for coming

         19  down. It is a great school and a great experience

         20  for the kids. We particularly appreciate your

         21  sharing your stories with us of what it is like to

         22  grapple with this problem every day. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you. This

         24  is our problem, we have 70 people who have signed up

         25  to speak, so you have three minutes, but if you
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          2  don't need the full three minutes, we would

          3  appreciate it. And if you have something to say that

          4  has already been said, just tell us that. But let's

          5  go on. I am going to try to do this timer, so you

          6  will see how many minutes you have left or seconds

          7  or something, so let me see what I can do.

          8                 Thank you very much for letting us

          9  take your time.

         10                 MS. NOONAN: Thank you for listening

         11  to us. My name is Kathleen Noonan, I am an attorney

         12  who has worked on child care issues. I am currently

         13  a senior consultant at the Annie E. Casey Foundation

         14  in Baltimore, and I am actually going to turn our

         15  attention to some specific things that I think the

         16  Council can do, commenting very specifically on the

         17  emergency regulations dealing with informal care in

         18  New York, because I think there are some problems in

         19  them. I think there are problems that as the City

         20  Council thinks about what they can do legislatively

         21  and most important from a budget perspective. If

         22  they examine the holes in these regs, they will see

         23  that there is lots that they can do right away.

         24                 So, I am going to focus on three

         25  problems in the regulations that I think get in the
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          2  way of good quality.

          3                 The first problem is on the issue of

          4  accountability. In the regulations, the emergency

          5  regulations basically require the provider, the

          6  informal provider to enroll themselves in the social

          7  service districts. They do this on the attestation

          8  of themselves and parents only. You have to ask

          9  yourselves, how can we be giving our kids quality

         10  day care if we are taking attestations from

         11  providers and parents that the programs that their

         12  children are going to meet safety standards around

         13  fire, around electrical issues, around hazardous

         14  waste. I have to say, just speaking as a lawyer for

         15  a second, that from a liability perspective I don't

         16  believe that these attestations from parents would

         17  hold up in court. I think the City could look at

         18  some liability problems. I would rather you not take

         19  it from that perspective and just look at it from

         20  the perspective of quality, that maybe we need to

         21  think about accountability of these providers.

         22                 I think from a systems perspective,

         23  that we have to ask ourselves how can we be giving

         24  these information providers so much money, and

         25  simply monitoring them on the basis of what the
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          2  parent and the provider has said, not getting the

          3  system in there to actually take a look at the

          4  programs.

          5                 The second issue that I want to talk

          6  about that I think speaks about quality issues again

          7  is access by parents. Under the emergency

          8  regulations, parents only get help for child care if

          9  they, quote, request it. They only get a referral to

         10  two programs that can help their children if they

         11  demonstrate an inability to find care themselves.

         12  And the way they demonstrate an inability is by

         13  showing that they have gone through a list that the

         14  social service district has given them, and that

         15  they have somehow managed, via vague instructions,

         16  to go to the CCR&R, the resource and referral

         17  centers, and figured out that there wasn't child

         18  care available.

         19                 Obviously this kind of system is not

         20  going to provide good access for parents.

         21                 My time is up, I have two more points

         22  to make.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I will make an

         24  exception. You see how strict I am, but go on.

         25                 MS. NOONAN: Okay.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Sorry.

          3                 MS. NOONAN: I am happy to follow the

          4  rules.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Don't think I

          6  am going to do it in every case.

          7                 MS. NOONAN: Okay, I will be very

          8  quick. But I have to say, again, from a legal point

          9  of view I don't think that such vague unresource

         10  directives to parents, to find care with no

         11  assistance, can hold up.

         12                 I can't imagine that the system can

         13  actually say to the parents well you haven't found

         14  care, so we won't make you do the job placement, but

         15  we are going to continue to let the welfare clock

         16  tick on you.

         17                 More worrisome is that the social

         18  service district actually has the ability under the

         19  regulations to say that the parent hasn't

         20  demonstrated inability, and they can make that

         21  finding by simply saying we gave you a list of 100

         22  providers, maybe the providers were in your borough,

         23  maybe they weren't but you didn't attest that you

         24  went through every provider and showed that there

         25  wasn't care available.
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          2                 Now, it may not be that egregious but

          3  you can see there are major holes in these

          4  regulations where parents are going to get stuck and

          5  their kids are not going to get served.

          6                 Finally, I just have to say from a

          7  capacity building perspective, although I applaud

          8  the regulations in that they want the informal

          9  providers to enroll, and I understand that there are

         10  issues around whether these providers should be

         11  licensed, I don't think that it is too far to say

         12  that maybe we should move towards some kinds of

         13  registration and maybe some sort of connection

         14  between these providers and the CCR&Rs. Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         16                 One of the reasons I let your

         17  testimony go beyond is that it is an issue of great

         18  concern to this Committee. And we originally wanted

         19  all family day care providers to be connected to a

         20  network, and we were told that that would then

         21  interfere with parental choice, which I think may be

         22  a legal issue, but I am not sure and I would have

         23  rather engaged in a discussion or even a court case.

         24  We go to court too often for bad things and not

         25  enough for good things.
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          2                 And for some reason we have been

          3  unable to pass legislation in the Council that would

          4  at least increase the inspections and the

          5  accountability, and this Committee has passed out a

          6  bill, but it hasn't been brought to the floor so I

          7  hope that people will begin to look at that and

          8  support us in our efforts to pass that legislation

          9  because we are spending much too much money in

         10  informal care with the use of public money that has

         11  no accountability, no regulations, no safety

         12  standards or anything. So thank you very much.

         13                 MS. FRANCIS: Good morning. My name is

         14  Sophia Francis, and I am the Assistant Director at

         15  Cortelyou Early Childhood Center in Brooklyn, New

         16  York.

         17                 Our center caters to a diverse

         18  population of students composed of

         19  African-Americans, Caribbean Americans, Puerto

         20  Ricans, Mexicans, Asians and Polish students.

         21                 Our Center houses 150 preschoolers

         22  and 76 after school students. We provide service

         23  mostly for the people who live and work within our

         24  community.

         25                 Today I would like to touch briefly
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          2  on two major areas that I believe must be considered

          3  when determining how these allocated child care

          4  funds should be spent. The two areas are City day

          5  care, as well as subsidized day care vouchers.

          6                 First, city day cares. City day cares

          7  are not the solution to child care in everyone's

          8  community. This is because not all communities have

          9  city day cares. Similarly, this is true for my

         10  center's community, located roughly between the

         11  Kensington and Flatbush area. City day care vouchers

         12  issued to parents in my community for subsidized or

         13  free child care services have been little to no help

         14  for our community's parents. This is due to the fact

         15  that the nearest city day care in relation to our

         16  community is over 25 blocks away, and it is not

         17  easily accessible by one train or one bus, but is

         18  accessible via train and a bus ride or two buses.

         19                 Many of the day cares in our

         20  community, including mine are privately owned

         21  center-based day cares, which most of our parents

         22  pay for their child care service out of pocket,

         23  agency of child development vouchers, company

         24  reimbursement checks or via other government

         25  programs, such as Begin, OES, et cetera.
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          2                 However, many of our community

          3  residents who cannot access any of these payment

          4  options, seek alternative services of child care,

          5  such as babysitters, family members, or as far as

          6  one parent choosing to stay home.

          7                 Thus, how can City funds help parents

          8  in my community? This brings me to my second point.

          9  Reissuing subsidized day care vouchers to parents

         10  and communities where city day cares are not

         11  present. All of the time parents at my center

         12  inquire about subsidized child care programs, this

         13  could be because their home situation has changed,

         14  there used to be two parents, now there is only one,

         15  only one parent is working, or there has been a new

         16  addition to their family. Basically their financial

         17  situation has changed and their family is now

         18  undergoing a hardship.

         19                 We usually refer these parents to the

         20  agency of child development and tell them to inquire

         21  as to how they can receive financial assistance.

         22                 Many of our parents return stating

         23  that the waiting lists are real long and they are

         24  told not to really count on it. Some are even told

         25  that the wait period could be as long as three to
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          2  five years.

          3                 What do these parents do? Some

          4  withdraw their students and keep them at home with

          5  babysitters or family friends, others struggle to

          6  continue paying the school fee as soon as their

          7  child reaches public school age withdraw them from

          8  our program.

          9                 An extreme case would be a parent I

         10  served for a year and half who this year ran into

         11  financial difficulties and no longer was capable of

         12  paying her child school fee, and what she did was at

         13  a week's notice relocated to Texas because she said

         14  she could no longer keep up with the economic

         15  demands of our city.

         16                 Please remember that providing

         17  children with an early childhood education is very

         18  important and essential for the growth of our

         19  nation's children.

         20                 These early years of a child's life

         21  are the most impressive educable as well as

         22  fundamental to the continuing growth as an

         23  individual within our society.

         24                 Once again, please consider the

         25  ramifications of solely relying on city day cares as
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          2  our city solutions providing early childhood

          3  education.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 MR.: I good morning, or good

          7  afternoon. This young lady touched about all of the

          8  basis I was going to touch.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Please give us

         10  your name.

         11                 MR. GEBBIA: My name is Philip Gebbia,

         12  I own and operate Castle Day Care on Staten Island.

         13                 I am here as an advocate for the

         14  children of Staten Island, because Staten Island

         15  gets a little shortchanged. I look at the list here

         16  and we got the smallest little box of all of those

         17  big boxes up there as needing child care. We do need

         18  child care.

         19                 There are long waiting lists in City

         20  agencies. Some of the City agencies are deplorable.

         21  They are filthy, they have asbestos, they have lead,

         22  they are being gutted out, cleaned out, it is just a

         23  mess. Inexperienced case workers, families go down

         24  to Begin programs, HAR programs, ACD programs, case

         25  workers don't know what they are doing. They put
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          2  them through hell.

          3                 We are going to have agencies for our

          4  children, it's deplorable to be standing here

          5  begging for money for children of the City of New

          6  York, the richest city and state in the union, here

          7  to beg for money when we all know we need child care

          8  money so parents can go to work, off welfare, at

          9  workfare, for child care. Payments take too long for

         10  privately-owned day cares like myself, who have

         11  empty slots that I could fulfill right now, 60

         12  positions, because I have infants, preschool, after

         13  school, kindergarten, summer programs, and the

         14  agencies that are around me that are City-run are

         15  full.

         16                 So why not bring back the vouchers,

         17  help the parents get off of welfare, get onto

         18  workfare, give them child care?

         19                 Confusion. The parents are totally

         20  confused. I mean the way the bureaucracy runs down

         21  to get the paperwork done is ridiculous. They come

         22  to my agency crying, crying that they are there for

         23  two days and do not get any help. You go down, try

         24  to call them on a Thursday or a Friday afternoon,

         25  the lines are busy.
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          2                 I go down, I find the jacks are

          3  pulled out on the phones, they are sitting around

          4  talking, and no one can get through, payments are

          5  behind. I am owed $13,311. That is ludicrous.

          6                 The answer is not just more child

          7  care, it is more quality child care. And the City

          8  can't provide it. For some reason the City just

          9  doesn't care about our kids. And after being in the

         10  system and being a special ed teacher who retired 32

         11  years, I am tired of seeing money spent to I don't

         12  know where. Where is the money going?

         13                 State lottery, 45 percent of the

         14  money is supposed to go into education. How come we

         15  are still paying for out-of-pocket for supplies and

         16  whatnot?

         17                 The whole compassion is for the

         18  children, we are forgetting our children. Providers

         19  shouldn't have to wait months and months for

         20  payment, so we can put the money back into the

         21  system.

         22                 The people that work at the agency

         23  should have more education and care more about the

         24  children instead of not being able to be reached and

         25  given your bureaucracy on top of stories, that is
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          2  totally ridiculous.

          3                 So, please, if the money is going to

          4  be spent, and all boroughs get the money, let the

          5  children get the money. Let the politicians open up

          6  their eyes and realize we do have a problem in New

          7  York and we shouldn't have it.

          8                 Thank you very much for your time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Okay, let's go.

         10  Thank you. Would you give us your name, please.

         11                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: My name is Nicholas

         12  Cunningham, and I am a New York City parent and

         13  grandparent, a pediatrician, a public health

         14  physician and I am the Head of Child Protection at

         15  Columbia Presbyterian, and every week I see children

         16  who have been in inadequate day care, often family

         17  day care, where terrible things happen, and then we

         18  have to try and pick up the pieces.

         19                 The consequences for those children

         20  and those families are life-long. And when we talk

         21  about this being costly, I don't agree. What we need

         22  to do is not costly, it is the best investment, and

         23  even paying child care workers what they should be

         24  paid, they are doing the most important job except

         25  for the parents in the world. Even so, it is cheap
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          2  and it is -- I don't say cheap but it is economical

          3  because it pays off, so it shouldn't be considered

          4  costly.

          5                 Now, I was in Albania three weeks

          6  ago, and that is the poorest country in Europe, and

          7  70 percent of their children are in licensed day

          8  care, and that is an incredible thing when we look

          9  at this country and what we do not do, compared to

         10  any European country, including the poorest, we can

         11  do much better, and this should be the beginning of

         12  our campaign.

         13                 Fifty percent of eligibles, according

         14  to what we see here, are actually getting quality

         15  licensed day care. And this is true of Head Start

         16  nationwide. Head Start I like because it involves

         17  the parents in the program, and I think we should be

         18  doing that.

         19                 So, when the children go home they

         20  continue to get the kinds of things that a lot of

         21  this -- I didn't know what I was doing when I first

         22  had a child, most of us don't, so we can learn from

         23  these programs and we should.

         24                 Now, what we have in New York City

         25  and in this country is a national disgrace. We are
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          2  not investing in our children and we can do it. We

          3  have got the money to do it. This is absolutely the

          4  time to do it, and this should be the beginning of a

          5  campaign to provide quality, well-paid, supervised

          6  and adequately trained day care for all our

          7  children. All our children.

          8                 If we do not, we pay off.

          9                 As a public health physician, I can

         10  tell you I can see it clinically the next day. I can

         11  see it in our child advocacy centers where the

         12  maltreated children come to be seen. But I see it

         13  down the road because I have been in practice for 25

         14  years and I see what happens to our neglected

         15  children over the long course.

         16                 So, we can do better, and this, New

         17  York should be leading the nation. We have the

         18  resources, we got the capacity, we got the money and

         19  we got the will, so let's do it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         21  Thank you very much.

         22                 The next panel will be Emily Menlo

         23  Marks, Carol Simpkins, Loz Agosto, Michelle Martinez

         24  and Ed Ott. So, will you start to come up, please.

         25                 And then after that, the next panel,
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          2  and I hope you will be ready to come up, will be

          3  Melanie Hartzog, Valeagua Siaai, Bennett Long,

          4  Ronette Long, Cachita and Renee Mapitt.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Just before

          6  this group testifies --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes, you are

          8  going to be after these five.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Let me say how

         10  proud I am to come join you today, my colleagues,

         11  because this is -- as you know, I have been a day

         12  care teacher, a day care director and an educational

         13  consultant and although I don't serve on your

         14  Committee, I have a continuing interest in the work

         15  that you do. But I am most proud this morning, when

         16  Sophia Francis came up to speak, she grew up in her

         17  mother's day care center. Her mother formed a day

         18  care center and the Department of Health gave her

         19  all kinds of hell, had her before all kinds of

         20  tribunals and somebody told her about me, and

         21  although she was far away from my district, and from

         22  my community, I went in to take a look at the

         23  program and I am the person who helped her to meet

         24  all of the City's and state regulation in order to

         25  have this day care center. Now that I represent that
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          2  community I am proud that I did, because her

          3  daughter who was then three or four years old, is

          4  now the Assistant Director in that program, and when

          5  people ask me who votes for you, Una Clarke, I say

          6  the children that I helped to educated in day care.

          7                 So, I am extremely pleased to see

          8  both Ms. Francis and her daughter, and to tell her

          9  how much of a resource the center has become and an

         10  anchor in the 40th District that I represent, and

         11  Sophia, I am so proud of you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         13                 We are going to start the new round.

         14  Again, please be as brief as you can be. I know it

         15  is not fair, but soon we are going to have to even

         16  let people talk for less than three minutes.

         17                 All right, Ms. Marks.

         18                 MS. MARKS: Good afternoon.

         19                 Thank you, Council Member Eldridge

         20  and the rest of the Women's Committee for hosting

         21  this very important hearing.

         22                 You have heard from everybody and I

         23  want to thank the parents and children who have

         24  come, as well, about the importance of child care,

         25  and I would like to make a pitch that we call the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            88

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  child care, or early childhood education instead of

          3  day care. Because after all, we are not taking care

          4  of days, we are taking care of children.

          5                 I represent United Neighborhood

          6  Houses which is the umbrella federation for 37

          7  settlement houses in New York City, which provides

          8  services and activities to over half a million New

          9  Yorkers.

         10                 One of our most important programs is

         11  child care. Seven-thousand two-hundred children

         12  participate in affordable, reliable and educational

         13  child care centers at the settlement houses. In

         14  addition, under the aegis of our neighborhood

         15  networks for family child care, we have raised the

         16  standards and are providing quality nurturing

         17  education in family child care homes throughout the

         18  City, and we have over 2,000 children in these

         19  homes.

         20                 What is very important about both our

         21  child care facilities and these homes is that we try

         22  to offer flexible hours, particularly in the homes,

         23  because care for very young children and during the

         24  night or weekends is an extremely short supply.

         25  There is a dire need for more child care in this
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          2  City, but even more important, as more and more

          3  women enter the work force, is a shortage of child

          4  care that meets their needs in terms of hours and

          5  days, weekends and after hours.

          6                 We know from our member agency

          7  University Settlement on the Lower East Side that

          8  there is a significant demand for children as young

          9  as infants and toddlers. They have a waiting list of

         10  200 and they have actually shut the waiting list

         11  because what is the point of making people just

         12  wait. And most of those children are younger and are

         13  infants and toddlers.

         14                 In East Flatbush, 25,000 babies were

         15  born between 1990 and 1997, 73 percent of the women

         16  there have to go to work. A lot of women going to

         17  work, a lot of births, equal a lot of infants and

         18  toddlers who need child care. But the 1996 report by

         19  the Temporary Task Force on Child Care found slots

         20  only available for 6,400 infant toddlers, barely

         21  enough for East Flatbush, let alone for the entire

         22  City.

         23                 We issued a report last year and I

         24  have copies here for you, that says among the City's

         25  nearly 1,500 child care centers there is space for
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          2  just eight children around the clock, and

          3  approximately 40 more children could be cared for on

          4  weekends and up 1,055 during early morning and night

          5  hours.

          6                 Family child care providers can care

          7  for additional hundreds of children during night and

          8  weekend hours, but the scant amount of available

          9  child care clearly doesn't meet the need of a

         10  24-hour City like New York.

         11                 We have to remember what has been

         12  mentioned here already, that we are shortchanging

         13  children in the importance of early learning

         14  opportunities at a time when we are demanding more

         15  and greater achievement from them.

         16                 We must make child care a serious

         17  priority. We want the City to spend the new state

         18  funding, and we are very frustrated that it hasn't

         19  been spent, and I am sure that the City officials

         20  are frustrated as well. We are undermining

         21  employers, we are undermining parents, and we are

         22  undermining the opportunities of children to learn

         23  and to use the registered family child care

         24  providers that are ready to take them.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

          3                 MS. SIMPKINS: Hello. My name is Carol

          4  Simpkins and I am a resident of Brooklyn. However,

          5  today I am here representing the New York Black Cow

          6  Development Institute, better known as BCDI, New

          7  York.

          8                 BCDI New York is an affiliate of the

          9  National Black Cow Development Institute which has

         10  45 affiliate chapters nationwide dedicated to

         11  improving the lives of all children, but especially

         12  those of African descent. For almost 30 years, our

         13  national organization has sought to accomplish that

         14  goal through a dynamic agenda of direct services,

         15  public education programs, leadership training and

         16  research related to the status and needs of black

         17  children in America.

         18                 Here in New York our affiliates, more

         19  than 250 members, share that goal for children. We

         20  are parents, teachers, child care and child welfare

         21  professionals and others who have committed to

         22  ensuring that no child in New York is left behind.

         23                 The importance of quality early care

         24  and education programs is being reinforced to us all

         25  daily.
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          2                 Children who attend high quality

          3  child care centers develop stronger language and

          4  math skills than other children.  Children who

          5  attend quality child care programs and who have

          6  close relationships with their adult care-givers

          7  also develop better thinking and social skills than

          8  their counterparts.

          9                 For children considered to be at high

         10  risk of doing poorly in school, that is, children

         11  whose mothers have not finished high school, the

         12  link between quality child care and successful

         13  school performance, is known to be more important.

         14                 We all well know that New York has

         15  received $64 million in new state funds to increase

         16  the availability of child care opportunities

         17  throughout the City. As our City officials are

         18  deciding where and how these resources are to be

         19  applied, it is imperative that we inform them and

         20  continue to remind them about the need for high

         21  quality, affordable, and adequate levels of child

         22  care in all segments of our community.

         23                 The Annie E. Casey Foundation is

         24  supporting an effort by our national organization,

         25  to improve the use of data in child advocacy

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            93

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  efforts, starting with child care and welfare --

          3  starting in the child and welfare areas.

          4                 One of our sponsors is also the

          5  Citizens Committee for Children, who has been

          6  extremely instrumental in assisting us to gather

          7  information about what is happening here in New

          8  York.

          9                 It is important that we know the

         10  critical issues that are facing our City.

         11                 First, the need for child care

         12  services overwhelmingly exceeds the number of

         13  available openings. New York City has an estimated

         14  66,000 regulated full day care for children under

         15  six in child care centers and family day care;

         16  however, this number does not come anywhere near

         17  providing services to the almost 209,000 children.

         18                 According to many sources, there will

         19  be an increase of 65,000 children in need of quality

         20  child care based in the City's requirement for

         21  parents to work for their welfare checks by the end

         22  of the year.

         23                 The child care that is available

         24  often is not affordable or normal family incomes.

         25  Child Care, Inc., estimates that a single parent

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            94

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  working full time minimum wage would have to pay

          3  more than half --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I am sorry to

          5  interrupt you, but would you please just wind up.

          6                 MS. SIMPKINS: Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

          8                 MS. SIMPKINS: We are interested in

          9  wrap-around day care, which is immediate need for

         10  families participating in programs such as Head

         11  Start and Pre-kindergarten. The same is true for

         12  families working outside.

         13                 Funding should be provided to

         14  unlicensed in the form of child care, especially

         15  both caring for children zero to three years old, to

         16  ensure that they receive health and safety

         17  information and support services available.

         18                 Finally, the need for affordable

         19  child care space, has disproportionately impacted

         20  the City's communities of color.

         21                 Clearly, as the data demonstrates,

         22  the need for additional affordable and quality child

         23  care for New York City's children is overwhelming.

         24                 On behalf of BCDI New York, however,

         25  I simply ask each person assembled here remember
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          2  that this is a goal and that we must have for all of

          3  the City's children.

          4                 Thank you for this opportunity.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

          6                 Mr. Ott.

          7                 MR. OTT: Thank you, Councilwoman

          8  Eldridge.

          9                 I just wanted to say something before

         10  I get into my formal remarks. My name is Ed Ott, I

         11  am with the New York City Central Labor Council. I

         12  am here today representing Brian McLoughlin, our

         13  president.

         14                 But there was a woman who testified

         15  before named Paula Rogovin, who talked about the

         16  Washington Heights Child Care Center and the fights

         17  in the early seventies. I don't know, for some of

         18  the younger folks that are here, I was one of the

         19  people that sat in on that child care center. I was

         20  a worker at the hospital, and we were trying to

         21  organize the union when some of the community folks

         22  asked us to come and help.

         23                 And what we used to do in those days

         24  is we would go pick on a responsible institution and

         25  make them do their job.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            96

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 We would sit in their space and then

          3  we would demand that they would fund it, and in

          4  those days the young Danny Farrel was running a

          5  little City Hall out of the Autobahn Ball Room, the

          6  government found a way to help. We may have to go

          7  back to that.

          8                 Anyway, let's get formal. The Labor

          9  movement engages the issue of child care from two

         10  perspectives that are rooted in the mission of

         11  organized labor. Many who are members, and many of

         12  the City's working families utilize child care

         13  services every day in order to earn a living. For

         14  these working people, the search for affordable

         15  child care solutions is a constant pressure.

         16                 Lack of access to quality child care

         17  has been documented in recent reports as a central

         18  concern for the parents of 100,000 children for whom

         19  there is no available space.

         20                 It is the view of the New York City

         21  Central Labor Council that this problem will be

         22  exacerbated by expected undercounts in the upcoming

         23  census. The poor and the working middle class will

         24  find themselves competing for increasingly scarce

         25  slots, if action is not taken now.
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          2                 New York State has allocated $15

          3  million for construction and rehabilitation of child

          4  care centers. We urge that this money be utilized

          5  immediately.

          6                 We are also concerned as

          7  representatives of many workers employed in the

          8  various centers around the City. Parents, workers

          9  and professionals have expressed the desire to

         10  improve the quality of existing services, and the

         11  State and City Council have responded by allocating

         12  $65 million that could be used toward this end. The

         13  money is not being spent for lack of a plan. Staff

         14  development programs could be initiated using this

         15  money with plans already drawn.

         16                 In addition, the labor movement

         17  recognizes the economy of this city demands more of

         18  its workers and certainly more of their time. We

         19  therefore call on the City and the State to expand

         20  off-hour child care.

         21                 Money spent for child care should be

         22  looked at as part of what the City must do to remain

         23  competitive.

         24                 Invested in child care services

         25  allows more people to get access to employment.
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          2  Organized labor believes that child care services

          3  are essential to the efforts to move people from

          4  welfare to work and that the expansion of such

          5  services is a benefit to the employers of the City.

          6                 Reliable child care reduces lost time

          7  at work and contributes to increased productivity.

          8  Child care is a very good investment and should be

          9  treated accordingly.

         10                 Thank you for your time.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         12                 Are you one of a group?

         13                 MS. LUPIE: My name is Lenore Levi

         14  Lupie. I was already up here before.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I know. Go

         16  ahead.

         17                 MS. LUPIE: I am the owner of the

         18  Nursery Infant Toddler Center which is a small day

         19  care center in Washington Heights. We have 95

         20  percent of our enrollment is subsidized either

         21  through HRA or ACD.

         22                 Currently we are only 75 percent

         23  enrolled in the infant class. We just started two

         24  months in the infant class and preschool class, and

         25  we are only 60 percent enrolled in the toddler
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          2  class.

          3                 A couple of months ago I attended a

          4  conference with representatives from HRA, ACD,

          5  Bureau of Day Care, imploring people like myself to

          6  start new centers because there was such a need and

          7  all of this money was coming in.

          8                 I would love to open a second center,

          9  I love what I do, I love offering the service to the

         10  community and working with the children, and

         11  currently I am not fully enrolled with only a center

         12  capacity of 38 children. So, it is a very mixed

         13  message that there is all this money, but it is

         14  floating around some place where we can't get it,

         15  not to mention the thousands of dollars that are

         16  owed because the HRA system is so inefficient and

         17  poorly run. If it were my agency I would be

         18  embarrassed to show my face the way that there is

         19  mistakes and lack of documentation and the providers

         20  just get the raw end of the deal because the parents

         21  keep coming and there is no notification or proper

         22  communication.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Let me just

         24  interrupt you. Are you affiliated with a network?

         25                 MS. LUPIE: I am a day care center
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          2  owner, licensed day care. Not a family provider. I

          3  own a day care center of 38 children.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: You said HRA,

          5  are you getting children from OES?

          6                 MS. LUPIE: We take Begin checks and

          7  ACD vouchers. OES is the majority of our children.

          8  Even if a person's activity is suspended, we don't

          9  get the letter until a week later. We provide so

         10  much free care that is lost care that we can't get

         11  money back for. Which I just accept, I would like to

         12  just get the money for all the children that we do

         13  provide care for, never mind the few days late that

         14  those letters come.

         15                 It is very difficult to run a center

         16  at 75 percent capacity when it is only 38 capacity

         17  total. At this conference they said they were going

         18  to start issuing ACD vouchers to the tune of 500 per

         19  week -- 500 biweekly starting at that point. As of

         20  now, as far as I know, those have not been released

         21  from word of mouth by other directors, nobody has

         22  seen those yet, so I don't know what happened to

         23  those.

         24                 And I am a small business owner, I

         25  would love to continue to support the community but
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          2  the City has to back up this support to encourage

          3  small business owners to stay open and to open new

          4  centers to provide these alleged needs, but they are

          5  not putting the money to it, and small business

          6  owners can't survive without the City doing what

          7  they say they are going to do.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Could you just

         10  tell me what your name is?

         11                 MS. LUPIE: My name is Lenore Levy

         12  Lupie.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         14                 MS. MAGETT: Hello, my name is Ronette

         15  Magette, and I am from a program called LaCasita,

         16  which is affiliated with the United Bronx Parents.

         17                 This is a therapeutic community for

         18  women in treatment with their children. And I have

         19  noticed that since I have been there the child care,

         20  it has had a lot of support for me. I have a

         21  two-year old who is in treatment with me, and she

         22  needed a lot of attention as far as child care.

         23  While we are there, we are in groups and everything

         24  almost all day, so my child is in the nursery with

         25  the child care from 8:15 until about 8:00 at night.
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          2  And they have worked with her greatly. They have

          3  worked with her a lot.

          4                 The child care staff helped me see so

          5  my child could get evaluated to know that her fine

          6  motors need to be worked on, and she has learned a

          7  lot because before she went in there she wasn't

          8  talking to anyone, she wasn't corresponding with

          9  other children, and now she is to the point where

         10  she is asking me how I feel today, you know, and I

         11  am answering her back and she is giving me sentences

         12  and she wants to know what things are, so I know the

         13  child care there is working, it is something in her,

         14  you know?

         15                 I have a son who is also in special

         16  ed, and that is the way I feel, that child care is

         17  greatly needed also in this special ed area.

         18                 He doesn't have a behavioral problem,

         19  but he is the opposite, he is a little withdrawn and

         20  I feel that I was fortunate enough to have someone

         21  evaluate him to find, to realize that he had an

         22  emotional problem and to take actions to put him in

         23  a school where he could get help.

         24                 I feel that there is great quality

         25  child care there, because I would like to see more
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          2  people reach out to these children who need this

          3  child care in special areas and make a stand to help

          4  these children. Because I feel there is no children

          5  that are misbehaved today, but there are children

          6  that are misunderstood who need someone in the

          7  profession of childcare, you know, to guide them and

          8  show them another way to release the feelings of

          9  anger and hurt and pain that they feel inside and

         10  don't know how to express it other than acting out.

         11                 This is why I feel that quality child

         12  care in any area needs to be supported, funded and

         13  expanded.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         16                 MS. TICKLE: Hi. My name is Nancy

         17  Tickle, I am Director of Child Care at La Casita. I

         18  am here for a few reasons, to support the ladies

         19  that have so bravely come, have so much courage, but

         20  also, I taught in the Board of Ed for many, many

         21  years, I am a special ed teacher in my first career,

         22  and I can see the difference between the children

         23  who get good quality education, who get good quality

         24  day care and those who don't. I see the ones who

         25  don't in the special ed rooms. Sometimes there is
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          2  not always a direct correlation but if they don't

          3  get the care that they get when they are really

          4  young, they end up in special ed, and we don't have

          5  to do that the way that we do that today.

          6                 Also, at LaCasita, as Ronette

          7  mentioned, there is a mother and child treatment

          8  program. And we get at LaCasita, part of United

          9  Bronx Parents, we already get the connection that we

         10  couldn't ask for the ladies to do what they needed

         11  to do on a daily basis, if we didn't give them child

         12  care. There would be no way. What we are about is

         13  giving them child care, okay? We have the ladies

         14  there doing what they need to do to get back on

         15  their feet and we help take care of their children.

         16  They couldn't do that if we didn't have the second

         17  part, and I think a lot of people, not just for

         18  women that are in treatment but women for other

         19  reasons maybe need a break and need to get back on

         20  their feet and need to get their lives together. It

         21  can be abused or it can be a lot of different

         22  ladies, a lot of different types, and if we give

         23  them a break and we provide their children with

         24  care, and then, for example, you can go to groups

         25  and not have to worry about where your child is, you
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          2  can get yourself better and that is what we are

          3  there for. And I think in the long run, that I

          4  really believe that we serve two generations, we are

          5  at work, but I believe if we don't do what we are

          6  doing now, we will see those babies back in there as

          7  mothers, okay? So, we are going to see them, if we

          8  put our money and put the care into what we do now,

          9  we won't see it. If we don't, we can pay for it now

         10  or we can pay for it later.

         11                 You know, I worked there, most of my

         12  work was in jails, institutions, and group homes. We

         13  can pay for it now or we can pay for it later.

         14                 And the last thing I want to say is

         15  that I testified here about three years ago to help

         16  treatment, because I am a recovering alcoholic also,

         17  and this stuff works when you come here and you talk

         18  because treatment kept on going and I was heard, and

         19  I went back and I got my master's and I am director

         20  and I am a rehab counselor, so this stuff works.

         21                 That's why I bring these ladies with

         22  me, because you can actually be heard. Thank you

         23  very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I hope that we

         25  don't disappoint you, and that we will hear this
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          2  message.

          3                 Thank you. Would you start, please?

          4                 MS. HENDERSON: Good afternoon. My

          5  name is Cheryl Henderson, and I am also from

          6  LaCasita drug treatment program. I really don't have

          7  a speech prepared, but I will just say that today I

          8  have golds (phonetic), and I have a three-year-old

          9  son and I am in treatment and I would like to know

         10  that when I re-enter into society, that I will not

         11  have day care problems. I would like to know that my

         12  son is safe and he is in a quality day care for

         13  that, and I can enter into society and be a

         14  productive member.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Melanie

         17  Hartzog, is she here?

         18                 MS. HARTZOG: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes.

         20                 Michelle Martinez, are you here?

         21                 MS. MARTINEZ: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes.

         23                 Luz Agosto?

         24                 MS. AGOSTO: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: All right.
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          2                 And Ms. Ayala?

          3                 MS. AYALA: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Okay, thank

          5  you. Okay, let's go.

          6                 Why don't we just start at this end,

          7  please. And then after this we are going to hear

          8  from members of the Administration and then we are

          9  going to go back to the public testimony.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 MS. VELEZ: My name is Rebecca Velez

         12  and I am a case manager and I am going to be letting

         13  Luz Agosto speak in Spanish and I am going to

         14  translate afterwards when she finishes.

         15                 Quickly, she said my name is Luz

         16  Agosto, I have seven children and I live in the

         17  Lower East Side. Last year I was called to do WEP,

         18  the Work Experience Program, for four hours a day,

         19  which was later increased to eight hours a day.

         20  Having this additional four hours of work made it

         21  very difficult for me because I had no one to pick

         22  up my seven children.

         23                 I found an after school program for

         24  my children but then I had to arrange for someone to

         25  pick them up at their individual schools and take
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          2  them to the after school program a few blocks away.

          3                 During all of these problems I took

          4  training with the University Settlement to become a

          5  licensed family day care provider. I received my

          6  license a few months later. In fact, a year ago an

          7  article about my experience as a mother and a child

          8  care provider was reported in New York Times.

          9                 At present with my license I am able

         10  to work and also pick up my children.

         11                 The Begin Program has repeated told

         12  me that I have to work eight hours every day for

         13  them or somehow find children to care for.

         14  University Settlement Project Home has supported me

         15  throughout this experience and helped me find

         16  children to take care of.

         17                 They connected me to a mother that

         18  needed child care for two daughters while she

         19  participated in OES activities and then a part-time

         20  job. We took care of all of the paperwork and

         21  payment details, however, my problems even

         22  increased. The mother of the children I care for was

         23  receiving child care payments through OES and

         24  welfare supplemental payments. These payments were

         25  never issued on time and there was a struggle to get
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          2  them. I got paid once a month for a two-week period

          3  of the previous month, which basically means I

          4  waited six weeks to get paid for only two weeks of

          5  work.

          6                 I eventually brought documents to --

          7  I eventually stopped working for this family and

          8  brought documents to welfare to show that I no

          9  longer had extra income. However, as of today, my

         10  budget has not been changed.

         11                 I struggle financially with no steady

         12  income. I have been in search of clients, I have

         13  tried outreaching and I have made flyers promoting

         14  by business and there has been no response.

         15                 I am now scared that I will not find

         16  clients to provide child care services to and would

         17  have to be called to Begin and then worry about my

         18  own children again.

         19                 I would like the public agencies to

         20  assist licensed providers, as well as parents in

         21  need of child care in exchanging information to each

         22  other.

         23                 To my knowledge, there is a list

         24  available of registered providers that are not

         25  necessarily licensed. It would be better for
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          2  licensed providers like me who took extensive

          3  training to be able to advertise ourselves and

          4  services to working parents, day care centers and

          5  public agencies. This will help parents who need

          6  child care and providers who need to work.

          7                 In conclusion, I am a mother, a

          8  provider and I want to work and provide loving and

          9  caring services to my own children, as well as to

         10  other children of working parents.

         11                 MS. MARTINEZ: Hello. My name is

         12  Michelle Martinez. I am a parent from University

         13  Settlement. I have a four-year-old daughter which is

         14  physically challenged and uses a prosthesis. She was

         15  having trouble adjusting to her prosthesis. Her

         16  rehabilitation doctor felt it would be beneficial

         17  for her to attend school so she can get the

         18  motivation she needs by being around other children.

         19                 It was suggested that she attend a

         20  preschool for disabled children. For her to be

         21  placed in a school for disabled children, she needed

         22  to be evaluated. In this evaluation she did very

         23  well, and it was determined that she was a gifted

         24  child. She is a child with physical disabilities,

         25  but --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: If you could

          3  just move the microphone a little bit closer to you

          4  then I think more people would hear you.

          5                 MS. MARTINEZ: She is a child with

          6  physical disabilities but has no mental disability.

          7  This is the problem started. Now she was stuck in

          8  the middle.

          9                 Let me further elaborate on this. At

         10  this point she could not be placed in a school for

         11  disabled children, because the children were both

         12  physically and mentally. In addition to this, she

         13  could not be mainstreamed because she is physically

         14  challenged.

         15                 I was then give a list of seven

         16  schools in the Lower East Side communities to visit

         17  and choose from. Six schools rejected me because the

         18  building and teaching staff were not equipped to

         19  deal with a child with physical disabilities. After

         20  being turned down six times, by the seventh school I

         21  was discouraged and convinced that I would not be

         22  able to find a school. Fortunately I found

         23  University settlement.

         24                 The staff had no experience but were

         25  willing to learn. They requested to attend workshops
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          2  to receive better understanding on how to deal with

          3  disabled children. They got involved in everything

          4  to accommodate both my daughter and me, and because

          5  of this she has improved. Now she runs, jumps and

          6  let's nothing hold her back. I was placed in her

          7  classroom to train her teachers. I then became a

          8  volunteer, and I am now a subsequent teacher and

          9  will soon become a staff member.

         10                 I feel there is a gap in the system

         11  for children with physical disabilities but have no

         12  mental disabilities. I would appreciate if the City

         13  Council would use the new funding for these children

         14  and their parents.

         15                 We parents are tired of our children

         16  being kept in the middle. We need more funding to

         17  develop schools that are properly equipped and have

         18  trained teachers, schools with educated staff that

         19  don't look at disabled children as a curse or an

         20  omen, but as a fulfilling challenge to help these

         21  children.

         22                 Parents and children should not have

         23  to feel and experience rejection just because their

         24  children don't fall under the correct category.

         25                 These children have enough that will
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          2  cause stumbling blocks, don't let child care hold

          3  them back. We need to work on parents receiving the

          4  proper and accurate information they need to obtain

          5  good child care. So, please work on these problems

          6  and use funding to help our children.

          7                 I would like to thank Councilwoman

          8  Ronnie Eldridge and other Council Members.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I would like to

         11  note that Council Member Helen Marshall has joined

         12  us and is the Chair of the Higher Education

         13  Committee and a very interested member of the

         14  Women's Issues Committee.

         15                 Thank you. Do you want to start?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: And an early

         17  childhood teacher.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And an early

         19  childhood teacher.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 MS. AYALA: Good afternoon. My name is

         22  Milagros Ayala, and I am a working parent with two

         23  small children. I consider myself fortunate to have

         24  subsidized day care. Not a week, if not a day goes

         25  by that I come across some parent tale of day care
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          2  woes. They either have not found someone or are

          3  losing the person they have or they cannot afford

          4  it.

          5                 They live in fear of losing their

          6  child care person and then maybe even their job.

          7                 I sympathize deeply with them,

          8  because I was once in their predicament.

          9                 They asked me about my day care

         10  service, and I am happy to tell them about how great

         11  it is to have an agency like Cardinal McClosky

         12  services, that provides well-trained providers that

         13  are supervised and that I can afford.

         14                 But I also have to tell them about

         15  the extremely long waiting list, and that as a

         16  working parent they may not qualify for subsidized

         17  day care due to their growth income.

         18                 The little hope they had at the

         19  beginning of our conversation has now gone. No one

         20  should have to go through so much to find quality

         21  day care. As it is now, it is nearly impossible. We

         22  should not be here trying to save subsidized day

         23  care. Instead we should be discussing how it can be

         24  made available to everyone who needs it.

         25                 There should be thousands of parents
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          2  here advocating for quality and affordable day care,

          3  but due to personal circumstances or fear of losing

          4  their job due to absences, some are not able to come

          5  forth and express their feelings or thoughts.

          6                 In addition, there are parents who

          7  are unaware that subsidized day care even exists.

          8  Therefore, Council Members, please support parents

          9  like myself in the expansion of quality affordable

         10  child care.

         11                 My sincere thanks to everyone present

         12  for allowing me to speak.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 MS. HARTZOG: Good afternoon,

         15  Chairperson Eldridge, and members of the Women's

         16  Issues. I am Melanie Hartzog, here to present

         17  testimony on behalf of Fernando Ferrer, the

         18  President of the Borough of the Bronx, on the

         19  extremely important issue of quality child care for

         20  children in New York City.

         21                 Accessing quality and affordable

         22  child care is an issue that impacts all parents

         23  regardless of their income.

         24                 However, researchers have found that

         25  for poor children who receive high quality day care
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          2  will be more successful as adults, out-performing

          3  their peers in a multitude of academic achievement

          4  measures.

          5                 High quality child care ensures that

          6  our children develop strong language, reading and

          7  math skills, therefore, investing in quality child

          8  care today helps our children's future educational

          9  achievements.

         10                 Moreover, quality child care is what

         11  enables many working parents to continue to support

         12  their families and gain self-sufficiency. While

         13  women are entering the labor force at record

         14  numbers, the wages of single mothers who work

         15  full-time have remained relatively low. Coupled with

         16  the fact that full-day child care costs between

         17  $4,000 and $10,000 per year, single parent families

         18  can barely afford high quality child care.

         19                 These challenges have made it

         20  enormously difficult for families, especially single

         21  parent households to access quality child care.

         22                 The City has been given the

         23  opportunity to use 241.8 million allocated from the

         24  state for this fiscal year under the child care

         25  block grant to provide our children with quality
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          2  child care that is affordable, regulated and

          3  accessible. This marks a $64 million increase from

          4  the last fiscal year to enable the City to expand

          5  child care subsidies to working families and

          6  children.

          7                 Borough President Ferrer recommends

          8  that the City target these funds towards increasing

          9  the capacity of the Agency For Child Development's

         10  monitored child care.

         11                 Specifically the money should be

         12  directed towards expanding ACD Early Childhood

         13  Centers, After School Programs and certified family

         14  day care services.

         15                 In doing so, the City would ensure

         16  that our children are placed in regulated child care

         17  that is routinely monitored.

         18                 Furthermore, Borough President Ferrer

         19  strongly urges the City to target ACD monitored

         20  child care expansion in those communities where

         21  quality child care is severely lacking.

         22                 For instance, in the Bronx the need

         23  for child care is steadily increasing, for the City

         24  has done relatively little to address this demand.

         25                 In 1998, Bronx children represented

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            118

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  one-third of all New York City children receiving

          3  public assistance, but received only 17 percent of

          4  ACD child care.

          5                 There is no doubt that we are in the

          6  midst of an extreme child care crisis. The demand

          7  for child care far exceeds the current supply,

          8  resulting in a severe shortage of quality child care

          9  for the majority of New York City children.

         10                 In New York State, 1.7 million

         11  children have parents working or in work-related

         12  activities, of which 631,600 children are eligible

         13  for subsidized child care.

         14                 However, 75 percent of eligible

         15  children do not receive subsidized child care. The

         16  magnitude of the demand for child care in our city

         17  is enormous.

         18                 For instance, more than 40,000

         19  children are awaiting placement in ACD monitored

         20  child care, which is just a small portion of the

         21  overall demand for subsidized child care in the

         22  City.

         23                 In 1998, over four percent of New

         24  York City's children under the age of six qualifies

         25  in subsidized child care, for the funds met the need
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          2  of less than 25 percent of these children.

          3                 It is important to note that while

          4  the current finding will address a portion of the

          5  demand for child care, the City must explore

          6  long-term investment strategies that will increase

          7  the supply of regulated child care, and enhance the

          8  infrastructure.

          9                 The state will eventually allocate

         10  the money to the City for building and renovating

         11  child care facilities and quality improvement.

         12                 Just as the City knew well beforehand

         13  that the 64 million increase in the CCBGs will be

         14  allocated by the state this year, the City is well

         15  aware this additional money is forthcoming.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you. We

         17  do have the testimony, so I am fine.

         18                 I would like to call the

         19  Administration now. Maria Vandor, and Kay Hendon. Is

         20  she here?

         21                 Have all of the people from LaCasita

         22  who wanted to speak, have they all testified?

         23                 When we are finished with the

         24  Administration, the next people will be Rebecca

         25  Koppler, and Rebecca, you have how many people with
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          2  you, three? Okay, and then Famina Couser, is that

          3  how I pronounce it? C-o-u-s-e-r. And Ms. Sham

          4  Sedine, there will be two people, or is there more?

          5  There is a group of people from the Shelter System,

          6  4 East 28th Street; are you here? All right, thank

          7  you.

          8                 Hello. As usual it is two people who

          9  are well versed in child care and members of the

         10  Committee who are strong supporters of child care

         11  and we are talking to each other. And we are still

         12  not the people who are taking the money from other

         13  places in the budget to put it in child care and it

         14  is a little frustrating, but I welcome both of you.

         15                 Do you have statements to read?

         16                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: Thank

         17  you for inviting both of us here, and I congratulate

         18  you, we congratulate you on the wonderful turnout

         19  that you have.

         20                 I am Maria Vandor, Associate

         21  Commissioner of the Administration for Children's

         22  Services, Agency for Child Development, Kay Hendon,

         23  Child Care Liaison for the Human Resources

         24  Administration, and I would like to thank you for

         25  the invitation to speak with you today about the
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          2  recent developments in child care.

          3                 Our remarks reflect the efforts in

          4  which ACS and HRA have been involved to reshape the

          5  child care system in New York City.

          6                 As you may well imagine, this is a

          7  very busy and exciting time for child care in New

          8  York City, although we have been long anticipating

          9  expansion and policy changes in day care in order to

         10  address the requirements of welfare reform, we have

         11  only recently received a sizable funding allocation

         12  in some direction from the State.

         13                 Although the State has not yet issued

         14  a full set of regulations regarding implementation

         15  of welfare reform with regard to child care, they

         16  have issued emergency regulations regarding health

         17  and safety standards for informal care providers,

         18  and for programs that do not require a permit, as

         19  well as information and requirements for public

         20  assistance recipients who require child care.

         21                 In early October, the State informed

         22  the City that our current allocation of child care

         23  block grants will be increased by over $64 million.

         24  ACS and HRA have been meeting to work out methods of

         25  providing additional child care that are equitable,
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          2  consistent and meet welfare reform and child welfare

          3  requirements. Current plans call for HRA to provide

          4  care to public assistance recipients who are in a

          5  job assignment, who are working or receiving

          6  transitional benefits and for ACS to provide child

          7  care for those child welfare cases for working

          8  families as well as others.

          9                 We plan to use several methods to

         10  increase the number of child care slots, to maintain

         11  as balanced a child care system as possible.

         12                 Among the needs to be balanced are

         13  rapid expansion, quality of care, parental choice,

         14  equitable distribution and adherence to new

         15  regulations and requirements, such as monitoring of

         16  informal providers and programs that do not require

         17  a license which are known as NPR programs.

         18                 We are planning to expand contracted

         19  programs initially by up to ten percent. Group day

         20  care programs would of course need to have

         21  additional licenseable space. Family day care

         22  networks may need to recruit additional homes. ACS

         23  may increase day care slots through purchase of

         24  services either through vouchers or in existing

         25  private programs.
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          2                 This is being considered for the RFP

          3  ACS will issue for contracts to take effect in the

          4  next fiscal year.

          5                 Additional vouchers will also be

          6  issued in accordance with a system of priorities

          7  that assigns first priority to children who need

          8  care as part of a child welfare services plan and

          9  the other priorities to meet welfare reform

         10  requirements.

         11                 In order to address the issue of

         12  equitable distribution, we are developing a needs

         13  assessment in order to target areas in which day

         14  care is most needed.

         15                 The assessment ranks all of the zip

         16  codes of the City by relative need by taking into

         17  account such factors as the reports of child abuse

         18  and neglect, number of children receiving HRA

         19  subsidized care, and HRA's projection of child care

         20  need for June 2000, the number of households who are

         21  income eligible, and the number of families with

         22  children under 13 years of age.

         23                 Also taking into account current

         24  services in the area, including HRA subsidized care,

         25  it arrives at a ranking for each zip code based on
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          2  the match of need and supply of day care in the

          3  area.

          4                 This data will be used in targeting

          5  areas in the aforementioned RFP that will be issued.

          6                 In order to be able to enroll

          7  children in care as quickly as possible, ACS has for

          8  the past month been calling in those on the waiting

          9  list to conduct eligibility interviews so that

         10  eligible children will be ready to enter day care as

         11  soon as authorization is forthcoming.

         12                 Previously ACD did a survey of those

         13  on the waiting list with the exception of those who

         14  are already certified eligible, in order to

         15  eliminate those no longer interested.

         16                 Currently there are 33,563 children

         17  on the waiting list which consolidates group, family

         18  and voucher waiting lists.

         19                 The eligibility interviews are being

         20  conducted with the use of the automated child care

         21  information system, ACS' new automated system that

         22  replaces ACD's too outdated processing systems, the

         23  automated claiming system and the information

         24  referral and vacancy control system.

         25                 This system was developed by HRA in
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          2  collaboration with ACD, which is fortunate, since

          3  HRA will use a version of the same system to manage

          4  their day care system.

          5                 This will facilitate exchange of

          6  information, federal and state welfare reporting,

          7  and continuity of care as families leave public

          8  assistance, and children move from HRA subsidized

          9  care to ACS subsidized care. The transition from HRA

         10  to ACS care will thus be seemless and invisible to

         11  the families involved.

         12                 One of the more immediate quality of

         13  care issues that must be addressed is a new state

         14  requirement to monitor informal and NPR providers.

         15  The recently issued emergency regulations call for

         16  attestations from parents and providers, similar to

         17  the attestations required from family day care

         18  providers.

         19                 No Local Commissioners Memoranda or

         20  Administrative Directives have been issued that

         21  discuss implementation. There is a requirement,

         22  however, that these attestations must also be

         23  obtained from current providers within 60 days.

         24                 It is anticipated that the City may

         25  receive additional funds, as there are an additional
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          2  $42 million set aside for enhancement of the child

          3  care system through a variety of means. In order to

          4  compete for these funds, however, there are certain

          5  requirements that must be fulfilled. The state will

          6  advise the City about the requirements for competing

          7  for these funds.

          8                 There is also an additional

          9  allocation of 200 million in reserve funds to

         10  improve the availability and quality of day care

         11  over a three-year period. Guidelines for the

         12  distribution and use of these funds have not yet

         13  been issued.

         14                 We anticipate having access to

         15  additional funds based both on the great need that

         16  exists in the City and the success the City has had

         17  in utilizing prior funding.

         18                 A recent report by the United States

         19  Department of Health and Human Services reported in

         20  the New York Times indicated that New York City was

         21  one of the few localities in the nation that was

         22  spending its full allocation of child care funds.

         23                 In order to continue to do this,

         24  there will be a great need for hard work and

         25  collaboration in developing and implementing child
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          2  care plans in the coming weeks and months.

          3                 We believe that HRA and ACS have a

          4  good start, and with your support we will continue

          5  to develop the largest and best child care system in

          6  the nation.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So, we do have

          9  the new amount of money from the state?

         10                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And if you --

         12                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: We

         13  have the allocation from the state?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Pardon me?

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: We

         16  received a notice that was dated September 30th that

         17  advised us of what the allocation is for the City.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So, it is $64

         19  million?

         20                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: It is

         21  $64.1 million, right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Now, how are

         23  you dividing it up exactly?

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: What

         25  we are discussing with HRA is that the majority of
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          2  the dollars will be coming to ACS and a portion of

          3  the dollars will be going to HRA, and it is

          4  basically a 2 to 1 ratio.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So what does

          6  that come down to? How many?

          7                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR:

          8  Approximately 40 million and change will go to ACS,

          9  and 20 million will go to HRA.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And are you

         11  going to add, are you considering building and

         12  actually adding formal day care centers any place in

         13  the City?

         14                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: The

         15  dollars that are made available to us are for

         16  expansion of services. There are additional

         17  allocations that may be used for capital dollars.

         18                 The issuance of how to use those

         19  funds and how much will be made available to New

         20  York City has not been made available yet.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So the $40

         22  million going to ACS is basically going to be used

         23  to increase what, to increase vouchers?

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: It

         25  would be used to expand slots. And the way we would
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          2  be doing that would be a portion of that would be

          3  used for vouchers, if parents want it. And then it

          4  would also be used to expand contracts.

          5                 And thirdly, it will be used to

          6  expand contracts, new providers if that is required,

          7  and we will be putting together an RFP, as we

          8  mentioned in the testimony, for that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So that

         10  although we have the $46 million now, how much of it

         11  will be held -- I mean, with an RFP it will be quite

         12  a long period of time?

         13                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: That

         14  is a longer term plan, that would be for starting in

         15  the next fiscal year.

         16                 What would be more immediate now

         17  would be to expand the system through vouchers and

         18  through current contracts. Which would include

         19  center-based programs, as well as family day care

         20  homes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Can you explain

         22  why providers say -- we had somebody testify earlier

         23  why she is not fully enrolled in center day care.

         24  She runs a center day care in Washington Heights,

         25  why isn't she fully enrolled?
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          2                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: I

          3  think that the presenter was a private

          4  non-subsidized program that was not affiliated with

          5  ACD; is that correct?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes.

          7                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: If

          8  that is the case, what happens is the entire day

          9  care system is drive by parents' choice, so if

         10  someone is interested in going to a non-fully funded

         11  program and we issue vouchers to families who are in

         12  need, and they don't necessarily want to go to the

         13  program that has the vacancy, then they will

         14  continue to have the vacancy.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But do you

         16  refer them to those programs? I mean, if you issue a

         17  voucher, a voucher is given to someone to use where

         18  they want to use it, right?

         19                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: Right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So do you

         21  provide information about non-subsidized day care?

         22                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR:

         23  Absolutely. ACD has four field offices and we have

         24  in their database all the programs in New York City,

         25  so if a parent comes in and says they are interested
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          2  in a particular day care program and a particular

          3  zipcode, we would make that information available to

          4  them.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But I mean, is

          6  the implication then that this is not the kind of

          7  center somebody would want to go to?

          8                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: Not at

          9  all.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: If it is on

         11  Fort Washington Avenue, which is certainly in an

         12  area where we need day care, and if there is a

         13  voucher issued, I don't understand how that family

         14  doesn't find the day care centers.

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: It

         16  could be that the particular parents that were on

         17  the waiting list, when we called them in, chose a

         18  different program.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: It still leaves

         20  such holes.

         21                 Is it only parents through OES that

         22  are only given two referrals?

         23                 MS. HENDON: Parents are given the

         24  names of two regulated providers with vacancies.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And does that
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          2  hold only for OES, or does that also hold for ACD?

          3                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: We

          4  have the regulation to comply with that for welfare

          5  recipients --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Right.

          7                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: That

          8  we need to do a minimum of two.

          9                 What we do is we work with the

         10  parents who give them lists of as many day care

         11  programs as they would want, so it is not

         12  restrictive.

         13                 MS. HENDON: And that is also true for

         14  us. They usually look at a directory of all of the

         15  programs, but our workers work with them to find

         16  places that will work for them.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Can you explain

         18  to us the process of why it is so difficult to pay

         19  the providers? And is this new automated system

         20  going to improve that?

         21                 MS. HENDON: If you are asking me the

         22  answer is yes, it will improve it.

         23                 One of the biggest problems that

         24  providers have in regard to the payment is not that

         25  the payment is issued slower than it should be, but
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          2  rather that they are serving families who become

          3  ineligible for care.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Well, that is

          5  one problem, but the other problem is that the

          6  centers don't get the money to pay the workers in a

          7  timely fashion. So that is a different question.

          8                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: Well,

          9  let me just say that we are aware that there have

         10  been lots of problems. We have at least nine workers

         11  who work full-time on trying to resolve provider

         12  complaints in our central office, in addition to the

         13  work that is done out in the centers.

         14                 You are absolutely right, one of our

         15  major reasons for moving to this automated system is

         16  with the hope that it will improve our payment

         17  problems and that you will get payments in a more

         18  regular way.

         19                 But I understand, it is a big

         20  problem.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I mean, it is

         22  an enormous problem, and the child care workers are

         23  very low-paid jobs to begin with, which shouldn't

         24  be, and then when they don't get the money, and the

         25  people who are providing the services need the
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          2  money, so it is totally unacceptable and I don't

          3  know how we have let this go so long this way. It is

          4  not just your fault. I mean, it could not happen in

          5  a different kind of agency, I don't believe, and I

          6  think this has reached a point where we have to do

          7  something really drastic. We should take maybe some

          8  of the people off the eligibility verification

          9  review process and put them into paying. I mean, we

         10  just don't do it.

         11                 So, anyway, this is a problem when

         12  you have two people that you like come to testify

         13  and you have problems with the services, you know,

         14  it is part of a woman's perspective to public

         15  policy. I don't like to beat up on you the way --

         16                 MS. HENDON: That's fine. I understand

         17  your role, and we understand our roles over here.

         18  All I can say is that we are very concerned about

         19  the payment problems, and seriously, if you have

         20  payment problems, any of you, feel free to call my

         21  office and we will get you to the person that

         22  resolves them. And I hear from people two or three

         23  times a day and I get them directly to the provider

         24  liaison unit and we get it settled. It may take a

         25  lot longer than you like, but it is not something
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          2  that we --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But it can't

          4  take a lot, that's the problem. It can't take a lot,

          5  because some of these workers are people who then if

          6  they don't get paid they will end up looking for

          7  public assistance, and that can't happen. I mean, it

          8  just doesn't make any sense. Therefore, if we would

          9  only address it as the professional standards that

         10  it should have, and the respect for economic

         11  development that we are able to present to the large

         12  corporations of the City that we give all of these

         13  tax benefits to, if we could only look at this as a

         14  very important employment possibility and treat in

         15  the professional way that we do with other

         16  businesses I think we would be better off.

         17                 So, in the meantime they will call

         18  your office but I think we will have to do something

         19  in a more formal way.

         20                 Do you have a question?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Okay, and then

         23  we will come back.

         24                 Helen Marshall.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes, I do. I
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          2  have a question and a comment.

          3                 It is ironic when women on welfare

          4  with children, even if they are homeless, are

          5  threatened if they are not going to live up to

          6  whatever the work requirement is, and those work

          7  requirements very often do not provide a career

          8  ladder for women, as they should, even women who are

          9  going to college. We find that they are expected to

         10  go and scrub floors, even if they are a senior in

         11  college and education majors and they could very

         12  easily have assignments that will advance their

         13  career.

         14                 But with all of that going on, we are

         15  shrinking Agency for Child Development. I am an

         16  early childhood teacher, I haven't taught for many

         17  years but I did for eight years. Even your position

         18  in the Green Book, you have to really take a

         19  magnifying glass to find you in the Green Book

         20  because we have had to try to find you because our

         21  people are complaining. So that it is unbalanced. We

         22  are squeezing people into a position, people who are

         23  already having a tough time living, we are squeezing

         24  them into a position and then we are giving them

         25  just a couple of jobs with just a little bit of
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          2  help. This is totally unfair and it has no place in

          3  the City of New York, all right?

          4                 Now, my question on the money that is

          5  being appropriated is, most of the day care centers,

          6  most of the people who I know are trying to get a

          7  place in the day care centers, the day care centers

          8  are filled, and you did say that you were moving

          9  towards expanding current programs. I don't know how

         10  much expansion we can do there. Exactly how do you

         11  see expanding current services? I hear vouchers, and

         12  some of the parents do, vouchers can help some. We

         13  really need full-fledged day care centers and the

         14  vouchers, if they will help some parents, fine, but

         15  I am not quite sure how you will handle that

         16  expansion.

         17                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR:

         18  Vouchers can go to center-based programs too, so

         19  vouchers can go to center-based programs, family day

         20  care homes or informal homes.

         21                 But in addition to that, there is

         22  some centers that we fully fund that have a contract

         23  with ACD that has space that they are not utilizing.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Do you have

         25  any idea of how many spaces are generally available
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          2  Citywide, in the centers that are sponsored by the

          3  City?

          4                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: In the

          5  surveys that we recently did, we could expand our

          6  current system of center-based programs by, the

          7  current cost per child is about $6,000 per year per

          8  child, and we could expand contracted capacity from

          9  the survey that I referred to by about $8 million.

         10  So, that would make the center-based programs --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: How many

         12  children, how many slots would that be?

         13                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: I

         14  would have to do the math for it.

         15                 It is approximately 5,000 children,

         16  5,000, 6,000 children.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Out of

         18  33,563 children that is really not very, very much.

         19                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: The

         20  more funds that are available to the City of New

         21  York, the more child care we could pay for in New

         22  York City. So, some of the encouraging things that

         23  we know is that we are anticipating additional

         24  dollars based on the reserve fund that the state has

         25  that would increase the capacity, 200 million over a
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          2  three-year period, if you look at what the City's

          3  usual allocation is, it is about 52 percent of the

          4  full pot. So, 52 percent of 200 million would be

          5  allocated to about 33 million annually, so that

          6  would buy additional more slots, too.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: All right,

          8  it is still a real trickle down, and I think it

          9  needs to move a lot faster.

         10                 Considering that you got your

         11  estimates or whatever it was that you got in

         12  September, this is November and we are now saying

         13  that a lot of it has to wait until July 1st, that is

         14  expansion of --

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: The

         16  expansion is going on, can go on now, which is why

         17  we are calling in people now to authorize their

         18  eligibility, as well as the issuance of vouchers and

         19  expanding the contracts.

         20                 What will be going on in July would

         21  be to bring in new vendors into the system.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: All right,

         23  let me also talk a little bit about the quality of

         24  care. I remember when family day care was first

         25  established. All of our City-run day care centers

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            140

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  had a good, strong unit of people who helped those

          3  parents who were family day care providers, not only

          4  visiting their homes, working with them, bringing

          5  resources to them that they didn't have. Now my big

          6  concern is there is no help for those parents

          7  whatsoever. And I would like to know what is

          8  happening with the expansion with training of the

          9  parents of the provider mothers? Or is anything

         10  happening with them, aside from getting late

         11  paychecks?

         12                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: Right

         13  now the family day care providers that are

         14  affiliated with ACD get additional training than the

         15  15 hours that are required in their regulations.

         16                 Under the expansion that I referred

         17  to, the State will also be issuing additional

         18  dollars that will go toward quality enhancements or

         19  training so that the City would get its share, a

         20  portion of that, to be used for training-related

         21  types of things so we could broaden the base and

         22  include more training with family day care homes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Aside from

         24  the 15 hours, what else, how else have you expanded

         25  that program, the training program?
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          2                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: The 15

          3  hours is usually held by providers, by the networks

          4  that we have. In addition to that, the Health

          5  Department offers training to family day care

          6  providers, new providers and for continuing

          7  education of providers that are already registered.

          8                 In addition to that, ACD offers

          9  training to family day care providers by offering

         10  many training courses at ACD or holding conferences

         11  for family day care providers.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: The reason I

         13  am asking these questions, we are talking mothers,

         14  many times they are young mothers, mothers of

         15  children, we should be providing some inspiration

         16  for them to actually get an education and become

         17  teachers themselves. That is just a very natural

         18  process, especially if they like what they are doing

         19  and they like working with children. I would like to

         20  see a career ladder built in to mothers or fathers

         21  who participate in a program.

         22                 My general concern is that we are not

         23  really -- we don't really seem to give a darn about

         24  folks that are struggling down here, and that is

         25  growing more and more.
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          2                 It is disheartening because we know

          3  that it could be different. We have experienced much

          4  better years, and it is very sad and I am sorry that

          5  I have to give this to the messengers, because I

          6  assume you are really trying to help as much as you

          7  can. But we need to develop a much more humane

          8  attitude towards all of the people on the bottom,

          9  but especially the people who are providing and

         10  caring for children.

         11                 The Year 2000 and beyond is in the

         12  hands of these little babies that we are raising

         13  right now. I am sorry to lecture, but I think it

         14  needs to be said. It needs to be said. And I know

         15  what early childhood education can do for a child.

         16  And I am sorry that we don't have the right attitude

         17  about it.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Commissioner

         20  Vandor, you said there is $8 million and it costs

         21  $6,000 a child, is that what you said?

         22                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR:

         23  Approximately.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I think if it

         25  were 5,000 slots, it would come to something like
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          2  $30 million, as far as I can tell it comes to like

          3  1,333 and a third.

          4                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: I

          5  didn't do the math for this. The way we would be

          6  expanding -- the number that, the 5,000, 6,000 would

          7  be the numbers in terms of what the capacity could

          8  be if we would expand it by 9.9 percent.

          9                 The numbers that I gave you were

         10  people who responded to the survey, and I didn't do

         11  the math for that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So, what you

         13  are saying is there is $8 million earmarked for

         14  this?

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: No,

         16  there are 8 million -- currently, the people who

         17  responded to the survey totals about $8 million,

         18  that they said they could immediately expand --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I see. But we

         20  don't have $8 million.

         21                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: We do

         22  have $8 million.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: All right.

         24                 Council Member Linares.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you.
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          2                 First, I would like to acknowledge

          3  your leadership, Madam Chair, in bringing together

          4  this hearing, and acknowledge also the leadership of

          5  the different organizations and institutions that

          6  have come to step forward.

          7                 And before I ask you a quick question

          8  that I have, I just would like to echo on an

          9  initiative that took place about ten years ago in

         10  the City of New York, acknowledging a crisis that we

         11  were facing as a City and when crime was rampant

         12  throughout the City of New York, this City Council

         13  and the Administration of the City of New York with

         14  the state support initiated an initiative to really

         15  face up to the challenge, and it was a Safe City

         16  Safe Street, which brought about a designated tax to

         17  increase the police force and invest in really

         18  taking back the City, and we are seeing the result.

         19  Well, if we acknowledge and recognize that giving

         20  access to day care to all of our children,

         21  regardless, it is also a crisis, why couldn't we

         22  initiate as a City an initiative that would involve

         23  a dedicated tax and would involve all of the

         24  sectors, public and private, the state and this City

         25  Council and the City Administration and we truly
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          2  invest for universal, universal day care for all of

          3  the children that need it.

          4                 I just want to put that on the

          5  record, because this hearing brings the leadership

          6  of the City Council, the Speaker, brings this

          7  Committee, brings all of the Council members that

          8  are concerned with this issue, and I think would

          9  bring the Administration as well, and I think it is

         10  a challenge to all of us to have to look at

         11  tinkering on the edges. This is a real crisis.

         12                 If we are really serious about

         13  improving public education, and improving education

         14  for all of our children, we must invest before they

         15  get to school into the classroom and this is what

         16  this hearing is about. And I just wanted to echo

         17  that because the time to do something is now.

         18                 I think this hearing takes us along

         19  in that direction.

         20                 I represent a community, as you are

         21  aware, that perhaps has the highest and greatest

         22  demand for day care, and the biggest challenges that

         23  we face. My question to you, acknowledging that

         24  there is not enough for us to meet but also we must

         25  do the best we can with what we have, how does that
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          2  $64 million help communities like the one in

          3  Washington Heights, Inwood, that has such a

          4  desperate need, an urgent need for services, as many

          5  other communities in the City of New York also have

          6  needs?

          7                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR:

          8  Washington Heights is one of the highest that in our

          9  needs assessment we determine that if there aren't

         10  enough center-based and family day care homes there.

         11  So, when we do formal expansion that would be one of

         12  the communities we would target.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Let me just

         14  interrupt. I still don't understand, if it shows the

         15  greatest need, why did this woman come and announce

         16  that she has not filled to capacity that she needs

         17  the children there?

         18                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR:

         19  Because logic would say that the two should make a

         20  match, and that if there is a vacancy in a program,

         21  then a parent who needs day care should go to that

         22  program. So, it is logical to say that her center

         23  should be full and the person who wants day care

         24  should go into it, but the reality of it is that

         25  parent may not want to go there. And it doesn't mean
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          2  that the program is bad, she just may arrange --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But if common

          4  sense tells you there are so many children that need

          5  it, that if one parent doesn't want to go there,

          6  there must be another parent who wants to go there,

          7  and it leads us to come to the conclusion that there

          8  is something missing in that referral period time,

          9  that they are not, people are not being told the

         10  full picture and exactly what is available. I mean,

         11  that would be the common sense from our point of

         12  view.

         13                 So, I find it difficult to believe

         14  that the referral system is so good that it is all

         15  by declination.

         16                 Sorry.

         17                 MS. HENDON: Well, just quickly, I

         18  don't think the referral system is perfect, but

         19  every parent that we deal with is given the name of

         20  the child care resource and referral agency before

         21  they ever come to an appointment. We are bringing

         22  referral specialists into some of our job centers so

         23  that parents will get more face to face

         24  consultation. Our workers report that their deluged

         25  with calls from providers who want more children.
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          2  So, Maria is right, it is apples and oranges. There

          3  are providers with vacancies, but are they at the

          4  right train stop, or are they at the right hours for

          5  the right age of the child, it is a very local

          6  issue, and it is certainly one that we need to

          7  continue to try to work on and develop the care that

          8  parents need, but you can't assume --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But it may be

         10  that it needs to be dealt with on a more local

         11  basis, and maybe the bureaucracy that you are

         12  attempting to use to answer these questions is

         13  simply not working.

         14                 So, we would suggest that we have to

         15  look at that procedure and see what happens.

         16                 Council Member Linares.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Yes,

         18  following up on my question, one of the challenges

         19  that a community like the one that I represent faces

         20  is that it has very few places to build day care,

         21  never mind there is no capital money at this point

         22  to build, so how do we respond to the demand when we

         23  face circumstances, limiting circumstances such as

         24  where to build a day care? How can we be creative to

         25  really respond to the need when we know that the
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          2  need can only be met if we build day care?

          3                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: Siting

          4  is a very, very big problem in New York City.

          5  Finding new facilities or renovating or

          6  rehabilitating old facilities to set up new centers

          7  is a very, very costly, time-consuming problem, and

          8  there aren't many facilities available for day care.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: In terms of

         10  capital needs, could you give us a sense of, you

         11  know, if we are going to meet the needs beyond

         12  alternatives to day care, if we were to look at

         13  centers full-fledged with all of the needs that we

         14  have, and the state-of-the-art day care that we have

         15  heard here that we need in the City of New York,

         16  what is the capital need in order for us to meet

         17  that demand right now?

         18                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: To do

         19  a total gut rehabilitation of a day care center

         20  costs four to five-million dollars, if not more.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: And so if we

         22  square that, in terms of how many we would need for

         23  the City, a ball park figure?

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: Would

         25  be -- I don't have a ball park figure.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Hundreds of

          3  millions of dollars?

          4                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR:

          5  Hundreds of millions of dollars.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Certainly we

          7  could start in Brooklyn and do some day care centers

          8  instead of a ball park for minor league teams.

          9                 May I, are you finished?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Let me just

         12  explain, and I don't mean to take cheap shots.

         13                 This meeting today is about the need

         14  for child care, for substantial, quality child care

         15  for all children basically. And it is a question

         16  then of the priority and importance that we attach

         17  to the concept of early childhood education, and

         18  what we are saying is, you guys are fine, you are

         19  doing your best within a constrained area, but this

         20  Administration, and many other Administrations, it

         21  is not exclusively this Administration, has never

         22  seen the issue of quality child care, early

         23  childhood education, the way it should be seen, and

         24  we have come now to the point where the demand is

         25  that we must begin to see it.
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          2                 You wouldn't need summer school in

          3  public education, you wouldn't need the question and

          4  the debate about all of the kids that are being left

          5  behind, you wouldn't need the question about how

          6  many kids don't graduate from high school, you

          7  wouldn't need the kind of attention we are giving to

          8  gangs and to juvenile detention programs and

          9  everything if we really truly instituted a quality

         10  universal early childhood education, giving children

         11  the optimum opportunity to succeed.

         12                 So, what we are talking about is that

         13  priority, and how do we place that on the agenda?

         14                 And unfortunately, we have the people

         15  here who are already convinced, as far as the

         16  Committee goes, and we are listening to people who

         17  are very committed to child care professionally, but

         18  we are not hearing from the Mayor, we are not

         19  hearing from the members of the Council that make

         20  the votes, and that is what we are trying to do

         21  today. And this time, at some point it has to be

         22  heard, this message, because all of these nice

         23  people who came here today, and all of these

         24  adorable kids that are in that room, they should be

         25  sitting in the rotunda and nobody should be allowed
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          2  in or out of this building until the attention is

          3  paid. But what we hide behind is the lack of federal

          4  funding, the lack of state funding, what the state

          5  regs are, all of those things and say, oh, we are

          6  complying. We are not asking to be compliant, we are

          7  asking to be exciting and imaginative and creative

          8  and to acknowledge the facts that what we are asking

          9  for is legitimate and we really begin to ease other

         10  social problems. So that is the frustration we have.

         11                 Now, let me just ask another

         12  question. What is the timetable for the actual

         13  implementation of the money that you are getting,

         14  the 42 million -- $64 million? What is the actual

         15  timetable? How much will be withheld for the RFP

         16  which doesn't go out until the next fiscal year, and

         17  how much is going to be spent now and what are you

         18  doing?

         19                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: What

         20  we are currently doing is what I had mentioned to

         21  you before, we are calling people in right now so

         22  that people will be -- we are authorizing their

         23  eligibility, we are targeting people who are

         24  protective, preventive, foster care, working

         25  families and people who are --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So, are you

          3  calling the whole 30,000 waiting list of ACD?

          4                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: We are

          5  calling in the top priorities that are available to

          6  us under the child care block grant.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: How many people

          8  is that?

          9                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: As I

         10  mentioned to you before, there are 30,000 families

         11  on the list. The first target would be the first

         12  7,000 to 8,000.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So, you are

         14  going to call each of these 7,000 to 8,000?

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: Yes,

         16  we are doing it now.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And then what?

         18  Is the money that it is costing to call those people

         19  coming out of the $64 million grant?

         20                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: No,

         21  it's not.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: All right.

         23                 And then what?

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: Then

         25  what we will be doing is the field staff, resource
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          2  area staff, ask all of the parents and the family

          3  members where they would like to go for child care.

          4  If they are interested in a ACD funded program, and

          5  if there is a vacancy available, then they can go to

          6  that vacancy. If they want a voucher to go to a

          7  program that isn't fully funded by ACD they can go

          8  there.

          9                 In addition to that, we are working

         10  on expanding the contracts that I had described to

         11  you before.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But now that

         13  comes another problem. Because last year or the year

         14  before when HRA testified they said when asked what

         15  child care, a person prefers for their child, only

         16  20 percent of the parents through OES said they

         17  wanted formal day care, 80 percent requested

         18  informal day care.

         19                 When Scoppetta testified from ACD, he

         20  reversed the figures and he said when we have

         21  waiting lists for ACD, at ACD, 80 percent want

         22  formal day care and only 20 percent want informal

         23  day care.

         24                 The problem is, you are just going to

         25  ask people without truly explaining the
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          2  alternatives, we are not going to get advance for

          3  what we want; is that right? And how do you ask

          4  them?

          5                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: The

          6  staff at ACD, Kay could speak to HRA, but the staff

          7  at ACD are very, very dedicated staff who are very

          8  interested in making sure that families' needs are

          9  met. So they spend anywhere from 15 minutes dealing

         10  with a family who doesn't know where they want to

         11  go, to often calling them in again, speaking with

         12  them on the phone, teaching them about what early

         13  education is, and trying to match what their needs

         14  are with what is available.

         15                 MS. HENDON: At HRA there is, as I

         16  explained, parents get a written explanation before

         17  they ever come into the appointment about the

         18  different kinds of child care, and they are asked to

         19  be thinking about that and be prepared for their

         20  appointment.

         21                 At the appointment the worker

         22  explains again the different kinds of child care and

         23  gives them the names, as I said, of at least two

         24  regulated providers, and in most cases discusses

         25  other providers with them.
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          2                 I wanted to comment about the 80

          3  percent. That is what parents are using, they are

          4  using 80 percent informal care, and 20 percent

          5  regulated care. I don't have figures on what they

          6  ask for. Many of them do ask for a contract with an

          7  ACD center that they can't use.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Why do they ask

          9  for an ACD center that they can't use?

         10                 MS. HENDON: Because there are no

         11  contracted slots available for them at that time.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I remember the

         13  Commissioner at HRA testifying explicitly that 80

         14  percent were requested.

         15                 Do you remember that?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: That 80 percent

         18  requested informal day care. I just remember it.

         19                 Can you tell us what the percentage

         20  is now? How many OES vouchers go for informal day

         21  care, how many go for formal day care?

         22                 MS. HENDON: It ranges from month to

         23  month between 80 and 85 percent for informal care.

         24  And as we have told you before, there is a major

         25  reason why that is happening, and that is that when
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          2  parents use informal care, the payment goes to the

          3  parent. We are in the process of changing that, and

          4  then we will see a shift, I think in the kinds of

          5  care that parents are using.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Will you see a

          7  shift?  Because providers are testifying they don't

          8  get paid. And not only don't they get paid, but if

          9  somebody gets sanctioned they don't get the notice

         10  of the sanction for two weeks after they have

         11  provided the child care, and then you are putting a

         12  provider, you are putting a provider in the position

         13  of saying no your child can't come back here, when

         14  the provider knows very well the child should come

         15  back there because that is beneficial to the child.

         16  So, you are making the provider the police officer.

         17                 There is something about this that is

         18  still totally wrong, but I will come back. I have

         19  other members of the Committee, or people here who

         20  want to speak.

         21                 I would like to welcome Mr. Michels

         22  from Washington Heights, and Mr. DiBrienza is back

         23  and he has a question.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

         25  Madam Chair.
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          2                 First, I think it is incredibly, if

          3  you just bear with me, important, that is why I left

          4  my policy staff person here for the entire day, this

          5  entire topic, this entire forum, and the Committee

          6  meeting is incredibly important. The General Welfare

          7  Committee struggled with these issues year in and

          8  year out in partnership with Council Member

          9  Eldridge, and they were so important as a group of

         10  issues, that when her Committee was created, because

         11  we worked so well together, I took the unusual step

         12  as a Committee chair saying let us broaden the

         13  jurisdiction of the new committee and let them focus

         14  on particularly the growing need for day care and

         15  child care through ACD, we retain some interest and

         16  jurisdiction as it relates to OES and the HRA

         17  portion of things as these witnesses well know.

         18                 So, I want to first say I think it

         19  was a good decision because of how wonderfully

         20  strong this turnout has been, the participation has

         21  been under Council Member Eldridge's direction,

         22  number one.

         23                 And number two, let me suggest a

         24  couple of things, and then ask a couple of

         25  questions. I think it is absurd on its face to tell
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          2  people, and what frustrates them and gets them so

          3  aggravated, that over 34,000 or 35,000 people on a

          4  waiting list, that it is simply a matter of not

          5  being able to match any of those 35,000 people with

          6  slots in particular areas.

          7                 It is absurd on its face. These are

          8  people in communities throughout the City where the

          9  need is great, where those slots, if the system were

         10  efficient, and driven by a goal of maximum

         11  participation, it is absurd on its face to believe

         12  you can't make those matches.

         13                 Thirty-four to 35,000 folks on a

         14  waiting list, it is just incomprehensible that you

         15  cannot max out the programs that do exist. I mean, I

         16  can't believe that is your testimony that they

         17  simply don't match.

         18                 Is there anything else that you can

         19  testify to?

         20                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: I gave

         21  you one of the reasons on why it may not match. The

         22  other is that, as I had mentioned in my formal

         23  testimony, we just developed a fairly comprehensive

         24  automated child care information system that would

         25  track vacancies in a different way than we currently
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          2  have been doing it so that we could be doing a

          3  quicker response of matching families to day care

          4  centers.

          5                 The other is that some of the day

          6  care centers, as well as what the parents want, may

          7  have unique needs, and if the council would be kind

          8  enough, I could check on that particular day care

          9  center in Washington Heights and further discover

         10  what the issue is with that program.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: I am sure

         12  you could on a case-by-case basis, but it goes to

         13  the universal question of commitment to early

         14  childhood development education which the chair

         15  spoke to, it goes to the commitment of the

         16  Administration to provide this necessary and

         17  important service to people in need, as opposed to

         18  managing the numbers. It really goes well beyond

         19  your response to the one problem, which I am sure

         20  you will try to solve. I think there is a

         21  fundamental failure to commit the value of this

         22  service, the value of the people who provide the

         23  service, in this case the workers who were treated

         24  poorly, who routinely are denied compensation

         25  adjustments, who routinely even when they win these
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          2  adjustments are delayed in receiving their raises.

          3  You know, it really goes well beyond solving the one

          4  problem, there are 35,000 almost, approximately

          5  35,000 people on a waiting list, there should be no

          6  vacancies in any of these, and it is just

          7  implausible, unbelievable that it is about whether

          8  or not people pick the spot.

          9                 With that number, with that 35,000

         10  number, it is just absurd on its face to believe

         11  there are not enough people to fill the slots.

         12                 But I think it is because of the

         13  overall resistance, the undervaluing of the service,

         14  the resistance to the people who provide the service

         15  and the resistance to the people who need the

         16  service. They are not viewed as a priority by this

         17  Administration.

         18                 Now, let me ask you this, because it

         19  is the part where our jurisdictions coincide, and it

         20  really is for HRA, OES.

         21                 I submit to you, it is equally absurd

         22  to suggest that it is random, that people go through

         23  OES, eight out of ten end up in informal care. It is

         24  just unbelievable. It is because you cajole them and

         25  force them and threaten them and push them in that
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          2  direction with the threat of losing their case.

          3                 I mean, take a random sampling, if

          4  you were not philosophically involved in this

          5  discussion but just scientifically, there is no

          6  reason to believe that a random sampling of poor and

          7  struggling working folks who were given the choice

          8  would pick $2 care, as I refer to it, refuse to

          9  refer to it as anything else, over licensed,

         10  regulated care, which is educationally sound and

         11  nurturing and developmental in nature, unless you

         12  push them that way and they live in fear of losing

         13  their benefits, since all you are committed to is

         14  cutting and closing cases.

         15                 Do you have any reason, any

         16  scientific, any mathematical, you know, sort of

         17  basis, for why that happens? Or do you think that

         18  just randomly happens, that people are well versed

         19  and fairly presented with options and they somehow

         20  pick eight out of ten times for the $2 care in your

         21  population versus the exact opposite in the ACD

         22  population?

         23                 MS. HENDON: Well, first let me say

         24  that no one is forced into using informal care, and

         25  everyone is given information about all kinds of
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          2  care.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: See, that

          4  simply lacks credibility. With all due respect, I

          5  know you believe it, but that lacks -- that

          6  response, and I will let you finish, lacks

          7  credibility. It is just mathematically, if not

          8  philosophically, impossible to believe eight out of

          9  ten people randomly, with full, you know, without

         10  any pressure, without any steering pick informal

         11  care over licensed, regulated care, if we are all

         12  doing our job in terms of, you know, explaining the

         13  value of one versus the value of another.

         14                 MS. HENDON: I just explained to you a

         15  few minutes ago why I think many of them pick

         16  informal care. It is because when they pick informal

         17  care, the payment goes to the parent.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right.

         19                 MS. HENDON: That needs to be changed.

         20  The payment needs to go directly to the provider.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: I am not

         22  sure what you mean by that. What are you trying to

         23  say?

         24                 MS. HENDON: When a parent chooses

         25  informal care, they receive the three or $400 a
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          2  month payment to them.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right.

          4                 MS. HENDON: Rather than having the

          5  payment go directly to the provider.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right.

          7                 MS. HENDON: So we think there is a

          8  cash incentive for a parent to choose informal care,

          9  and we don't like that incentive and we plan to

         10  change it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: But you are

         12  really, although you say it in a calm and cool

         13  voice, what you are really saying, if I hear you

         14  right, is all of these folks, thousands of these

         15  folks, are interested in somehow taking advantage of

         16  the system and getting their hands on the cash at

         17  the expense of their children?

         18                 MS. HENDON: I am saying --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Is that

         20  what you are saying?

         21                 MS. HENDON: I don't think they are

         22  taking advantage of the system, they are not

         23  breaking any rules, but it certainly allows them to

         24  go out and negotiate their own child care, or

         25  whatever that care costs.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right.

          3  Well, let me close this with suggesting to you that

          4  I think it is offensive to portray a kind of

          5  attitude, the blame-the-victim-ish, you know, type

          6  attitude, but it is not surprising coming from a

          7  Commissioner, not you, but that you work for the

          8  Commissioner who believes it is important to create

          9  crisis in people's lives so they can deal with

         10  things, who think they will make false claims, false

         11  claims of domestic violence in order to somehow get

         12  to the front of the line or puts no value on the

         13  educational developmental, historical value of child

         14  care, licensed, regulated child care, and instead

         15  couches this in the terms of it being parental

         16  choice, to simply slough people off and let them

         17  fend for themselves with their kids.

         18                 So, I will tell you, on top of

         19  everything else, it is somewhat insulting, if you

         20  really read behind the lines of your comment, it is

         21  somewhat insulting.

         22                 We need to develop that portion of

         23  the system that enhances licensed, regulated

         24  developmental care, and in fact, you guys created

         25  this sort of acceptable notion of informal care in
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          2  order to push thousands upon thousands of people

          3  transitioning from welfare to beyond into your

          4  workfare program. So, 20 years ago or five or eight

          5  years ago this wasn't as big a problem. The waiting

          6  lists were there, but it was there for licensed

          7  regulated care, you really created this universe.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

          9                 Can you tell us exactly how much

         10  money is a stipend for informal care? How much money

         11  does a person get?

         12                 MS. HENDON: Seventy dollars a week.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So, $70 a week,

         14  would be what, for how many hours?

         15                 MS. HENDON: Seventy-seven a week,

         16  sorry.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Seventy-seven

         18  dollars a week. What does family day care cost a

         19  week?

         20                 MS. HENDON: One-hundred and five.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And what is --

         22                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: Center

         23  care is $147.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And you are

         25  afraid that somebody, a TANF recipient is pocketing
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          2  some of the money and therefore getting inferior

          3  care; is that basically what you are saying?

          4                 MS. HENDON: I don't know that. I am

          5  just saying in searching for an explanation of why

          6  80 or 85 percent of the families that we serve use

          7  informal care, and why the reverse of ACD, that is

          8  one of the possible explanations.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Members of the

         10  General Welfare Committee who have had hearings

         11  about this feel that the reason 80 percent opt for

         12  informal care, is that the other alternatives are

         13  not fully explained, and that they are told of the

         14  waiting list and the difficulty of finding the

         15  centers, and that they have to find the child care

         16  quickly or else they are going to be sanctioned

         17  because they have to go to work, so it isn't because

         18  they are making any money, and it seems to us that

         19  you have got to straighten out -- I mean, the amount

         20  of money that HRA spends on EVR, Eligibility

         21  Verification Review, if that money was spent, or

         22  half that money was spent on trying to place

         23  children in quality child care, we would be way

         24  ahead of the game.

         25                 So, what you are now adding, you are
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          2  adding that you are not going to give a recipient

          3  the direct money, but you are going to give it to a

          4  provider, and as you know, I am for strong

          5  regulation of child care that has public money, I do

          6  not want informal providers that are not inspected

          7  and regulated.

          8                 And any self-inspection does not

          9  answer the question, and those are the minimal

         10  standards that the state is handing down, not the

         11  maximum standards, and New York City used to be for

         12  the maximum standards that we could do to protect

         13  citizens. So, when you say the state issues these

         14  things about self, whatever it is, it is not a

         15  self-certification, but it is like it, that is not

         16  enough, but we are now adding that we can't give a

         17  recipient the child care money that anybody who goes

         18  to a shelter, or many people who go to shelters are

         19  not really homeless, they are looking for an

         20  apartment, or people who are on welfare are just

         21  doing that because they don't want to work, that I

         22  think demonstrates the perspective that this

         23  Administration really uses to approach this problem,

         24  and that is not helping us.

         25                 However, I know we shouldn't preach.
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          2  So, Council Member Michels.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, thank

          4  you, Madam Chairlady.

          5                 I of course am very much interested

          6  in getting people off the waiting list and into

          7  quality day care, in the northern part of Manhattan

          8  where there is such a great need, and I am sure you

          9  are aware of it, we have been yelling for years

         10  about quality day care slots, and I am not going to

         11  ask about that.

         12                 What I am concerned about is the

         13  physical facilities that are provided for the day

         14  care, and what you do. And mainly what I would like

         15  to ask you is, what is done to check to see that

         16  there is no danger of lead poisoning in these

         17  facilities?

         18                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: We

         19  inspect programs on a regular basis to determine

         20  whether there is asbestos or lead, and if there is

         21  any abatement that is required then we have an

         22  environmental unit that has on-call contractors that

         23  takes care of the problem.

         24                 We are in the process of doing a

         25  major lease renewal upgrade with over 100 programs
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          2  and we are, when we do major rehabilitation,

          3  regarding lead or asbestos, or any other things, to

          4  make the programs more attractive and taking care of

          5  the various problems that are going on with some of

          6  the programs, we move the children and we put them

          7  in what we call swing space, until the program is

          8  rehabilitated.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, can you

         10  tell me, when you say periodic inspections, how

         11  often does that mean? Once a year, twice a year?

         12                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: Not

         13  twice a year, we do it once a year. And then if

         14  there is any problem, then we remove the children.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I know, I am

         16  not getting -- I know what has to be done once you

         17  have decided --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Can I interrupt

         19  for one minute?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Sure.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Do you inspect

         22  family day care providers environments? And do we

         23  inspect informal providers for lead or asbestos?

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: No.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: This unit,
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          2  are there any records kept as to these inspections

          3  of when they are done and what happens as a result

          4  of them and how many apartments have been asked to

          5  do abatement or remediation?

          6                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: ACD

          7  maintains records and the Health Department, New

          8  York City Department of Health goes out and does

          9  inspections.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I know about

         11  the Department of Health, I am just wondering what

         12  your agency itself does.

         13                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: We

         14  have records --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I am the

         16  Chair of the Environmental Committee and I have been

         17  involved in this lead issue for a good portion of my

         18  adult life, and I just want to know more detail, it

         19  is just enough to tell me, well, we do periodic

         20  inspections, I would like to see some records, I

         21  would like to see some documents, I want to know

         22  what is done. And I don't expect you have them with

         23  you today, but I would like whatever information you

         24  have and make it available.

         25                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: We can
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          2  make that available.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Also, going

          4  along with that, it is the state law in the state to

          5  have children tested on a regular basis before they

          6  go to school. Do you have any protocols or any rules

          7  or regulations with respect to testing the children

          8  who are in day care for lead poisoning to see

          9  whether or not they have got the unusual amounts of

         10  lead in their blood?

         11                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: We

         12  comply with the City Department of Health

         13  regulations regarding examinations of children prior

         14  to entry into any day care program.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What does

         16  that mean?

         17                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: It

         18  means that what we do is what requirement are. So

         19  all the children need full medical exams, all of

         20  them get inoculations.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Does that

         22  mean they are actually tested for lead on a regular

         23  basis? The blood samples are taken?

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: No,

         25  they are not. No.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Do you know,

          3  with those who are tested, as to what percentage of

          4  lead poisoned children do you find?

          5                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: I

          6  don't have that information available.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Can you get

          8  me that information also? It seems to me that this

          9  is the most vulnerable population as far as lead

         10  poisoning is concerned. I know you are aware of the

         11  fact that we have some 50,000 children in the City

         12  who are lead poisoned, and that we have, between the

         13  1,000 and 1,500 children a year who are dangerously

         14  lead poisoned, according to the statistics of the

         15  CDC. And it is important that we get a handle on it,

         16  because this is our first opportunity to get a hold

         17  of these children, and the state regulations are

         18  really not enough.

         19                 Children of this age between one and

         20  five or even before that should be tested on a

         21  regular basis, because you can save them. After that

         22  age, you cannot. So it seems to me it should be a

         23  major situation, as far as asbestos and lead is

         24  concerned.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: One of the

          3  things that came to us early on in this

          4  administration was the advocates speaking out and

          5  they looked over some of the requirements and some

          6  of the regulations that were being imposed upon

          7  people on welfare, the bottom of the ladder

          8  struggling, and their comments to us were, in a

          9  public hearing, that this is a process of

         10  intimidation.

         11                 I am concerned here with the process

         12  with which these people go through. What does a

         13  mother do when she finds that she is on welfare and

         14  she needs to get, she has to go out and do her

         15  commitment of work, how does she get child care? How

         16  many loops do we put her through?

         17                 VOICE FROM AUDIENCE: Many loops.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: And how many

         19  times, I heard you talked authorization, you are

         20  making sure that they are still meeting the

         21  requirements, how often do you do that? And I am not

         22  just asking for the people who are in this room

         23  today, but we are on television, we are on channel

         24  seven, whatever the channel is, 74 or 75, I don't

         25  think people quite realize the loops that people
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          2  have to go through to get this help. It is not given

          3  in the right spirit, the attitude towards them is

          4  terrible, not certainly by the two ladies sitting at

          5  this table, but in general. People are put through

          6  so many loops that they have to jump through, I am

          7  amazed that they can keep up with it, especially

          8  when they have two and three children and they have

          9  to move all over the place in order to get --

         10                 For instance, how many certification

         11  centers are there in each borough?

         12                 MS. HENDON: Well, there is a total of

         13  30 job centers, or income support centers,

         14  throughout the City. I can't tell you exactly how

         15  many are in each borough, if that is what you are

         16  asking.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, I am

         18  talking about the ACD centers where the parents go

         19  to get certified for day care. How many do we have

         20  in each borough?

         21                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: There

         22  is one in each borough.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Exactly.

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: There

         25  are four field offices. Brooklyn includes Staten
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          2  Island, so there are four resource areas.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: You see, it

          4  is also important, and I know that that is -- I was

          5  in the State Assembly and I know and I still feel

          6  that it is a fallacy that when we talk about early

          7  childhood care for young children, we put it into

          8  the category of social services. And that is the way

          9  it has stayed. It is not looked at as an educational

         10  component, unfortunately. We have to make it an

         11  educational component. It is just a matter of caring

         12  for the children while the mother works. That is not

         13  enough for the citizens of New York. That is not

         14  enough.

         15                 With only -- I know at one point one

         16  of the two ladies here said that it is a matter of

         17  the mother -- the reason that we have the vacancies

         18  is because mothers, you know, they can't choose or

         19  they don't select particular centers, well parents

         20  come into my office and they are desperate. They

         21  desperately need a place to go. I represent an area

         22  in Corona Queens, we have as very high incidence of

         23  poverty also, and many parents who need help, I also

         24  have a large immigrant population, folks need help,

         25  and when they come, you tell them there is an
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          2  opening in a day care center, they snatch it if they

          3  can.

          4                 I am a mother myself, of course I

          5  have been a mother, I am a grandmother at this

          6  point, but if I am desperate and I really want to

          7  put my child into a proper care and you tell me

          8  there is an opening in a day care center, I am going

          9  to take it.

         10                 In addition to that, the women who

         11  are in the homeless shelters are not told if they

         12  don't go to work they are going to put their

         13  children up for foster care. So, the gun is on them.

         14  They don't have a choice. They don't have a choice.

         15                 So that I find it difficult to accept

         16  the fact that people just simply aren't choosing it.

         17  And especially when we are talking about the ratio

         18  of the amount of people who you have who need the

         19  service and the amount of service spots that are

         20  open. I still have a difficulty in understanding

         21  that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you. I

         23  just want to go back and then we will finish this

         24  up.

         25                 The timetable for implementation --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: She really

          3  didn't finish answering my question, I am sorry.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Oh, I am sorry.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I would like

          6  you to explain to the people what do you do when you

          7  want to put your child in day care, whether either

          8  you are being forced to do it as a woman who is on

          9  welfare who has to do her work experience, whatever

         10  it is, or if I am just a parent coming in and I

         11  desperately need help, placement for my child; what

         12  does that woman have to do, or a man?

         13                 MS. HENDON: From our perspective, I

         14  think that you are right, that there is a lot of

         15  paperwork and a lot of activity involved in someone

         16  who is leaving welfare for work, and I couldn't

         17  agree with you more that it is a stressful time and

         18  that people do get put through a lot, as you say.

         19                 I also have to say that there are

         20  many people who succeed in becoming a working

         21  parent, as a result of that. So, I don't think it is

         22  a totally negative picture as you seem to be

         23  painting it.

         24                 As far as the child care goes, the

         25  parent comes in and in our offices they are
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          2  eligible, so there is not a lot of paperwork.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Excuse me,

          4  are you saying that it is important for us to put

          5  stumbling blocks and make it a hard process for a

          6  woman to do?

          7                 It is just as when we have the

          8  Commissioner sitting here and he says to us that

          9  people have to understand the real work effort and

         10  what does that mean? For instance, I am chair of the

         11  Higher Education Committee here, and I, too, am on

         12  this Committee deliberately, and I do joint hearings

         13  with my colleague Steve DiBrienza, particularly on

         14  the women who are trying to go to college and that

         15  number has been dropped so drastically we can't even

         16  talk about it. And the Commissioner says that a

         17  woman testified she is a senior in college, I think

         18  I repeated it before, education major, she has

         19  children, she must go, and you know what her

         20  assignment was, not near her house, not near her

         21  college, and right now there is a law that they must

         22  comply with giving them assignments on the college

         23  where they are going to school - no, that's too

         24  easy. They might read a book. They might read a

         25  book, all right? They might read a book.
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          2                 This is a woman who is a senior in

          3  college, she is given an assignment very far away

          4  from her home or her school, in a senior citizen

          5  center, a senior in college, education major, do you

          6  know what she did at that senior center? Cleaned the

          7  bathrooms. Cleaned the bathrooms. When she said

          8  that, it just went through my body and it is not

          9  going to leave me, because that is a disgrace.

         10                 And we asked the Commissioner, what

         11  did you do? How did you get through school? He

         12  didn't work. His parents paid his way through

         13  college. What does he know about telling a person

         14  like her what to do? That is terrible. That is

         15  terrible.

         16                 I just, it bothers me when we say

         17  that we have to make life difficult for people who

         18  are trying to move ahead. Life is difficult enough.

         19  Life is difficult enough, especially when you are a

         20  single parent and are trying to raise kids and raise

         21  yourselves. We should not be making it harder for

         22  them. That is an attitude that I am sure you didn't

         23  start this job with. And I hope that you don't

         24  harden up and let it eat you up too, okay?

         25                 MS. HENDON: Well, it certainly isn't
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          2  what I said.

          3                 Do you want to know about the child

          4  care process?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes, I do.

          6                 MS. HENDON: Okay.

          7                 A parent is given the counseling that

          8  we talked about, given the names of two regulated

          9  providers, probably shown a list of providers in the

         10  area to look at, talk about. I have been in offices

         11  and seen workers call the provider while the parent

         12  is sitting there and put the parent on the phone to

         13  make arrangements.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: This is

         15  family day care?

         16                 MS. HENDON: Or a center. But to make

         17  arrangements to make a visit and see if they want to

         18  enroll their child.

         19                 So, there is a lot that goes on in

         20  that meeting.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Okay, that's

         22  good.

         23                 MS. HENDON: The parent is given a

         24  piece of paper, a provider enrollment form, that

         25  they take to the provider. That is filled out, it
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          2  has to come back to the office, usually the parent

          3  brings it back, because there is another appointment

          4  that is happening anyway, it could be sent back and

          5  the information is entered, and that is what

          6  generates a child care payment eventually. So, it is

          7  a relatively simple process.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: So, in other

          9  words, for a parent in Queens, they would have to go

         10  back to the agency down on Northern Boulevard in

         11  Long Island City?

         12                 MS. HENDON: To return the provider

         13  enrollment form?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes.

         15                 MS. HENDON: They might send it back

         16  to the Center. It depends on whether they are coming

         17  back in anyway or not.

         18                 The other thing that you should know

         19  is that the provider enrollment form is sent out in

         20  the initial letter that goes to the parent, along

         21  with the child care facts sheet, so if the parent

         22  already knows someone to do the child care, they may

         23  come in with that enrollment form filled out.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, what I

         25  would like to see, and it would take too much time
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          2  today, but if you could submit to the Chairperson

          3  who would give us that material, just run it step by

          4  step, let's see what the parents go through. Let's

          5  see what it takes to get your child enrolled in a

          6  program, and the length of time between the time you

          7  apply for and the time you actually get the service,

          8  those kind of mechanisms I think we would like to

          9  know.

         10                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         12                 We have so many people we have to get

         13  moving, but there are two questions again.

         14                 How long is somebody who comes

         15  through OES given to find a place for the child?

         16                 MS. HENDON: They are initially given

         17  five days. If they don't find care in five days they

         18  are given a five-day extension.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Do you

         20  remember, Helen, I mean the amount of time it takes

         21  us to select a school or to look through other

         22  things, these are five days when someone has been

         23  uprooted out of their way of living anyway --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: It's

         25  unbelievable.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And have to go

          3  to work, so it is very difficult.

          4                 I would like to go back again to the

          5  timetable. You are doing a survey of 10,000 or

          6  however many people, what is the timetable for

          7  issuing vouchers?

          8                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR:

          9  Vouchers will be issued as soon as we are given

         10  authorization from the various oversights to say

         11  start rolling them out.

         12                 And then in addition to that, the

         13  contract is, the capacity that we are talking about,

         14  would be adjusted in the months of December and

         15  January.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So you have got

         17  the $64 million, and when is it going to -- when are

         18  we going out with it? What is the oversight that you

         19  need?

         20                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: OMB,

         21  HRA, ACS, the Mayor's Office.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So that could

         23  take us months?

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: No,

         25  this will all be galvanized by the end of this
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          2  month, beginning of December.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And then you

          4  are going out with an RFP, not until next June or

          5  July?

          6                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: The

          7  RFP will be issued in January -- it will be issued

          8  in January for implementation in July.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And how much

         10  money is that going to cover?

         11                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: I

         12  don't have the breakout of what the new slots will

         13  be through the RFP process.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And then what

         15  are you doing to get access to the addition, $200

         16  million that the state has?

         17                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: The

         18  state will be issuing a local commissioners'

         19  memorandum shortly to specify what the City's

         20  allocation is, and how much it will be annualized

         21  over a three-year period.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But are you

         23  lobbying for that?

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR:

         25  Absolutely.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I mean, do we

          3  get a sense that there is an active engagement of

          4  people's attentions and an effort?

          5                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER VANDOR: The

          6  Administration is lobbying very aggressively, so are

          7  many of our friends and advocates who are lobbying

          8  to release those dollars also.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So, you are

         10  going to now issue more vouchers, but we are not

         11  going to see any change really -- this is the

         12  concluding question -- in the informal day care,

         13  other than the money is going to be taken from the

         14  recipient and given directly to the provider

         15  services?

         16                 MS. HENDON: No. As you may know, we

         17  will be implementing the new state regulations that

         18  require the self certification, and we are -- right

         19  now we are exploring some first steps as far as

         20  verification --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But let me just

         22  -- these are the minimum state requirements that we

         23  have self-certification, which means the provider

         24  has to self-certify what?

         25                 MS. HENDON: That they meet certain
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          2  health and safety standards. They have to submit a

          3  sworn statement in regard to criminal background and

          4  child abuse and neglects and they have to submit a

          5  doctors' or physicians assistant statement that they

          6  are mentally and physically able to care for

          7  children.

          8                 We plan to do some verification on

          9  this and do it in incremental ways, but initially we

         10  would like to get state permission to verify this

         11  criminal background statement and this child abuse

         12  and neglect registry statement, and we intend to go

         13  beyond that, but our first step will be to implement

         14  the out-of-station as required --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Is this

         16  self-certification similar to self-certification for

         17  family day care providers?

         18                 MS. HENDON: I am not that familiar

         19  with the registration standards. I understand it has

         20  some similarities.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But now the

         22  family day care provider is at least inspected by

         23  the Department of Agriculture, ACD and a few other

         24  people after they have self-certified.

         25                 MS. HENDON: Only 20 percent of the
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          2  registered providers are inspected on a random

          3  schedule.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Are you

          5  planning to inspect 20 percent of the

          6  self-certifieds informal providers?

          7                 MS. HENDON: We are moving toward

          8  monitoring. We are going to initially do the

          9  out-of-station and the verification of the criminal

         10  backgrounds, and then move forward from there.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And is that

         12  going to be done by EVR?

         13                 MS. HENDON: That has never been

         14  mentioned as a possibility.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So we are not

         16  going to see a decrease in informal day care? I

         17  mean, you are now going to choose -- it looks to me

         18  like the Administration has now chosen, as the

         19  preferred choice, to add to informal day care with

         20  the self-certification?

         21                 MS. HENDON: I think there will be

         22  some decrease in informal care. It is our -- what we

         23  hope is that it won't be abrupt.

         24                 We have recently issued a directive

         25  to collect social security numbers from all of the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            189

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  informal providers. As I said, very early next year

          3  we will be moving to the direct payment. In the

          4  interim we will be moving into the informal

          5  standards, and there may be some people who will not

          6  be able to continue, and we are doing more

          7  information for parents.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: One of the

          9  problems with informal providers is that they are

         10  not dependable, that some days they may get sick.

         11  What happens then when you are direct paying to the

         12  informal provider? How do you find out when that

         13  informal provider is actually providing services?

         14                 MS. HENDON: The parent --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: You only, after

         16  you have sanctioned the person who is in the welfare

         17  to work program because they didn't come to work

         18  because they had to take care of the baby, they will

         19  be the first sanction before you do anything with

         20  the informal provider.

         21                 MS. HENDON: Parents need a lot of

         22  help planning for how they are going to handle

         23  back-up care, whether they are using a registered

         24  provider or an informal provider.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I am just
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          2  totally dissatisfied with this, and I thank you very

          3  much. But thank you for coming, and we will, I am

          4  sure, have more hearings and we will try to do

          5  something more in this area. Thank you.

          6                 MS. HENDON: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Does anybody

          8  else have any questions?

          9                 Okay, so the next panel is Rebecca

         10  Koppler with several people, and after that we are

         11  going to have a group of parents and children from

         12  Robin Wright, who is a provider of family day care,

         13  Patricia Garrison-Matthews, Monique Washington,

         14  Gladys Martinez and Casandra Cole.

         15                 But let's just have the three now and

         16  then we will come back, or four. All right.

         17                 And please, I know that this is a

         18  long hearing and it is very interesting, and I don't

         19  like to cut people off and I can see people are

         20  leaving. I am sorry if you haven't had a chance to

         21  speak, but I hope that what you had to say has been

         22  said by other people.

         23                 And if you do get a chance to speak,

         24  I hope you will speak briefly. Thank you.

         25                 All right, who is going to start.
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          2                 MS. McLOUGHLIN: I will start.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Okay.

          4                 MS. McLOUGHLIN: My name is Marge

          5  McLoughlin.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Wait a minute,

          7  the microphone has to be that the light is out. That

          8  is government.

          9                 MS. McLOUGHLIN: Members of the

         10  Council, colleagues, and guests, my name is Marjorie

         11  McLoughlin, I am the Executive Director of Cardinal

         12  McCloskey Services.

         13                 From the inception of family day care

         14  in the late 1960s, New York City has been a leader

         15  in the development and implementation of a

         16  sophisticated system of subsidized care with aspects

         17  of our programs emulated throughout the country.

         18                 Family day care is definitely not

         19  babysitting, rather it is a combination of quality

         20  child care, early childhood education and preventive

         21  services.

         22                 Well delivered, it greatly enriches

         23  children's lives, prepares them to enter

         24  kindergarten with the basic skills necessary for

         25  success, and identifies children who may be at risk
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          2  or who have special needs.

          3                 By 1992, however, changes occurred in

          4  New York State which increased the amount of day

          5  care provided but dramatically reduced the quality

          6  of care that subsidized children now receive.

          7                 These changes occurred for both

          8  philosophical and economic reasons, and have

          9  impacted in three major areas, some of which have

         10  just been discussed. We are now on an honor system.

         11  The licensing process has been changed to a

         12  registration process, wherein providers are now

         13  approved on an honor system with very little

         14  verification of the information that they provide.

         15  We now have parental choice. Services that had been

         16  professionally delivered, are now relegated to

         17  parents.

         18                 For instance, parents are now

         19  expected to ensure that all aspects of care that

         20  their children receive are safe and that the

         21  critical educational components are delivered, that

         22  the persons providing care are cleared through the

         23  state central registry, and that all members of the

         24  provider household have had medicals and been

         25  cleared for criminal convictions.
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          2                 The number of safety checks to

          3  individual provider homes has been reduced from 12

          4  annually to eight.

          5                 The new system increased the number

          6  of available providers -- to increase the number of

          7  available providers was accomplished, however, it

          8  resulted in very serious problems.

          9                 The application process consists of a

         10  17 page application, which often times providers do

         11  not understand or have difficulty in completing.

         12  They are responding affirmatively to questions in

         13  order to obtain a permit, when the registered homes

         14  are visited after the children receive services,

         15  they are frequently not in compliance.

         16                 There are no longer precertification

         17  home inspections. Frequently when homes are visited

         18  after children are placed, they are found not to

         19  meet health and safety regulations in one or more

         20  areas. No window guards, radiator covers, fire

         21  extinguishers or first aid kits, smoke alarms are

         22  not working, candles are burning, paint is peeling,

         23  and cleanliness is substandard.

         24                 Often children are providing care for

         25  more children than their permits allow. They are
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          2  also, providers are also not receiving appropriate

          3  support and the training that they need in age

          4  appropriate activities, planning nutritious meals,

          5  and with safety issues, such as conducting fire

          6  drills.

          7                 Welfare reform, as we have just

          8  heard, is impacting dramatically on the child care

          9  system, with the needs and the problems greatly

         10  outpacing the availability of day care and the

         11  necessary social services.

         12                 There is very little sympathy for the

         13  fact that parents moving from welfare to work need

         14  help.

         15                 Parents with no history of employment

         16  are having difficulties adjusting to the idea of

         17  working. They are anxious about their employability,

         18  and doubly anxious about leaving their children.

         19                 Many parents receiving child care

         20  have marginal jobs and are barely able to sustain

         21  themselves. If they lose their job, they may also

         22  lose their child care and then the vicious circle

         23  starts again.

         24                 Parents are frequently living in

         25  unstable conditions, as far as housing is concerned,
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          2  and they don't have enough money to secure an

          3  adequate apartment, the day care home is the only

          4  means of stability a child has during a stressful

          5  period and the only place where the child is

          6  receiving nutritious meals.

          7                 Increasingly, we are seeing a number

          8  of teen parents with very little, if any, family

          9  support. They know very little about child

         10  development or even how to be a parent, and they

         11  desperately need help, if their schooling,

         12  employment or child care are to work.

         13                 It is glaringly obvious that if

         14  welfare is to succeed, subsidized day care must be

         15  increased.

         16                 It is equally obvious that if the

         17  government expects a significant return on

         18  investment of day care dollars, there must be

         19  oversight and accountability.

         20                 Through our programs, the voluntary

         21  agencies providing subsidized day care can provide

         22  such assurance, if there is adequate funding.

         23                 Our funding has been frozen for the

         24  past seven years. And this has caused a

         25  deterioration of the services provided by the
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          2  voluntary programs. The result is that New York City

          3  is increasingly paying for children to receive a

          4  safe, potentially rich educational school program,

          5  while the oversight to ensure the children are

          6  actually receiving the service is decreasing.

          7                 The voluntary agencies that operate

          8  family day care programs recommend that the

          9  oversight of provider homes be increased to more

         10  fully ensure the health, safety and educational

         11  needs of children.

         12                 If we receive the appropriate

         13  funding, we will be able to provide technical

         14  assistance for all new applicants, including

         15  referrals --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Excuse me. You

         17  testimony is very important and very interesting,

         18  but we are going very long over. So, instead of

         19  doing the 13 points, can we just --

         20                 MS. McLOUGHLIN: I will submit it to

         21  you in writing.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you. So,

         23  just finish. You can give us another -- summarize

         24  the end, all right? Thank you.

         25                 MS. McLOUGHLIN: Well, in summary, I
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          2  think that we are here to support Council Member

          3  Eldridge's Intro. 291-A which covers the points of

          4  allowing us to provide oversight and monitoring for

          5  subsidized day care.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you very

          7  much. Thank you.

          8                 MS. SEPULVEDA: Good afternoon. My

          9  name is Carmine Sepulveda. I am the Assistant

         10  Director of Day Care Services for Cardinal McCloskey

         11  Services in the Bronx.

         12                 New York City is unique in its

         13  diverse cultural communities, along with its

         14  multi-cultural people, it has its unique problems.

         15                 We have families who are transient,

         16  live in shelters or homeless, teen mothers, fathers

         17  raising children, children abused, neglected or

         18  abandoned, families with personal or other stressing

         19  problems, domestic violence, educational, limited or

         20  unskilled family preparation, or just are confused

         21  and overwhelmed because of their living situation.

         22                 With welfare to workfare we have

         23  families going back to work or school after many

         24  years, therefore, finding quality, affordable day

         25  care services require a more difficult task.
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          2                 First of all, we must face the fact

          3  that we need child care in New York City, because it

          4  is greater and we don't have the supply.

          5                 Many of ACD's contracted programs

          6  have long waiting lists of families requesting and

          7  needing services.

          8                 Some of these families have been on

          9  the waiting lists for years. The families call or

         10  come to our programs regularly to ascertain their

         11  status. Unfortunately we are not able to say

         12  anything more than they are still on the waiting

         13  list.

         14                 Families become frustrated because

         15  they cannot understand the difference between

         16  contracted care and the availability of care.

         17                 In contracted care we have specified

         18  slots we have for children. Even if the families are

         19  there and the providers are available to provide the

         20  service, we cannot pay for it because these would be

         21  new additional families.

         22                 Many times the parents already know

         23  one of the providers that is registered, or licensed

         24  to care for children, but they just cannot afford to

         25  pay privately for that care.
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          2                 Reasons being that our families work

          3  in housekeeping, domestic work, home attendant, and

          4  as you know, factories, restaurants, and as you

          5  know, many of these jobs don't pay much. And after

          6  the employers deduct the state, the local and city

          7  required taxes and other benefits, there is not much

          8  left for just regular living.

          9                 Our families are seeking appropriate

         10  child care that is accessible, reliable and

         11  continuous, child care that provides flexible hours,

         12  weekend, overnight. They want care that meets the

         13  very needs of their children, environments that are

         14  safe, healthy, sanitary, welcoming, nurturing and

         15  stimulating. They need care for sibling groups, and

         16  especially for special needs children.

         17                 For many families child care provided

         18  by some of their own cultural background or by

         19  someone who has an understanding of their culture

         20  makes them feel more at ease when leaving their

         21  child.

         22                 Parents also look for whether or not

         23  that child is comfortable staying with that

         24  provider, or whether or not that child is thriving

         25  in that environment.
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          2                 The child, as well, needs to feel

          3  comfortable staying there, and needs to show growth

          4  for his development.

          5                 With quality childcare, we have to

          6  look at the provider that provides the service.

          7                 These are individuals that should

          8  have a knowledge of the rules and regulations

          9  governing their business, understanding of child

         10  development, good nutrition, maintaining a healthy

         11  and safety learning environment for the children,

         12  being able to do stimulating activities, both in the

         13  home and outside of the home. The provider needs to

         14  also be a resource for both parents. She should be

         15  able to assist them with separation, toilet

         16  training, learning to walk, speak, socialize, do all

         17  kinds of projects. There needs to be a partnership

         18  between the provider and the parent.

         19                 Since our families and children are

         20  so diverse, the community-based organizations

         21  perform an important function - they both meet with

         22  the families and the providers to obtain a better

         23  understand of their needs, hours of operation and

         24  service delivery.

         25                 The community-based organizations
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          2  mediate between the families of providers when they

          3  can't resolve their problems on their own.

          4                 They also provide ultimate care for

          5  the parents, in the absence of their regular

          6  providers.

          7                 Quality affordable child care is a

          8  vital resource for our community, and we need to

          9  continue to promote expansion of contracted

         10  subsidized day care.

         11                 From my experience in this field,

         12  families and providers prosper as well when the

         13  community-based organizations are there to listen,

         14  guide and support them.

         15                 I implore you to vote yes on quality

         16  affordable child care, and thank you very much for

         17  your time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         19                 Rebecca, could you just bear with us?

         20  East Manhattan School? Who is that? Are there

         21  children here from East Manhattan School, parents? I

         22  have a note that they have to leave by 2:15. If they

         23  have already left then -- are you Eva?

         24                 EVA: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So come up.
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          2                 Do you mind, Rebecca? We have waited

          3  so long, lets go ahead.

          4                 Thank you. Will you tell us your

          5  name, and we would appreciate it if you would keep

          6  your testimony as short as possible. Thank you.

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I am the

          8  Director for East Manhattan School for Brighton

          9  Gifted Children. We have been in existence for 32

         10  years, providing the special, unique and quality

         11  program, and I will explain what I mean by this.

         12                 There are three reasons why we

         13  consider ourselves unique and very special, and we

         14  do need your help to continue providing that very

         15  special education to young children starting at the

         16  age of two and a half.

         17                 Reason one: We believe giftedness

         18  (sic) in children, while other schools have problems

         19  for children already known to be gifted, there is a

         20  very, very big difference. We make them gifted.

         21  Science tells us that giftedness depends on early

         22  stimulation and encouragement. That is what we have

         23  been doing. The results are fabulous.

         24                 Reason number two: We develop and

         25  nurture giftedness in all children, irrespective of
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          2  their economic background, gender or color of their

          3  skin. It is every child's right to have his brain

          4  developed to the fullest potential.

          5                 We have had many children on ACD

          6  vouchers, and we also provide free education to many

          7  others who may not qualify for ACD children, now for

          8  ACD vouchers.

          9                 And reason number three: The

         10  encouragement and relationship between children and

         11  teachers are becoming of prime importance because

         12  children are at school from eight in the morning, to

         13  six or seven in the evening. Children have very

         14  little family life. The school has become

         15  responsible, not only for their education, but for

         16  their whole personality development.

         17                 We have moved to a bigger location

         18  because we could not accommodate everyone who was

         19  interested in our problem. Now we are on West 15th

         20  Street but we have children who have been coming to

         21  use from Staten Island, from Chinatown, from Queens

         22  and from Brooklyn and from Harlem. They are seeking

         23  our program and we are happy to accommodate them.

         24                 But now we are faced with big

         25  problems. We are in trouble. We have an emergency.
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          2  Either some money would be coming to help us or we

          3  have to close. We haven't finished construction

          4  work. There has to be some alarm system put on all

          5  six floors in the building we are, although we just

          6  occupy two floors. And this is our main problem now,

          7  we need expansion money which I understood was

          8  promised to us before and we do need help.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: All right. We

         10  are sending over the Counsel to our Committee to

         11  talk to you so she can get the details of your

         12  problem, all right? And we will try to help you. And

         13  then we will continue.

         14                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I have a

         15  teacher with me that I would like to explain, for

         16  her to explain how we do that special educational

         17  program.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: All right.

         19                 MS. BYAM: Hello. My name Eve Byam. I

         20  didn't really prepare anything on paper because I

         21  just wanted to speak from my heart.

         22                 As I sat here and I listened to the

         23  various testimonies, it really saddened me to know

         24  that we have to come here and go through this long,

         25  drawn out process really begging for funds that
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          2  should be freely given to all centers that are

          3  looking after children. Children are our future and

          4  we invest in them today, it is like a structure, a

          5  foundation, the children are the foundation. We give

          6  them a good, solid education, in the future we don't

          7  know if we are going to be catering to presidents,

          8  we don't know if we are providing for the Mayor of

          9  the City in the Year 2000 plus, so it really saddens

         10  me that we have to go through this process of

         11  begging for money.

         12                 I understand $64 million is out there

         13  floating around. My $64 million question is why? And

         14  I suggest that $64 million answer is give this money

         15  to all the day care providers. Give them to the

         16  places that are really providing for quality

         17  education for the children.

         18                 In my class, I am a teacher as well

         19  as a parent. And in my class I start providing

         20  education for children and have them do reading. The

         21  problems that the City schools have today with the

         22  reading they would not have, if the children came to

         23  our schools. If we sat them in an early reading

         24  program. And children who are going to kindergarten

         25  are reading fluently, from the age of three, two and
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          2  a half. We have a toddlers' program, we have a

          3  prenursery program and we are suffering because of

          4  lack of funding.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you. We

          6  would like to be as supportive as we can and we

          7  think you should have whatever you need to do it and

          8  we hope that you will get it soon.

          9                 MS. BYAM: All right, thank you so

         10  much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         12                 MS. BYAM: Thank you for giving us the

         13  opportunity.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you very

         15  much. Thank you.

         16                 All right, Rebecca.

         17                 MS. KOFFLER: Thank you. Good

         18  afternoon, Council Member Eldridge and Committee

         19  members. My name is Rebecca Koffler, and I am the

         20  Director of Early Childhood Programs of Jewish Child

         21  Care Association. Thank you for this opportunity to

         22  present our views on affordable, quality child care

         23  and recommendations for the utilization of the child

         24  care money that is presently available.

         25                 It is widely known that the number of
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          2  working parents with young children has increased

          3  enormously over the last ten years. When

          4  anticipating the need for day care services, it is

          5  essential to add to these figures the number of

          6  parents on public assistance who are now required to

          7  participate in either a training program or work

          8  employment program.

          9                 In order to meet these needs,

         10  expansion of quality child care is required.

         11                 All parents who are eligible for

         12  government subsidized child care have the right to

         13  expect that their child will receive care which is

         14  affordable, which is in a setting that for most of

         15  the child's intellectual, social and emotional

         16  development.

         17                 Therefore, in contemplating the

         18  expenditure of money to provide child care services,

         19  it is necessary to consider what type of support

         20  services must be included in order to create a

         21  system which will enable these parents to feel

         22  secure about the place where their child will be for

         23  the most part five days a week for approximately up

         24  to ten hours a day.

         25                 Although the choice of setting is in
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          2  the hands of the parent, it is essential that they

          3  have options upon which to make this choice.

          4                 Families who are accessing child care

          5  without prior experience, require education and

          6  assistance, in order to choose a place which is

          7  safe, healthy, nurturing and educationally

          8  conductive to learning.

          9                 The oversight which is provided by

         10  ACD, ACS contracted programs is one essential

         11  component that helps to ensure that family child

         12  care homes meet state and city health and safety

         13  standards. Family child care providers entering the

         14  system for the first time require intense training

         15  and support in order to assist them in establishing

         16  a site which meets all standards and which also

         17  helps them present a professional service.

         18                 Providers who have been working for

         19  many years continue to need support services,

         20  however their service needs tend to focus more on

         21  improving their knowledge and skills.

         22                 Attached to this testimony is  a

         23  chart that I compiled to demonstrate the variety of

         24  services many of the ACD/ACS Contract Agencies now

         25  offer to assist providers in achieving quality
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          2  services and assist parents in adapting to new child

          3  care experiences.

          4                 Continuing funding for these services

          5  is essential. In addition, increasing the allotment

          6  to be able to pay for these services is vital at a

          7  time when the present amount does not begin to cover

          8  the cost of services offered by contracted agencies

          9  that are now requested by providers and parents.

         10                 A comparison between the salary

         11  increases union staff at day care centers have

         12  received and ACD/ACS contracted programs, indicates

         13  that there has been no increase to the ACD/ACS

         14  contracted programs to continue these support

         15  services since 1992. There are a number of other

         16  fiscal issues that need to be addressed in

         17  considering how best to utilize the money that is

         18  presently available.

         19                 The present system of ACD/ACS family

         20  child care contracts, ACD/ACS vouchers and HRA child

         21  care expenses, has lead to a number of inequalities

         22  that affect both agencies and family day care

         23  providers.

         24                 At the present time providers who

         25  receive ACD/ACS vouchers or HRA child care payment
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          2  in fact are being paid a higher rate than for ACD

          3  contracted child care.

          4                 The present system offers no

          5  incentive to providers who affiliate with an agency

          6  and in fact has awarded providers by paying the

          7  portion of the market rate money that ACD/ACS has

          8  designated support service money for contract

          9  programs.

         10                 This creates a situation that

         11  encourages the provider to choose to opt out of

         12  receiving support services because their payment is

         13  higher. It is important for providers who choose to

         14  have oversight and support services not be penalized

         15  for choosing to continue to professionalize their

         16  work and place of business.

         17                 Second, the present rate paid to

         18  providers for a child between two years of age and

         19  three years of age is less for those affiliated with

         20  contract programs than those receiving an ACD/ACS

         21  voucher or HRA child care payment.

         22                 Once again, providers are being

         23  penalized because they choose to have an affiliation

         24  with a contract agency in order to provide quality

         25  service.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            211

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 In summary, I will just briefly say

          3  in summary we are in support of the Intro. 291-A. I

          4  want to make one exception, and that is the

          5  regulation included in this bill that limits the

          6  number of children under three years of age will be

          7  detrimental, because the number of children on the

          8  waiting list of three years and under who have no

          9  other options is enormous as compared to options for

         10  children four and five years of age.

         11                 So, if you limit the number of

         12  children under three, they are already limited to

         13  two under two, because of health and safety

         14  standards, limiting to under three presents a real

         15  problem, both financially for the providers and for

         16  those people who are waiting on the waiting list.

         17                 Thank you for your time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         19                 Before we go to the last person, I

         20  called another group. Will you raise your hand, who

         21  I called for the next group.

         22                 Now, how many people are here with

         23  children who are waiting to testify? You are the

         24  only one, okay.

         25                 MS. McNISH: Thank you. Good
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          2  afternoon, and greetings to Councilperson Ronnie

          3  Eldridge and members of the Committee, the Women's

          4  Issues Committee.

          5                 My name is Cordelia McNish, and I am

          6  the Executive Director for Day Care Services for

          7  Sheltering Arms Children's Service.

          8                 I am going to speak as a

          9  representative of a community-based family day care

         10  program, and I would like to speak on the issues

         11  that are affecting parents who are in our program.

         12                 As a voluntary program, not only do

         13  we provide support to the families and the

         14  providers, but we also do eligibility. And in the

         15  eligibility process is what I would like to direct

         16  my remarks to.

         17                 Because the priorities now are

         18  preventive, protective, parents who are on public

         19  assistance, OES and Begin, and lower income working

         20  parents, we are beginning to see the populations of

         21  the parents in our programs change, parents are

         22  transitioning from public assistance into the

         23  working job force, and with these changes are issues

         24  that we need to address in terms of the eligibility

         25  of these parents.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            213

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 In an effort to move parents from

          3  welfare to employment, we are encountering families

          4  going through a revolving door. Many parents are

          5  eligible for day care services have employment which

          6  are minimal jobs, jobs like home attendants, factory

          7  workers, cashiers, and these jobs have high

          8  frequency of job layoffs, loss of employment and

          9  seasonal jobs.

         10                 When unemployment benefits are not

         11  options to these parents, they have no alternative

         12  but to return to public assistance, which is taking

         13  in some instances six to eight weeks for processing.

         14  And what does that mean to these parents in these

         15  situations? No income to the family, which means it

         16  is affecting not only the parents but the children

         17  as well.

         18                 In addition, these types of jobs vary

         19  in hours which makes it difficult for the minimum 21

         20  hour requirement for day care eligibility to be met.

         21  So therefore there is always a constant juggling how

         22  to keep this person eligible for day care, while the

         23  hours of their job increase.

         24                 This needs to be taken in concern for

         25  ACD, in terms of the eligibility process. Families
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          2  with minimum employment have great difficulty making

          3  ends meet, and therefore self-sufficiency

          4  economically is a constant struggle. For the parents

          5  who have anticipated WEP assignments, what they were

          6  thinking was they were going to be related to job

          7  permanency, but what it is instead is led to just

          8  another WEP assignment and no future.

          9                 The fee structure. The fee structure

         10  under the ACD currently is based on the gross income

         11  and not on the net, which is making it very

         12  difficult for families to make ends meet.

         13                 By the time they pay for housing,

         14  food, clothing, transportation, many times there is

         15  very little else for them to do. The fees that

         16  parents are paid also is affecting the eligibility

         17  in the sense that the fee paying parent might have a

         18  child in family day care, group day care, but not be

         19  able to get the services of a school-aged program,

         20  which is very difficult.  So what is happening, they

         21  are paying two fees, one for family day care, group

         22  day care, and then they have to pay for private

         23  services.

         24                 In the fee structure, what needs to

         25  be done is that for parents who are working and who
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          2  lose their job, there needs to be time assessed for

          3  them to get another job. Because what is happening

          4  is that once they lose their job, because they don't

          5  want to lose day care, they will continue to pay the

          6  fee.

          7                 Now, I know my time is up, but I just

          8  want to say one more thing; is that, if we are to

          9  help parents who are going to be transitioning into

         10  a working world, we need to provide the support of

         11  that community-based organization, as well as other

         12  organizations that are there. We are not to penalize

         13  someone that loses a job, but we are supposed to be

         14  there to help them move on to get a job.

         15                 For parents who are income

         16  ineligible, what is happening now, that once they

         17  get the job, get the skill and move advancement,

         18  they lose the day care because they are income

         19  ineligible. We need to move it so that parents are

         20  rewarded for job success.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Do you have

         23  your testimony?

         24                 MS. McNISH: Yes, we do.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Did you give it
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          2  to the Sergeant at Arms?

          3                 MS. McNISH: No, I didn't give it to

          4  them.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Will you do

          6  that?

          7                 MS. McNISH: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 Will the next group come up, and then

         11  the group after that will be Peggy Sepudo, Virgin

         12  Melendez, Raglan George, Janice Phillips. So, where

         13  is the group I called before? Let's go. I have lost

         14  your names, the group I called before.

         15                 Excuse me for a minute, do you people

         16  have children you have to pick up? Anybody? There is

         17  one person with a child, right? Can we let the

         18  parents who have to go and pick up their children

         19  go? All right, let's go, everybody who has a parent

         20  with a child.

         21                 I would appreciate it if you would

         22  make your statements. I am very pleased that you are

         23  here. If you will tell us your name and make your

         24  statements as brief as possible. Thank you very

         25  much. Let's start.
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          2                 You start first.

          3                 MS. MAHMOUD: I am sorry, my voice

          4  aint that loud because I am losing my voice.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Okay. Tell us

          6  what your name is.

          7                 MS. MAHMOUD: My name is Christine

          8  Mahmoud.

          9                 I am a parent from Lenox Hill

         10  Neighborhood House. My daughter is in the Head Start

         11  Program, which they also have a day care program,

         12  which somehow both of them are together. They had

         13  the Head Start Program children and the day care

         14  children in classes, we have eight classes. About 15

         15  years ago I had my other two children, that are

         16  older than my daughter now, they were also in the

         17  same program as well, and it is a big change. It is

         18  a big improvement from 15 years to now, my little

         19  one is three. And I hope, as a parent and also as a

         20  grandmother of two, which I hope when they get

         21  bigger they will be going there too, I hope as time

         22  goes by that improves more.

         23                 There is more room for more

         24  improvement for the program itself, and there is

         25  always room for improvement for education, as small
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          2  as they are they learn very good, very fast, they

          3  learn different languages. I call it the little

          4  United Nations because all of the children speak,

          5  some of the children speak different languages. They

          6  learn different cultures from wherever they come

          7  from and it is very nice because even though I am

          8  born here, my daughter, she is part Arabic, but she

          9  is learning my language, my husband's, their

         10  language, a little bit, not all of it but a little

         11  of it, and their culture. And I don't know what else

         12  to say, but whatever money they can put into this

         13  program are very helpful and would gain a lot for

         14  their future.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Well, you have

         16  certainly been very good in telling us what the

         17  benefits of child care are. So, thank you very much.

         18                 MS. MAHMOUD: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         20                 Will you tell us your name, please?

         21                 MS. WALDRON: Yes. My name is

         22  Angienett Waldron. I have --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I am sorry?

         24                 MS. WALDRON: My name is Angienett

         25  Waldron. I have a son at Lenox Hill Neighborhood
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          2  House.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes.

          4                 MS. WALDRON: I removed my son from

          5  day care where I live in Harlem, I have to travel 52

          6  blocks every day to take my son to school because he

          7  was in a day care much closer where I could even

          8  look out the window, but every time my son walks

          9  into the school he has an asthma attack.

         10                 I have a three year old that has 13

         11  admissions in the hospital, I can't even tell you

         12  how many emergency visits. Every time I spoke to the

         13  director at the school she gave me a very hard way

         14  to go. I had to get a child advocate, I had to call

         15  the Bureau of Day Care, I had to call Child -- I had

         16  to get an attorney, I had to call the visiting nurse

         17  services, I had to have a doctor to testify, because

         18  this particular day care did not want to believe

         19  that their school is hurting my child. And what it

         20  was, it was the rugs, when you picked the rugs up,

         21  there was a ton of dust underneath the rugs.

         22                 I had help from Ms. Hannah Hanagan

         23  from ACD. She is also an asthmatic. She told me,

         24  look, I know you hate to travel, but maybe you need

         25  to take your baby out of the neighborhood, so that
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          2  is what we did and ever since then he has not had

          3  one asthma attack.

          4                 Lenox Hill. When I had my son in

          5  Grand Day Care on West 125th Street, they wanted to

          6  put my baby into a special education program because

          7  he would not talk. Would you talk to someone if they

          8  yell at you and scream at you, the teacher? He was

          9  so withdrawn. I took him to Lenox Hill Neighborhood

         10  House, he can add from one to ten, he can tell me

         11  what two plus two is, and it is really touching

         12  because how one day care can do for one person and

         13  then another day care does everything. They taught

         14  him how to swim. Lenox Hill taught my son how to

         15  swim, ride a bike, put a helmet on. When he goes to

         16  lunch, they brush their teeth. They taught him so

         17  much. You would not believe, when they were getting

         18  ready to put my child into a special education

         19  program, that was really unfair. It is worth that 52

         20  blocks every morning. You just don't know.

         21                 And there are times when I don't have

         22  the money to travel, but I get it some way, somehow

         23  to get him there. It is just worth the effort. You

         24  just don't know.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: That is very
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          2  good, and thank you very much for telling us the

          3  difference.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: We need more

          5  parents like you to understand and not accept, and

          6  not accept the things that are thrown at them and

          7  told that they have to endure. The road is rockier

          8  but you are going to get dividends beyond your

          9  imagination. God bless you.

         10                 MS. WALDRON: Thank you.

         11                 MS. WASHINGTON: Good afternoon,

         12  Council Members and audience participants. I am a

         13  community school board member of District 5 in

         14  Harlem. I originally had testimony that focused on

         15  my horror stories, with identifying affordable child

         16  care for my three children.

         17                 However, I believe everyone here

         18  knows the problems of identifying adequate child

         19  care is one of affordability and availability.

         20                 I want to take the time to address

         21  the level of frustration we are experiencing.

         22  Whenever we, the public, is in need of money and

         23  resources to address child care, for schools,

         24  adequate hospitals and other social issues, we find

         25  ourselves begging officials who are not necessarily
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          2  concerned about our plight to do the right thing.

          3                 We cannot ignore the fact that the

          4  Governor can find money to build more prisons and

          5  not find money to prevent our children from

          6  receiving quality care.

          7                 I urge the audience to understand the

          8  role of politics, and the way that it affects the

          9  decision, that the decision-makers are having over

         10  dictating our lives.

         11                 I would like to bring to your

         12  attention the quote that is actually up there on the

         13  ceiling, of having "a government of the people, by

         14  the people, for the people". Excluding the Council

         15  members present today, it is clear that we have a

         16  responsibility to our children and our communities

         17  to vote, support principles, uncompromising

         18  candidates, including ourselves in seeking positions

         19  as elected officials. They are the ones who develop

         20  policies and appoint commissioners who head up

         21  agencies who make important decisions. We must do

         22  more to educate, organize and mobilize and take back

         23  our communities.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Can you tell me
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          2  your name?

          3                 MS. WASHINGTON: I am sorry. Monique

          4  Washington.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

          6                 MS. FOSTER: Good afternoon. My name

          7  is Maxine Foster. I am honored to be here

          8  representing two -- not two day care universal all

          9  day cares, especially I love children and my

         10  situation is that my son attends Lenox Hill

         11  Neighborhood House Day Care, it is a great day care.

         12  How he attended that day care, I went through a lot,

         13  a great deal. And maybe a lot of parents went

         14  through the same thing I did, or maybe they went

         15  through far worse than my situation. And I heard a

         16  young lady talk about -- as a matter of fact, I

         17  heard Helen Marshall, you spoke about the WEP and

         18  the homeless. You could call me homeless, but I call

         19  myself displaced. But I was working for the Human

         20  Resources Administration for almost five years, how

         21  did I become displaced -- and I have a bachelor of

         22  science degree -- well, let me tell you this, I went

         23  away, resigned from the job because I had to because

         24  I had a family crisis that I needed to attend to in

         25  San Diego. Well, I didn't know it was going to end
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          2  immediately, so the situation cleared up and I came

          3  back, asked for reinstatement from 1998 and up to

          4  now they said yes, you will having your job, gave in

          5  the money order, still don't have a job. Still in

          6  the meantime what I had to do was sending our

          7  resumes, going on interviews, I almost got a job but

          8  I didn't have a day care. I went to so many day

          9  cares, went through so many tribulations, went to

         10  the ACD. They said, okay, we will be accepting you

         11  for ACD; however, they gave me a listing of day

         12  care, went to various day cares, but they said we

         13  have to place you on the waiting list. When they

         14  placed me on the waiting list, that was a long time

         15  and I lost that job that I wanted because I didn't

         16  have a babysitter.

         17                 It pushed me to the verge, in 1999,

         18  crying, walking in the snow in 1998 trying to find a

         19  job, send out 150 resumes, ten jobs called me, can't

         20  get a babysitter, I had to write someone on the list

         21  I saw in the next neighborhood. It wasn't in my

         22  neighborhood, I am in Brooklyn, but however, I wrote

         23  them, before I end up getting homeless, I was

         24  staying with a friend when I came back, I wrote

         25  them, tell them my situation, and they told me come
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          2  in. They had waiting lists but they told me to come

          3  in, and that is how my son ended up in Lenox Hill.

          4  Why I had to remove him to Health 1, and Health 1

          5  has a great day care also, because my child has

          6  suffered being homeless, and I had disrupted his

          7  life, so when he is in a neutral environment like

          8  Lenox Hill Neighborhood House, who taught him

          9  swimming, as the lady said, and taught him a lot of

         10  things, they are very sensitive, and it is like a

         11  family, a good family. Because there is bad families

         12  and there is good families, but the center is so

         13  good with the children, if you walk in there is no

         14  pretense like some of the day care.

         15                 And in the meantime what I am doing,

         16  the welfare is telling me I am supposed to work,

         17  cleaning floors, when I have a bachelor of science

         18  degree, telling you I want that job, 9:00 to 5:00

         19  job, you telling me the only thing available for me

         20  is to clean the floor? No. I said, no, I won't do

         21  that. So they said I will sanction you. I said do

         22  that and I am going to continue to write the Mayor.

         23                 So I am for quality day care. I am

         24  also for getting transportation fare for people like

         25  myself who is traveling all the way from Brooklyn to
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          2  bring my son all the way in Manhattan. And I am

          3  saying this, that it is not that people in the

          4  shelter does not want to work, it is not that, no. I

          5  am for it, I want to work. Give me a job. And people

          6  in the shelter who have day care, the shelter has

          7  day care is no good. No, let me tell you something,

          8  Health 1 day care is an excellent day care. So I am

          9  for quality day care and transportation fund.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 MS. GARRISON-MATTHEWS: My name is

         12  Patricia Garrison-Matthews. I am from St. John's

         13  Family Center. For anyone who doesn't know what St.

         14  John's Family Center is, it is a Tier II shelter for

         15  families.

         16                 I am here today to speak about the

         17  need for child care. I came with a group of people

         18  who, the group was formed for mothers with infants

         19  under the age of two and a half, from zero to the

         20  age of two and a half. I believe that one of our

         21  biggest needs, one of the biggest things that stops

         22  us from going out and finding a job is that none of

         23  us have child care. They have day care centers which

         24  most day care centers are from the age of two, for

         25  kids who are potty trained already, or for kids that
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          2  are over the age of two. So that puts us back in the

          3  same bind again, because most all of our children

          4  are under the age of two, none of them are potty

          5  trained.

          6                 I have personally tried to find

          7  informal child care, but where I live is not the

          8  community that I am from. So, therefore the majority

          9  of the people that I would look for informal child

         10  care from, are people who are experiencing the same

         11  thing I am experiencing, they are trying to find

         12  some place permanent to live. They are trying to

         13  look to further their education. They are trying to

         14  find things that are going to better themselves.

         15                 On a daily basis we struggle with

         16  just knowing where we are going to be tomorrow, let

         17  alone trying to find where we are going to send our

         18  kids.

         19                 My daughter is 17 months. As you can

         20  see, she is busy. She is busy. So, I just can't get

         21  up and say, you know, here, I am going to send her

         22  here. Most of the places, most of the child care

         23  agencies that are in the neighborhood where I live

         24  are, like I said, for children who are already potty

         25  trained. But children who can speak, for children
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          2  who can basically do things for themselves. It was

          3  said that most of the people in the shelter system

          4  were just there to look for some place, wait for an

          5  apartment. No, that is not true. We are there

          6  because circumstances put us there. We are not there

          7  because we are waiting for somebody to give us a

          8  free ride.

          9                 Personally, I am 28 years old, and I

         10  want more out of life than just waiting for a

         11  welfare check. I am healthy, I am capable of working

         12  and I intend to go out and work, but one of the

         13  biggest things that stopped me from getting a job is

         14  I have no one to take care of my child. And just as

         15  everyone else's child is the most precious thing to

         16  them, my daughter is precious to me and I would love

         17  to have some place to send her that I know my child

         18  will be taken care of.

         19                 Because just to go out and work, I

         20  have applied to many places and in applying to many

         21  places I have got responses, but I can't go out to

         22  work and know that today this person can take care

         23  of my child and tomorrow I have to take her some

         24  place else. It just doesn't work that way. So, I am

         25  just here to say that child care is very, very
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          2  important to all of us.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And then

          4  Raglan, the crowd that I called. Peggy Saputo,

          5  Virgen Melendez, Raglan George, Janice Phillips.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Just

          7  proceed, the first speaker.

          8                 MS. MELENDEZ: (Gave testimony in

          9  Spanish).

         10                 THE INTERPRETER: Good afternoon. I am

         11  going to interpret what she said.

         12                 Her name is Virgen Melendez. She is a

         13  family -- she is a provider, an informal provider in

         14  my network.

         15                 As a member of the Union Comunal De

         16  Washington Heights, an organization of community

         17  residents who work collectively to improve our

         18  community, we represent more than 1,000 families in

         19  the neighborhood. We receive support, training and

         20  technical assistance from Northern Manhattan

         21  Improvement Corporation.

         22                 We are here to request the

         23  construction of a new child care center in our

         24  community and to request that our funds for this

         25  City be set aside in the City budget for the fiscal
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          2  year 2001. We came here to advocate for our

          3  children's education and their future, since they

          4  will be the professionals of tomorrow. It is

          5  especially for children to receive a good foundation

          6  from infant to age five, this means they should have

          7  educational programs in stimulating environments

          8  that promote the intellectual and social

          9  development.

         10                 From my own experience, I told you

         11  that I had to wait a whole year, from 1998, to get

         12  my child in day care. I remain fascinated by the

         13  ability my child has developed since he went to

         14  school. From this you can see how very important it

         15  is that we get a new child care center for our

         16  community.

         17                 In 1997, 16,191 children in

         18  Washington Heights applied for day care.

         19  Thirteen-thousand qualified for the subsidy, but

         20  only 1,113 were able to get placed. One year later,

         21  in 1998, only 1,295 children were placed, a minimal

         22  increase. For these reasons you can see that we

         23  desperately need a new day care in Washington

         24  Heights.

         25                 I have offered you a petition with
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          2  the signatures of many residents of the community

          3  who also feel that we must have a new day care

          4  center.

          5                 Thank you for permitting us to

          6  participate in this format. We look forward to

          7  working with you in the spirit of cooperation to

          8  achieve this important goal.

          9                 MS. LUI: Good afternoon. My name is

         10  Karin Liu, and I represent the Chinese American

         11  Planning Council, it is a non-profit organization

         12  that sponsors 12 day care centers in the City from

         13  preschool to school age, and we do have one center,

         14  I think Mae Chin had discussed, which is a

         15  collaboration with the garment union workers. And as

         16  she mentioned, there is a great need for child care

         17  in our community, and also that when they do not

         18  have child care, besides trying to sneak them into

         19  work, that you do have some of the immigrant

         20  families that have sent them back to China because

         21  they cannot get child care, and I think that was in

         22  the New York Times and it is detrimental to the

         23  parents and also to the child.

         24                 Anyway, it is easy for me to say, but

         25  I guess it is more realistic if you were to hear it
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          2  from a parent's point of view, and I just would like

          3  to say that when you look at the child in early

          4  childhood education, it is not only the child but we

          5  are looking at the total family. And we want to

          6  develop those families and empower the parents, and

          7  I would like to thank those parents that spoke

          8  beautifully this afternoon.

          9                 I know it is difficult to speak in

         10  front of a big group, and I brought one of my

         11  parents because I think she is going to try her

         12  best. Chinese is her native language, but she is

         13  going to try her best to articulate what she has

         14  gone through, because our Center Chung Palc has over

         15  300 on the waiting list and it is an ACD center.

         16                 MS. LIANG: Hi. My name is Shirley

         17  Liang. I have two children, now they are going to

         18  school at the Chung Palc Day Care Center. Today I

         19  come to talk about Chinatown community. Chinatown

         20  needs more day care and we need quality day care. We

         21  need more day care centers because parents need to

         22  work, and they need to know that their children are

         23  taken care of.

         24                 In some cases there is no day care

         25  and parents had to send their children back to China
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          2  to be cared for by families.

          3                 I was one of those parents, because I

          4  had to work. I had to send my three-month-old baby

          5  back to China to be cared for by his grandmother. It

          6  was hard for me. I did not see my son again until he

          7  was almost two years old. It was hard for him to

          8  adjust to a new environment. Because of the day care

          9  in Chinatown, my son was unable to get into a day

         10  care until he was almost four years old. We are all

         11  really happy that my son and daughter are able to go

         12  to day care now. They enjoy going to day care, and I

         13  know that they are learning a lot.

         14                 There are many families who are not

         15  so lucky. There are children who have to be

         16  separated from their families, children who do

         17  nothing but sit in front of the TV and children who

         18  have to spend their day at their parents' work

         19  place. Chung Palc Day Care have about 300 children

         20  on the waiting list for almost 75 days, so there is

         21  a great need in our community. What will happen to

         22  the children who don't get in?

         23                 Please help our community. We need

         24  the money to create quality day care that our

         25  children deserve.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            234

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 MS. LIU: The bottom line is that we

          3  need services.

          4                 MS. LEE: My name is Lois Lee, and I

          5  am also with the Chinese-American Council, but a

          6  Queens School Age Day Care director and teacher. And

          7  we have been talking all day about money for early

          8  childhood programs, I am representing the School Age

          9  Population. CPC sponsors six free standing school

         10  age day care programs. We are not linked to

         11  preschool. But where do children go after

         12  kindergarten? They must go to after school centers,

         13  and parents are pounding on our doors lining up,

         14  they have been waiting three to five years and they

         15  are so discouraged.

         16                 The 12 day care centers run by CPC

         17  are all ACD programs. Now, you can't tell me that we

         18  cannot expand. We are located -- well, I am located

         19  in PS 20, we are all located in public school

         20  buildings. For 28 years I have been teaching and

         21  directing. Twelve years ago I started CPC Day Care,

         22  and from day one we asked for expansion money. For

         23  12 years, not one penny in sight. We have four

         24  principals our school has gone through, and each one

         25  asked why don't you extend your program, you only
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          2  have two classes. Now, we have 44 children and our

          3  school PS 20 has 1,500 students, and rezoned for all

          4  the schools in District 25, it is two from every

          5  school. We have ten different schools coming to our

          6  small little program. Our program is really well

          7  known in the community, the library. We were the

          8  only program invited to the ribbon-cutting ceremony

          9  at the public library in Flushing and that is the

         10  largest in the whole nation, this library.

         11                 So, what happened is that, our

         12  parents, they have the latch key kids, you know,

         13  school age and preschool and they need their monies,

         14  but the after school program children, they are

         15  running around in the streets, joining gangs and who

         16  knows what they are doing. They are mugged. Their

         17  parents are saying we don't know what to do.

         18                 But in the meanwhile, the Board of Ed

         19  has raised the school standards, and now the reasons

         20  that the parents want care, it is not so much that,

         21  oh, what is going to happen to my child, it is

         22  because they are failing in school.

         23                 Seventy-five percent of our families

         24  are from immigrant families, and Brooklyn and Queens

         25  has the largest immigrant-growing population. So, we
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          2  know that the language problem is very difficult,

          3  and the teachers are saying why can't these Chinese

          4  children construct a simple sentence? Because the

          5  Chinese families, they speak Chinese and our

          6  grammatic, our structure is different from the

          7  American structure, the tenses are all different, it

          8  is a whole new language. But my Hispanic, my black

          9  families, my white families, my other 25 percent. Do

         10  you know that reading, writing and math is a foreign

         11  language to these children?

         12                 They did not come from preschool

         13  programs, a lot of them are just coming straight

         14  into the Board of Education, and they hear the

         15  lesson once, a math lesson, and then they come

         16  downstairs for a CPC after school program, and then

         17  they want homework help, and I say, well, didn't you

         18  learn this in school? No, we didn't understand what

         19  she was talking about. She says it so fast, we don't

         20  understand. So we have to reteach the learning,

         21  homework is not a reinforcement of what they are

         22  learning in school, it is a new learning for a lot

         23  of the children.

         24                 The parents are saying please help

         25  us. You know, the first marking period just went by
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          2  last week, and we have parent/teacher conferences,

          3  and we are the Board of Ed liaisons. The children

          4  have promotion in doubt on their report cards. Now,

          5  how could these teachers know that they are not

          6  going to be promoted in June 2000, when the school

          7  year just started? Already the kids are saying you

          8  are going to fail and didn't even give them a chance

          9  yet.

         10                 But then CPC, because it is so

         11  popular, we have a very high success rate. I had

         12  this boy Gabriel, he is in the sixth grade class, he

         13  was counting in addition on his fingers. When he

         14  came to my program he was throwing the book down on

         15  the floor, threw his math book down, I hate math, I

         16  can't stand it, and then we told him we understood

         17  his frustrations and we told him, do you know that

         18  he won the math award in June for 1999. And that he

         19  went and the teacher said what are you doing, and

         20  how are you doing this math? And he says because I

         21  know the Chinese method. Actually it is the regular

         22  method, but he thinks it is Chinese. He is Spanish.

         23  And he said at my after school center they taught me

         24  how to do math. But you know, the quality program is

         25  not home work help. It is also social skills,
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          2  emotional skills and survival skills.

          3                 We taught first aid, cooking, they

          4  are home on the weekends alone and they have to

          5  learn how to cook for themselves. We also give

          6  swimming and team sports, these parents are not

          7  taking them to teams. But the interesting thing is,

          8  part of quality programming, it is no the program,

          9  the curriculum itself, it is the staff.

         10                 We have our original staff, plus we

         11  have our volunteers from the Townsend Harris High

         12  School, because those are all of the local high

         13  schools. They come to my school, we have 44

         14  children, more staff, and high school community

         15  service people than students sometimes. I have to

         16  tell them you can come one day a week, you can't

         17  come five days a week.

         18                 We have the staff, we have the

         19  community service people, we have the students and

         20  we have unlimited space in PS 20, with the support

         21  of principal. Yet, why can't we get this money from

         22  ACD, or whoever is giving us this money, to expand

         23  our program. They said ten percent - we need

         24  probably more than ten percent.

         25                 I am willing to open my day care, we
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          2  have our staff standing by tomorrow. If they would

          3  just release the funds to us. And then they say,

          4  well, why don't you go for TASK After School

          5  Corporation because they give a lot of monies. TASK

          6  does not open on the summer holidays or the school

          7  holidays, or spring -- winter recess, which ACD

          8  programs do, and that is when we are so popular and

          9  in demand.

         10                 So, I wish someone would just push

         11  that money through and we can get it before next

         12  week, I will be happy.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: You know, it

         14  is interesting, this is probably a very depressing

         15  situation for us. We are talking about children.

         16  They are new. They have just come into the world,

         17  they are so ready to learn, and yet we are not doing

         18  it. We don't care about the future of New York City.

         19  We don't care. We don't have oil wells and gold

         20  mines, we have people, and people start small, fresh

         21  and ready to learn and we are not doing our job.

         22  Very sad. Very sad.

         23                 MS. SAPUTO: Good morning. My name is

         24  Petty Saputo and I have been a teacher for the LYFE

         25  Program for the past nine years. LYFE, which stands
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          2  for Living for Young Family Education, currently has

          3  46 sites throughout the City.

          4                 Our program provides a chance for

          5  adults and parents to continue their schooling while

          6  their children attend an educational-based child

          7  care center.

          8                 Between ACD and the Board of

          9  Education we are supported, but unfortunately it is

         10  not enough.

         11                 There are still parts of our City

         12  that have the need but not the funding for our

         13  program, and one of them is Washington Heights,

         14  which I have heard a lot about today.

         15                 We currently serve 600 to 700

         16  children between two months through three years of

         17  age, and we still have tremendous waiting lists.

         18                 Enabling our young parents to remain

         19  in school and receive a high school diploma benefits

         20  the entire City.

         21                 We will be equipping them with skills

         22  necessary to become self-sufficient, contributing

         23  members of a society, instead of a dream.

         24                 Your financial support today will

         25  enable us to save more families from the welfare
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          2  rolls and provide a brighter future for our City.

          3  And I included a handout with a lot more

          4  information, but I won't speak about it in order to

          5  be brief.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Do you have a

          7  waiting list?

          8                 MS. SAPUTO: Yes, we do.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And how large

         10  is it, do you know?

         11                 MS. SAPUTO: I don't know specifics, I

         12  am representing the program and my director would

         13  have the numbers.

         14                 There may be some included in there

         15  but I believe it is pretty big.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 MS. PHILLIPS: Good afternoon. My name

         19  is Janice Phillips. I am a present executive board

         20  member of District Council 1707, Local 205, who

         21  represents day care workers.

         22                 I used to work at Franklin Plaza Day

         23  Care Center for 14 years until July 2nd, 1999. I was

         24  the shop steward there for ten years. I am on the

         25  front line in the day care centers in fighting for
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          2  the union.

          3                 We say that we need quality child

          4  care, but how can that be when we turn around and

          5  close day care centers down.

          6                 Franklin Plaza Day Care Center was

          7  closed in two days' notice by the Administration of

          8  Children's Services, Agency of Child Development on

          9  July 2nd, 1999. This center was in operation for 30

         10  years in the East Harlem community. We had quality

         11  child care services and then it was taken away from

         12  the community. This hurts the parents, the children

         13  and the staff. Fourteen staff members end up without

         14  jobs, and as of now we have not received any monies

         15  due to us as yet.

         16                 We are not -- we were not up for RFP

         17  until the Year 2000. The parents were given

         18  vouchers, but some were left without services

         19  because the centers were full. The children cried

         20  for their teachers, the parents and staff cried

         21  together.

         22                 Some centers have mismanagement, but

         23  that was not the case at this Center. The staff was

         24  dedicated to the children and parents. We were not

         25  paid for seven months on time, but we stuck together
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          2  and tried our best to get to work and had the center

          3  open for the community in 1998. There were pay lags

          4  at the end of the Fiscal Year. Nothing was done

          5  right for the children, the parents and the staff at

          6  Franklin Plaza Day Care Center.

          7                 Some members have not found a job

          8  yet. There are other centers still closing. The

          9  Administration for Children's Services, Agency for

         10  Child Development, has cut back on their staff for

         11  child care. This system needs to be evaluated and

         12  changed so that we can have quality child care. We

         13  need to have another way to save our day care

         14  center.

         15                 To go on about me, I have found

         16  another job but got fired because the director was

         17  scared of my union knowledge and my rights that I

         18  have. So, now I am out here with some of my other

         19  workers without a job. It is frightening that you

         20  work for 14 years in a system and then you are just

         21  kicked out and no one cares what is happening to

         22  you.

         23                 I am diabetic. I have no health

         24  coverage as of now, but I am still here fighting for

         25  the union. Please try to see with the new money if
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          2  something could be done that nothing happens like

          3  this again.

          4                 MR. GEORGE: Councilwoman Eldridge,

          5  other members of the Council, the Citizens Committee

          6  for Children, the Children's Defense Fund and the

          7  Children's Budget Committee, thank you for calling

          8  this hearing today.

          9                 My name is Raglan George, Jr., I am

         10  the Director for Head Start Day Care for District

         11  Council 1707, the federation of State, County and

         12  Municipal Employees. It is indeed an honor to appear

         13  in the City Council Chambers to articulate our

         14  views.

         15                 For more than 30 years, our union,

         16  along with the Council of Supervisors and

         17  Administrators and other advocates have been in the

         18  forefront of the movement for quality accessible,

         19  affordable and safe child care.

         20                 Now many other unions have joined us,

         21  including through the AFL/CIO, the New York City

         22  Central Labor Council, and the Union Child Care

         23  Coalition.

         24                 DC 1707 is the largest child care

         25  workers union in the United States, we represent
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          2  more than 6,000 public funded child care group

          3  teachers, teacher assistants, cooks, maintenance

          4  workers and others.

          5                 We also represent nearly 3,000 Head

          6  Start employees, and despite what the new theorists

          7  on child care policies say, publicly funded child

          8  care does work. We just need more of it.

          9                 Witness the official waiting lists in

         10  New York City at more than 40,000 strong, and we

         11  know that the need for child care is much more than

         12  have officially registered. I am sorry I couldn't

         13  respond to the City when they were sitting up there,

         14  I was frothing at the mouth over there, but I guess

         15  I will get through this now and talk to you at

         16  another time.

         17                 Study after study has shown that

         18  workers who send their children through affordable,

         19  accessible and quality child care are sure that

         20  their children are safe, live productive lives and

         21  grow up to fuel the local economy, through payments

         22  of taxes and consumerism.

         23                 Although we will debate the

         24  priorities in the spending of the $4 million, we

         25  know we should be debating the spending of funding
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          2  triple those expenditures.

          3                 We must not fight over a smaller pie,

          4  but we must assure that the monies are spent wisely.

          5                 In an era where private industry is

          6  providing rather shall arguments that private

          7  industry can perform the task of the State more

          8  efficiently, we disagree. We do not believe that

          9  private industry can better service our children

         10  than the regulated public day care centers like the

         11  fully subsidized programs that employ DC 1707

         12  members and happens to be one of the best in the

         13  country.

         14                 This is because of the dedication of

         15  child care professionals who have made a career of

         16  educating children while their union has continued

         17  to fight in better working conditions, including

         18  salaries and benefits. This is part of an ongoing

         19  effort to maintain the highest quality childhood

         20  professionals in the pursuit and to pursue their

         21  careers, so our children grow up aspiring for their

         22  own careers.

         23                 Even though they went through pay lag

         24  and have done for the last few years where workers

         25  have gone through from one to four bi-weekly pay
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          2  periods without pay, where they have to beg and to

          3  get carfare to come to work to take care of the

          4  children, and the City didn't even respond in a

          5  proper manner to see that these people were paid on

          6  time.

          7                 At this point in time, Head Start

          8  workers are still waiting for money that was assured

          9  them in 1998 and they haven't gotten that money yet.

         10  But this is the way the City looks at child care

         11  workers.

         12                 At the same time there is a role that

         13  private industry can play in helping to boost

         14  publicly funded child care centers, including for

         15  contributions. Also, private industry can work

         16  together with unions, community organizations and

         17  elected officials to build public community-based

         18  centers which their employees can utilize. But we

         19  should not get into the business of subsidizing

         20  private industry to help take care of our children.

         21                 Private industry is a

         22  profit-motivated child -- it is profit-motivated.

         23  Child care is at its best when it is for the

         24  educational and emotional well-being of the

         25  children. The demands on the Committee are evident
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          2  to us. We hope that the date is open to further

          3  expand the licensed community-based day care

          4  centers, more funding -- and more funding is needed

          5  for construction.

          6                 And that I think is the key. We talk

          7  about expanding child care when capital monies

          8  should be put to handle capacity. We don't have the

          9  capacity to put children anywhere, because they are

         10  not building any day care centers.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Exactly.

         12                 MR. GEORGE: We get a lot of money in

         13  past budgets, to talk about capacity and nothing is

         14  being built, and they are still pushing us towards

         15  your vouchers. And sticking vouchers in somebody's

         16  hand. That is the quality child care.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Where they

         18  couldn't use it in public school, they are using it

         19  in day care.

         20                 MR. GEORGE: Yes, they are. Yes, they

         21  are.

         22                 More funding is needed for

         23  construction. That is remodeling existing centers,

         24  and new construction. More slots are needed for

         25  children.
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          2                 How can people ever hope to escape

          3  the shackles of poverty when they do not even have

          4  an opportunity to take a job where there is nowhere

          5  to safely leave their children, and nowhere the

          6  children will learn reading, writing and math, how

          7  to respect life. It is indeed a scandal of the

          8  highest proportions when only 18 percent of families

          9  in New York State who are eligible to receive

         10  assistance for child care receive it.

         11                 If for no other reason this is enough

         12  of a powerful argument for parents to have an

         13  obligation to vote for candidates who best express

         14  their interests in child care in the upcoming

         15  congressional and presidential elections.

         16                 There has to be more funding for

         17  training and compensation for child care

         18  professionals. Many of our teachers in day care have

         19  the same credentials as their counterparts in the

         20  Board of Education. They are not babysitters, they

         21  are competent and compassionate early childhood

         22  educators, and as such are long overdue the parity

         23  with Board of Education teachers that they deserve.

         24                 It is time to increase the investment

         25  in programs that work, that are educational,
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          2  stimulating and safe. Expansion of the voucher

          3  system is not the answer for quality. I repeat:

          4  Expansion of the voucher system is not the answer

          5  for quality, affordable, accessible child care.

          6                 For three decades New York City has

          7  had a rich experience in subsidizing quality,

          8  affordable, accessible and safe child care. Public

          9  care that gives parents assurances that their

         10  children are in caring hands. These hands are

         11  certified, regulated and skilled. It is time to

         12  provide more facilities with these hands so more of

         13  our children can have a better chance in life.

         14                 If New York City is to grow into a

         15  new millennium with a bright future, it must take

         16  great care of its youngest citizens. It must not

         17  take the illusion of an easy path but the well-worn

         18  and true path that has demonstrated its worth by its

         19  success.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         22                 MS. SCOTT: Greetings. My name is

         23  Celia Scott, and I pay homage to all of you that are

         24  sitting there.

         25                 When I came and I sat and I listened
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          2  to all of the testimony I was very touched. But the

          3  most that touched me the most is the word "people",

          4  people, people, children are people. And until we

          5  start thinking of children as people, we are not

          6  going to progress in this democracy.

          7                 I serve on the Board of 1707, Local

          8  205. I am the Chairperson of the Teachers Committee.

          9  I have a master's in early childhood education, but

         10  when we as teachers who look at children as

         11  children, as people, and as human beings who need

         12  nurturing, we walk into that classroom and all the

         13  titles are left at the door. We become mothers, we

         14  become lovers of the children, we become the people

         15  who wipe their tears, we become lap-holders, because

         16  all of that is the criteria that makes children

         17  children. And we have responsibilities as teachers

         18  and as human beings to create an environment that

         19  children can feel safe and loved at all times. And

         20  when we do this, you see growing gradually.

         21                 When I think about the system and the

         22  ACD, and how it is run, I take my hat off to each of

         23  you, because some of the questions that you ask have

         24  been lingering in my heart for so many years. How

         25  can they, the system, create problems that they
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          2  themselves don't even realize that they are

          3  creating.

          4                 The first thing that they did was

          5  take the three percent out of the budget. How can

          6  you teach without materials? But we, as parents

          7  first, and professionals second, use our own funds

          8  to facilitate the materials that are needed to make

          9  our program a quality, warm and inviting program

         10  that children can learn from.

         11                 But yet, we are not getting the

         12  respect that we need and that we have earned

         13  professionally. We are looked at as babysitters. And

         14  do you know what is greater than that? Our salaries,

         15  our salaries are still reflecting that mode that

         16  everyone walks around with.

         17                 I am asking that you no longer look

         18  at us as just the people who are passing through,

         19  but the people who nourish. Those children, some of

         20  your children, who are doctors and lawyers, and who

         21  have sat here, we are the turning factors to let

         22  progress look at us as the mates and the

         23  professionals that we are, and pay us the salary

         24  that we have earned.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I have so

          3  totally confused all of these things, that I don't

          4  know where we are. How many people are planning

          5  still to testify.

          6                 All right, so that is one, two,

          7  three, four, five, six, seven, eight. What is your

          8  name back there? Are you the person with the

          9  petition?

         10                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: All right. So,

         12  let's take six now. Sandy, Carmen, we will work our

         13  way back. I am sorry to do this to you.

         14                 Is there anybody urgently who has to

         15  leave within a minute?

         16                 Everybody has filled out a card,

         17  right? So you will just have to tell me your name.

         18                 Let's take the person in the back and

         19  the woman with her hand up in the back. Way in the

         20  back. Sorry about that. The only good thing about

         21  going so long is a lot of people, and it is a

         22  terrible say, I mean, the reverse part of that

         23  people left, is that they left and we can have some

         24  more. Two more people can come up.

         25                 Sandy.
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          2                 MS. SOCOLAR: My name is Sandy

          3  Socolar, and I am here to speak for the Child Care

          4  Committee of the Welfare Reform Network. What I had

          5  intended to speak about was the need for child care

          6  generated by the Mayor's announcement that parents

          7  in shelters, homeless shelters, need to go into

          8  workfare programs as a condition for having a place

          9  for themselves and their children to live, and I

         10  have prepared a report on behalf of our Committee

         11  that I would like to circulate to the Council

         12  Members, but what it is, is a report on all of the

         13  child care, all of the shelters and showing that

         14  they are very grouped in certain communities that

         15  need to be considered that these parents, unlike

         16  those that have been called in by HRA for welfare

         17  assignments, these parents are not living anywhere

         18  near their relatives and neighbors, so in five days

         19  they are not going to be able to find a neighbor or

         20  a relative that they can put their child with. So,

         21  it means that HRA is going to have to come up with

         22  some solutions for how to provide them with child

         23  care, if they want to implement this requirement.

         24                 And what the Commissioner, Deputy

         25  Commissioner Hoover has said, is we can give them a

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            255

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  long list of all of the family day care providers

          3  who have registered and have them certainly be able

          4  to find someone in that whole list that they can

          5  place their child with.

          6                 I think that it is totally

          7  unacceptable that these families who are going

          8  through all kinds of stresses with children have a

          9  high rate of chronic conditions like asthma that

         10  have health problems that need to be dealt with

         11  appropriately, that they should not be asked parent

         12  by parent to go door to door and screen out whether

         13  these providers that have filled out a form whom

         14  they are meeting as total strangers, that they would

         15  be able to determine that this is a home that is

         16  free of lead, peeling lead paint and lead dust, that

         17  this is a home that is free of roach droppings and

         18  other allergins, that this is a provider who can

         19  provide a safe, clean, separate place for each of

         20  the children to nap, that this is a provider, whose

         21  smoke detector and fire extinguisher are actually

         22  working, that this is a provider who can be

         23  responsive to the child's needs and meet the health

         24  needs that can develop.

         25                 The alternative is, of course, that
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          2  the City could start funding the additional spaces

          3  in the family day care programs, that have providers

          4  ready to add to their programs that have been

          5  carefully screened and whose homes have been

          6  carefully brought into compliance. That would be an

          7  immediate way that they could do this and we are not

          8  hearing, though we have known that this money was

          9  going to be available since last January, we have

         10  not yet heard that they actually have a firm date

         11  for increasing these contracts.

         12                 The other very quick way that they

         13  could expand child care for the shelter children

         14  would be to authorize programs that have

         15  school-aged, ACD centers that have school-aged

         16  programs, give them the authorization to set up

         17  on-site school-based programs in those schools that

         18  have the Virtual Y program. The Virtual Y Program

         19  provides an enriched program for third and fourth

         20  graders and the space is there in these schools so

         21  that they can be providing after school activities

         22  for the children from kindergarten through second

         23  grade and from fourth grade to sixth grade, and make

         24  the life of these children in the shelters their

         25  after school hours, something that would be
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          2  enriching, healthful and educationally supportive

          3  like the kind of programs that Chinese-American

          4  Planning Council runs in its schools. That is the

          5  main point of my talk.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 MS. WHITELY: My name is Barbar

          9  Whitely.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Just pull it

         11  closer to you.

         12                 MS. WHITELY: My name is Barbara

         13  Whitely. I am from Cardinal McCloskey, and I am a

         14  provider in home day care, okay?

         15                 I would just like to comment on some

         16  of the things that have been said here today. I had

         17  a whole speech prepared and everything, what I would

         18  like to say is that the providers' homes are being

         19  surveyed once a month by the social workers, and

         20  sometimes the City and State come in also to make

         21  sure we have our home free of lead poisoning or

         22  anything like that.

         23                 We also, at Cardinal McCloskey get

         24  paid once a month and on time. I guess that is why

         25  we can get paid on time because we get paid once a
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          2  month. So that was something positive towards that

          3  also.

          4                 In my program, I teach the basic

          5  skills and things. We are not just sitting there and

          6  not teaching the children anything. I have extended

          7  myself to go for extra training beyond the 15-hour

          8  training every two years.  I am going for my CDA,

          9  and I also have different training in a lot of

         10  fields that they have out there. They have workshops

         11  and a lot -- I am getting choked up, and a lot of

         12  the conferences and everything -- I am trying to get

         13  everything out real fast in the time. And a lot of

         14  workshops, and I go for them because I want to be

         15  able to extend myself to every child, as well as the

         16  parents. And I have been able to encourage the

         17  parents, and give the parents work to go out and

         18  help their children. I have two children in my home

         19  that couldn't speak. I gave -- I referred them to

         20  different agencies and helped them to get their

         21  child started so they would be able to speak. One of

         22  them is really speaking now very good, very well,

         23  faster than I speak, and that was a big

         24  accomplishment for me, as well as the parent and

         25  their child.
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          2                 The regulations, like I said before,

          3  we are regulated, we do get -- most of business and

          4  everything, they come out there and expect to see

          5  first aid, fire extinguishers and everything, and if

          6  anything is wrong they tell us to correct it. By the

          7  time they come back for the next visit it has to be

          8  corrected or else we get written up, and I don't

          9  know what else might happen, but I never had it

         10  because I always correct whatever is done.

         11                 And I just want to say thank you

         12  today for inviting us here to let us voice our

         13  opinions and everything. My coworkers and everyone

         14  else who have come up here have really stressed the

         15  point that we need quality child care, and that way,

         16  and it is really hurting a lot of us because we have

         17  spaces in our homes that is available, we all are

         18  suffering, the children are suffering, we are

         19  suffering. I have been in the business for nine and

         20  a half years, for the last three and a half years, I

         21  have only had three to four children, and they

         22  always tell us there are waiting lists. I don't care

         23  how you take the child, they can take the child

         24  there and tell them we have a waiting list, we have

         25  a cap. Please remove that cap. Because for a lot of
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          2  us providers that is the only thing we have, income,

          3  is that (sic), we don't have no other income.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But if you are

          6  a provider affiliated with Cardinal McClosky, and

          7  you are saying you have vacancies?

          8                 MS. WHITELY: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Does the

         10  network not help you recruit children to fill those

         11  vacancies?

         12                 MS. WHITELY: They help us. You know,

         13  like the cap is there now, they don't have any, they

         14  can't extend us because they have a cap there.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: There is a cap

         16  on the agency.

         17                 MS. WHITELY: There is a cap on the

         18  agency, and they are sending children to the center

         19  because the center is more, they get more money for

         20  the centers than they do for the provider's home.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you. But

         22  you certainly have testified why some of us really

         23  feel that all family providers should be affiliated,

         24  or a provider should be affiliated with a network,

         25  because I think then you get all of these additional
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          2  opportunities.

          3                 But thank you very much.

          4                 MS. WHITELY: We help ourselves also.

          5  I do advertising in the local papers, and put flyers

          6  up in the drugstore, whatever I can do to try to

          7  help myself, because they say they have a cap, what

          8  can they do? It really hurts when you don't have the

          9  money for the children.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Right. Thank

         11  you.

         12                 MS. WHITELY: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Okay.

         14                 MS. GABRIELLE: Good afternoon. My

         15  name is Norma Gabrielle. I am the Director of Little

         16  Rock Toddlers, located in the East Flatbush section

         17  of Brooklyn.

         18                 My day care, the hours rarely are

         19  from -- we can only afford because of insurance,

         20  which is very high in New York City, from eight in

         21  the morning until 6:00 in the evening.

         22                 The instance, I have two levels and

         23  an after school program, which only four children

         24  really is funded through the agencies. The others

         25  are private.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            262

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 I also have special needs children.

          3  Right now there are two twins, who the mother really

          4  cannot afford to stay home, the twins were born

          5  premature and they were only a pound and four ounces

          6  at birth. Now they are 16 months. I have five

          7  different therapists who come in every day for these

          8  children. I have another child who the mother cannot

          9  afford day care, the child has been in and out of

         10  hospitals 28 times, because he has a stomach problem

         11  and he chokes on his food.

         12                 These are things that I am doing out

         13  of the kindness of my heart and that I love kids.

         14  And the most of my workers are being paid very low

         15  wages but they enjoy the job. And some of us have to

         16  see that our kids are being cared for.

         17                 I also am in with some vouchers,

         18  which I cannot depend on the voucher system to pay

         19  me to pay my workers, because the voucher system,

         20  when you do your paperwork at the end of that month

         21  and it goes in, you have to wait for the middle or

         22  the ending of the next month to be paid.

         23                 So, I have to use some of the funds

         24  that set aside for other things in the day care,

         25  sometimes my staff has to wait until the vouchers
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          2  send me that check in order to be paid, which I

          3  think is very wrong on the voucher system.

          4                 Also, HRA, they are not paying us

          5  when they should. We have to sit back and wait, then

          6  again if parents come to us and they are approved

          7  for HRA, you start the child, you send in that date,

          8  HRA system will send you out a letter maybe another

          9  month and tell you the parent will have been cut

         10  off. Now, this time we don't know this, we are still

         11  giving the services, then we are left holding the

         12  bag. No pay.

         13                 There is a form you fill out, you go

         14  down and they put you through so much hearing in

         15  order to get your money. Why?

         16                 So you cannot really say close the

         17  doors and don't give the parents day care, because

         18  most of these parents are low-income parents and

         19  they have to go to work.

         20                 I sat down and I heard a parent

         21  talking about she has a degree. I also have a degree

         22  in early childhood education, and you know, the WEP

         23  program, she has to work and they send her to clean

         24  offices. Now, I have a contract from the City and I

         25  did not send it back in. I asked the City to send me

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            264

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  some workers. The City send me out a contract

          3  agreement. Wants me to sign the contract stating

          4  that I am held liable for the person that is working

          5  there, and God forbid if something happen to that

          6  person, my insurance is held liable. Why is that?

          7                 These people were sent to work on

          8  these sites from the City, I don't think that it is

          9  right for us to be held liable for the clients that

         10  are coming through the WEP program to work.

         11                 So, I just say this right now, you

         12  know, I am happy to see that this money came

         13  through. I don't know what areas the money will be

         14  going into, but I do hope that it will help the

         15  family who is desperately in need of child care.

         16                 That's all I have to say.

         17                 MS. SWAREZ: Good afternoon. My name

         18  is Carmen Swarez, I am a grandparent of a child in

         19  an after school service, and I am also a provider. I

         20  work for Grant Street Settlement Head Start Program,

         21  and we are collaborated with the day care center.

         22                 I am here because one of my issues is

         23  that, yes, we are underpaid, everybody knows that. I

         24  am working towards my master's degree, I have passed

         25  all of my city certifications exams for certified
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          2  teacher, yet my pay does not reflect anything that

          3  the Board of Ed is paying their teachers.

          4                 I have been working in the day care

          5  at Head Start for ten years.

          6                 Aside from what I do with my

          7  children, with my granddaughter, I support their

          8  monthly fees for supplies. We have to -- they are

          9  asking like a minimum of $2 a month for them to be

         10  able to buy crayons, to buy markers, to buy

         11  construction paper, to buy glue for these children

         12  to use in the after school program. I feel that

         13  although the City is providing a service, they

         14  should also provide the means for which we provide

         15  the services.

         16                 I feel that it is highly unfair that

         17  although I am capable of doing it, there are so many

         18  other parents out there that cannot afford the $2 a

         19  month. I don't mind doing it because since she is an

         20  extended member of my family, I am not charged this

         21  fee for her services there. So, therefore I gladly

         22  give whatever I can. I do the same thing for the

         23  children that I care for at my center. I go out and

         24  the money doesn't trickle down when it should, or

         25  there is such a long wait for you to get what you
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          2  need in your classroom supplies, so you go out and

          3  purchase it.

          4                 I feel that we shouldn't have to do

          5  that. I feel that that big of a city that we are, as

          6  much funding as we should be getting, we need to get

          7  it down to where we need to get it and we need to

          8  better our children's education, at the lower levels

          9  and not wait until they are in the junior high

         10  schools, and then the high schools and then tell the

         11  parents, your child is not graduating because the

         12  system messed up somewhere along the line and your

         13  children is not doing what he should be doing at

         14  that age level, or that grade level.

         15                 We need to take care of these

         16  problems now in the early childhood, not when they

         17  are in high school, not when they are in 12th Grade

         18  getting ready to graduate and we say your child

         19  cannot graduate this year.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 MS. RANDALL: Good afternoon. My name

         22  is Edna Randall. I have been here from early

         23  morning, and it would behoove me to leave from here

         24  without bringing to the point and to the table the

         25  fact that New York has to awaken itself to realize
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          2  that we are now at the boundaries of the new

          3  millennium, and whatever went on before, it is no

          4  longer going on continuously. We must make a change.

          5  There must be some kind of way in which each

          6  individual person must stand up and be accountable

          7  for what they truly believe in for children.

          8                 I am a parent first, I am an advocate

          9  second. I work for Brooklyn Parents Advocacy Network

         10  and I have to say, we can no longer let our children

         11  be the sufferers of what neglect has been. Children

         12  are people, yes, and they are foundation. If this

         13  United States of America wants to stay the way it

         14  has always been, we must let our children be the

         15  kind of people that they should be, strong,

         16  productive people.

         17                 We need quality day care. We need

         18  quality day care not only for the newborns or three

         19  months, we need it for adolescents, we need it for

         20  children who are after school where parents are

         21  working, single moms, single fathers. There

         22  shouldn't be children in the streets wandering

         23  around, where to go and who they should be with. In

         24  the olden days, yes, there would always be an

         25  extended family member who would be there for them,
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          2  or someone. Mom would be there or grandmother or

          3  Bobby, somebody would be there.

          4                 It is time that we took on the agenda

          5  of making quality care for our children for the new

          6  tomorrow. Children are entitled to it, United States

          7  deserve it, it's long overdue.

          8                 When each and every person sits down

          9  to make a decision as to how they are going to vote

         10  for monies to be appropriated for programs that are

         11  out here for sacrificing people who have been giving

         12  their lives, their sweat and their energy toward

         13  helping children be more viable adults for the

         14  community. Think in terms of what would you do for

         15  your own? What would I do if it were my own? And if

         16  you do that, you search your heart and your spirit,

         17  you must know what is right to do. No longer can we

         18  turn our head, no longer can we allow our Mayor or

         19  any other political person to dictate to us a

         20  protocol of what is the negative way or the way of

         21  non-productivity for children.

         22                 It is true, yes, it takes more than a

         23  village to raise a child, it takes each and every

         24  one of us and we are all a part of the equation, and

         25  it is time that we all took our stand and became a
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          2  supporter of children for tomorrow.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Is there

          4  anybody left who wants to testify after this group?

          5                 I don't know how to thank you enough

          6  for being the last, but does that mean you each get

          7  20 minutes a piece? No, all right.

          8                 You start. Thank you. The light has

          9  to be off to be on.

         10                 MS. LUNON: My name is Betty Lunon,

         11  and I thank you very much for being invited here

         12  today. I began as a provider ten years ago. For

         13  three years I worked with two children, so I finally

         14  went and got some training, and I found out that I

         15  could get some kids on my own. So, I began to get

         16  kids on my own.

         17                 Right now I am under Faith, Hope and

         18  Charity Day Care, but I only have two children from

         19  Faith, Hope and Charity. I have about 15 children

         20  and they are all children from other sorts.

         21                 I like to speak for East New York.

         22  East New York has a lot of day care providers. They

         23  have a lot of homes, but mostly those homes have two

         24  and three children.

         25                 There was a program that they had
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          2  that you could have children on two floors. I

          3  understand that was cut out, and it is not that

          4  there is no one there for the children, the money is

          5  not being given that could be used for the children.

          6                 ACD have a cap on their program, when

          7  parents come to us from ACD and we register them and

          8  they go back with their papers, ACD is telling them

          9  that you cannot use a private day care, so they have

         10  to go somewhere else.

         11                 So, that is a part of the problem

         12  with placing the children. It is not that the

         13  parents don't find places, it is that they are not

         14  allowed to use the space they find.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         17                 MS. TORRES: Good afternoon. I am

         18  Myrna Torres, Director of Child Care Special

         19  Projects at the Children's Aid Society. And in the

         20  Children's Aid Society's forthcoming report, which

         21  looks at how the human cost of waiting for child

         22  care, we interviewed 150 families who were on

         23  waiting lists of seven day care programs, at the

         24  Bronx, Brooklyn and Manhattan.

         25                 Overwhelmingly we found that it is
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          2  the complexity of the child care system that is

          3  defeating our purpose and our parents.

          4                 When there is a fire, we know to call

          5  the Fire Department. When we need a driver's license

          6  we go to motor vehicles. When child care is needed,

          7  a service that is essential, if we expect parents to

          8  work, in a service without which educational and

          9  welfare reform cannot work, our study found that

         10  parents don't know where to go or who is in charge.

         11                 We discovered that many low-income

         12  working families did not know that they were

         13  eligible for a child care subsidy, they were not

         14  aware of the existence of the Agency for Child

         15  Development, and that ACD is the agency responsible

         16  for providing child care assistance.

         17                 These parents were also not aware

         18  that they could put their child's name on more than

         19  one waiting list and as a result unknowingly limited

         20  their options.

         21                 Families participating in welfare

         22  reform activities were unaware of their rights to a

         23  range of subsidized child care options and the

         24  availability of transitional child care benefits

         25  once they leave welfare and become employed.
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          2                 As a result, parents paid too much

          3  for child care both in monetary and human costs.

          4                 The Children's Aid Society's other

          5  major findings indicate:

          6                 1) Parents know what research has

          7  proven, that high quality child care is both

          8  educationally and socially beneficial but they can't

          9  afford it.

         10                 Fifty-four percent of the parents

         11  interviewed in our survey said they were looking for

         12  child care that stressed education and school

         13  readiness skills.

         14                 2) Low and moderate-income families

         15  pay disproportionately more for child care than

         16  other parents.

         17                 Fifty-eight percent of the families

         18  surveyed who reported yearly incomes from 6,000 to

         19  12,000 spent 20 to 50 percent of their income on

         20  child care.

         21                 3) Families who wait for child care

         22  assistance are forced to turn to unregulated, less

         23  reliable forms of child care. Thirty percent of the

         24  families rated their current child care arrangements

         25  from fair to poor.
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          2                 4) Waiting for child care places

          3  emotional and financial strain on children and

          4  parents.

          5                 5) The lack of quality child care

          6  jeopardizes children's healthy development and

          7  parent's ability to work.

          8                 Twenty-five percent of the parents

          9  who were employed when they first applied for child

         10  care reported having to leave their jobs and apply

         11  for public assistance for lack of child care.

         12                 Our recommendations: Excellent

         13  recommendations to improve the quality of child care

         14  in New York City have been made over the years and

         15  they are still valid. But our study leads us to

         16  believe that one major change in our child care

         17  structure must take precedence over all others.

         18                 New York City parents need one point

         19  of entry for subsidized child care, and one standard

         20  of eligibility for child care that is based on

         21  income.

         22                 There should be no distinction

         23  between low-income working parents and parents who

         24  are transitioning off of welfare. One agency should

         25  be responsible for providing subsidized child care
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          2  and that agency should undertake a major

          3  multilingual public awareness campaign.

          4                 All parents who qualify for

          5  subsidized child care based on their income should

          6  have people access to high quality, education-based

          7  and safe child care for their children.

          8                 New York City has money now. Research

          9  proves how important good quality, early education

         10  is, especially for children of low-income families.

         11  The time is now to create a fair, usable and

         12  educationally sound child care system for our

         13  parents and children.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MS. M. TORRES: Good afternoon. My

         16  name is Marilyn Torres, and I am a Policy Associate

         17  at Child Care, Inc. Child Care, Inc., is a resource

         18  and referral agency serving the five boroughs of New

         19  York City, and we assist over 4,500 parents each

         20  year find and choose child care.

         21                 Today I am speaking to you on behalf

         22  of the early childhood strategic group, budget

         23  group.

         24                 The budget group's mission is to

         25  assure that New York City develops a comprehensive
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          2  and well funded deliver system that offers quality

          3  options to all families. We have an unprecedented

          4  opportunity to expand the opportunities available to

          5  New York City's most vulnerable families, and to

          6  assure that our youngest New Yorkers receive quality

          7  early care and educational services.

          8                 In this past year, the Board of

          9  Education has developed universal pre-K

         10  opportunities for 25,000 four-year-olds.

         11  Sixteen-thousand of these 25,000 children or 64

         12  percent are receiving universal pre-K services in

         13  early childhood programs outside the public schools.

         14                 New York City must take a bold leap

         15  forward as well with its child care system. We must

         16  assure that every new dollar is fully utilized to

         17  build the network of quality services that families

         18  will need and rely on in the coming years.

         19                 New York State has budgeted an

         20  additional $377 million in state and federal funds

         21  for child care. The budget includes four funding

         22  categories. The first is 120 million in funds to pay

         23  for child care subsidies. New York City has received

         24  official notification that it will receive 64.1

         25  million of these funds.
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          2                 This year the City Council added 1.5

          3  million to the City budget providing New York City

          4  with an additional 65.6 million in new monies.

          5                 There is also 200 million child care

          6  reserve fund over three years, and 15 million in

          7  funds to support facilities development, as well as

          8  42 million for additional subsidies. However, these

          9  last three items have not yet been allocated.

         10                 The budget work group has developed a

         11  proposal that establishes a strong framework for

         12  spending any new funds that are available.

         13                 The document that is attached to this

         14  testimony outlines a specific framework for spending

         15  the first 65.6 million that is available, plus a

         16  portion of the additional funds for quality -- from

         17  the unallocated funds, as I mentioned.

         18                 We estimate that the subsidy funds

         19  can be used to provide services for 10,000 more

         20  children. We are proposing a mixing funding system

         21  that includes both expansion of the current system

         22  of contracts and vouchers.

         23                 The 65.6 million available for

         24  subsidies can pay for full-time care for an

         25  additional 6,000 children. We are urging New York
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          2  City to use 60 percent of these funds for spaces for

          3  children in centers and family child care programs,

          4  and the remaining 40 percent to be used to purchase

          5  child care through vouchers.

          6                 To accomplish this, we urge the City

          7  to do the following: Move forward immediately to

          8  expand existing contracts for child care center and

          9  family day care programs by a minimum of ten

         10  percent.

         11                 This can be done within the current

         12  policy procurement, without a new request for

         13  proposals.

         14                 Second, the City should issue an RFP

         15  for additional service expansion immediately.

         16                 Three, begin to release vouchers to

         17  families to meet the child care needs.

         18                 4) Four-thousand additional children

         19  in programs near home and work.

         20                 I am almost done.

         21                 Current income eligibility guidelines

         22  force working families with incomes just above

         23  31,000 out of the system. These families cannot

         24  afford to pay the full cost of child care services.

         25  We ask for the City Council to join us in urging New
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          2  York State to increase eligibility to the maximum

          3  allowed under the federal law, which is 85 percent

          4  of state median income. In other words, this would

          5  make a family of four earning about $44,000 annually

          6  eligible to receive financial assistance.

          7                 As an interim measure, the City

          8  should adjust the current income ceilings

          9  established by New York City to reflect the 1990

         10  federal poverty level.

         11                 Currently, these income ceilings have

         12  not been updated since 1990. Low and moderate-income

         13  working families are the back bone of the City's

         14  economy. These families, however, do not have

         15  priority for child care services. We are calling for

         16  New York City to assure that at least 50 percent of

         17  new funds to support low and moderate-income working

         18  families and student parents while preserving the

         19  child care guarantee for TANF-connected families who

         20  are working and transitioning off public assistance.

         21                 New York City must take several major

         22  steps to reach this goal in regards to investing --

         23  it is also important to invest a portion of these

         24  new child care funds for quality initiatives, and

         25  for this New York City must take several major steps
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          2  to reach this goal:

          3                 - implement minimum regulatory,

          4  safety and oversight standards for all subsidized

          5  child care, including informal care settings, expand

          6  the funding for Family Child Care network support

          7  programs to offer training, monitoring and other

          8  support services to providers.

          9                 In the coming year, 7.3 million is

         10  needed to benefit 11,300 children cared for in

         11  family child care homes. Establish a quality set

         12  aside of three percent of new federal and state

         13  funds as a core strategy to enhance professional

         14  development and compensation of staff. And these

         15  quality initiatives can be funded from the 42

         16  million legislative, as well as the 200 million

         17  child care reserve fund.

         18                 New York City must begin to spend

         19  these funds now. We are calling upon the City

         20  Council to join us to assure that New York City

         21  receives its fair share of all available funds for

         22  New York State. But New York City moves forward

         23  quickly to spend the funds that are available and

         24  spend them in a timely fashion, that New York City

         25  utilizes these funds to create an ongoing capacity

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            280

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  by expanding the availability of services in

          3  targeted high need communities, and that New York

          4  City at a minimum maintains and expands its current

          5  level of investment in child care.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MS. THOMAS: Good afternoon. My name

          8  is Carol Thomas. I am the Director of Little

          9  Achievers Child Care, located in Brooklyn. I am a

         10  private provider. The reason for this is because I

         11  was on the network a couple of years ago, and what I

         12  discovered, and I decided to stand for what I

         13  believe and what I knew was right, I was penalized

         14  for that.

         15                 I choose to go privately. My problem

         16  and concerns are, one, with these resources that are

         17  available, why don't we invest some of the monies

         18  into training the staff at the Begin Center?

         19                 It is not easy working week after

         20  week, as of August of this year I have not received

         21  payment for my child. It is because of my kindness

         22  and my love for the child that I am still working

         23  with that parent.

         24                 And another thing, listening to a

         25  worker, caseworker telling me that she advised the
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          2  parent to go look for a babysitter, I don't see how

          3  that could compensate for what is happening to me.

          4                 Often times that you have called

          5  these centers I understand and I know there is a

          6  work overload, why can't some of these funds be

          7  invested to train these people or, you know, get

          8  more staff?

          9                 Also, for the voucher, it is the same

         10  system. Yes, they have upgraded their system. We had

         11  to wait at least three months before we get

         12  payments.

         13                 This past month I had to go down to

         14  30 main street to find out exactly what was wrong

         15  with my paperwork. This is a system that said please

         16  bear with them, they are going to upgrade it.

         17                 When I got in there and I saw, what I

         18  saw on the computer, they are telling me that I have

         19  a child that is in foster care system. Why should it

         20  take from November 1998 to November 1999 to solve

         21  this case when it is simple? Why can't they also

         22  take responsibilities for their action?

         23                 I have had that child in my care

         24  since he was one year old, and I know he was not at

         25  foster care.
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          2                 If you make a mistake, just fix it

          3  and everything would be okay, don't be yelling and

          4  shouting at people. I have a staff to pay. When I

          5  don't get paid from the City, from the voucher or

          6  Begin, I have to depend on whatever resources I get

          7  from my private parents. That means somebody ain't

          8  going to be paid because I don't have other

          9  resources.

         10                 Yes, I am here to help the parents,

         11  but I think enough is enough, and for my parents, I

         12  am only here really for myself and my parents to see

         13  that something can be done, especially with this

         14  Begin center.

         15                 Another thing, when the parents go

         16  down, this particular parent I had to write a

         17  letter, get it notarized and everything, on top of

         18  the rudeness from this caseworker, the parent has to

         19  wait three more weeks for another appointment. Her

         20  benefits has been since cut, she has to drop school

         21  and still I haven't got paid.

         22                 Thank you very much for your time.

         23                 MS. ROSENBLUM: Hi. My name is Gladys

         24  Rosenblum. I am Assistant Executive Director of HELP

         25  1 in East New York, Brooklyn.
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          2                 On behalf of Health USA, I want to

          3  thank you for having this hearing and staying this

          4  long.

          5                 HELP 1 is the first tier II shelter

          6  designed and built by Andrew Cuomo 14 years ago. On

          7  any given day it is home to 189 families, 600

          8  people, including 150 children under the age of six.

          9                 We have an on-site early childhood

         10  program for 75 children between the ages of two and

         11  five years, there are always children on our waiting

         12  list.

         13                 Today I speak on behalf of the poor

         14  children in our City, especially the thousands of

         15  day care eligible children who are living in New

         16  York City homeless shelter system.

         17                 These children all too often have

         18  experienced in their short lives more than most of

         19  us will in our entire life.

         20                 They have already lost their homes,

         21  their neighborhoods, even their toys and clothes and

         22  are living in a homeless shelter.

         23                 Their parents often have substance

         24  abuse problems, mental health problems, especially

         25  depression. There are domestic violence issues, some
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          2  parents do not have their high school diplomas and

          3  quite often lack parenting skills.

          4                 Day care for these children is vital

          5  to give them stability and an opportunity to learn

          6  many necessary skills to succeed in school and

          7  ultimately in life.

          8                 When you come into our day care

          9  center, you would not know these children are

         10  homeless and have experienced so much trauma and

         11  loss. The center is a place where they get to be

         12  children. Every day is filled with fun and lots of

         13  learning experiences. By the time they leave they

         14  know their colors and the numbers and all those

         15  things one would expect, but they have also learned

         16  how to follow directions, how to work in a group,

         17  that a book has a beginning and an end. They have

         18  learned to sit still and complete a task.

         19                 They must know and be able to do

         20  these basic skills so the first day of elementary

         21  school they are ready to learn more complicated

         22  tasks.

         23                 Day care is also critical in order

         24  for their parents to attend job training programs,

         25  look for work and go to work. Day care will play a
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          2  critical role in helping their parents go from

          3  welfare to work.

          4                 These parents need day care that is

          5  available for extended hours, including

          6  round-the-clock, to accommodate shift work, sick

          7  children and long commutes that many parents have.

          8                 Day care is also key to helping these

          9  parents succeed after they leave the shelter for

         10  permanent housing.

         11                 The day care must be high quality.

         12  There must be licensed, trained teachers who use an

         13  excellent curriculum. Babysitting is not what these

         14  children need to ensure their success in life.

         15                 I urge you to use the new funding to

         16  increase quality child care and opportunities for

         17  poor children, especially children in homeless

         18  shelters.

         19                 This includes funding for expansion

         20  and building new day care centers.

         21                 High quality day care is one of the

         22  greatest weapons against ensuring the young children

         23  of today will not be the welfare recipients of

         24  tomorrow.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Is there

          3  anybody who wants to testify who has not testified?

          4                 Well, thank you very much for coming,

          5  for staying. Wait one minute. Who was that young

          6  lady there, the young woman who was sitting here for

          7  how long? I think we should give her an award.

          8                 I want to thank very much the

          9  Citizens Committee for Children, Gail Nayowith, Rose

         10  Anello, and all of their staff, and the board, who

         11  really spent so much time and devoted such a strong

         12  effort, to the other groups that have helped, to all

         13  of the people who came, and I hope that we will be

         14  successful in moving the question of child care

         15  higher on the list of priorities and that we will

         16  have some affects on the money that is available.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 4:00 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 15th day of November 1999.
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                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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